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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2016
—TRE
HK$'000

BT

13,721,239

EFEUHEE

2017 2020
e 3 it St
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR

14,535,135 14,513,521

14,885,044 14,939,550

2,798,303

2,696,260 2,116,453 2,414,824 2,274,167

10,922,936

11,838,875 12,397,068 12,470,220 12,665,383

BIEHKS28.857T

BIEHKS31.277Tc  BHEHKS32.757t BHEHKS32.945T #¥EHKS33.457T

457,907

744,888 1,014,267 429,984 162,560

BEHKS$1.217T

BEHK$1.977t  BIEHKS2.687  BYEHKS1.147c  BHEHKS0.437T

BIEHKS0.477T

BIEHKS$0.607T  BEHKS$0.707t  B¥HKS0.607t  E¥EHKS0.257T

39%

30% 26% 53% 58%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT ERBHREE

Dear Shareholders

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s
business performance together with some of my observations
from the overall economic environment of 2020 and

expectations of the year ahead.

2020 REVIEW

“A Year Like No Other” is the title of the 2020 IMF Annual
Report. 2020 is indeed one of the worst, if not the worst,
global economic contractions (a minus 3%) in history. The
degree of suffering varied from country to country depending
on the resources, financial, medical and societal, of the
individual country. In general, central banks have brought
stability and liquidity to global markets and governments
worldwide have introduced some of the largest fiscal stimulus
packages in modern history. Geographically, it may be fair to
say that Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
suffered the least, to be followed by other East Asian

Countries, Australia and New Zealand.

The American society has suffered badly from the COVID-19
pandemic. The US economy took a nosedive in March. It was
then stabilized after a US$2 trillion stimulus package was put
into action, two-time reduction of interest rate to 0.25% by
the Federal Reserve and the resumption of Quantitative
Easing. But even then by the end of 2020, both employment
level and GDP were worse than 2019, down 3% and 3.5%,
respectively. However, with so much liquidity pouring into the
financial market, Dow Jones, S&P and Nasdaq ended 2020 with
a respective gain of 7%, 16% and 42%, all in record high after a
volatile year.

In 2020, both EU and the UK suffered heavily with their
economies contracting around 7% and 9% respectively. They
have exhibited a similar economic behavior as that of the US, a
most severe recession in the second quarter followed by a
sharp rebound in the third followed by a dip in the fourth.
Vital and timely monetary measures by the European Central
Bank and the Bank of England stabilized the much shaken
business confidence. These actions together with a
corresponding strong fiscal support from the national and
regional governments had provided reliefs to both business

and household.

REMRR :

£ N %Tiﬁ$$@:$:§
FZFRAMOEE > UKk NHERLEK
ﬁZﬁ%ﬁa’ﬁXE%EZ%go

—E-ZmmE

THIFFRBEZE cERERESHERS "
E_EFEFRNER - —_S_TFHE
%%W@%Wﬁﬁﬁﬁuxﬁﬁﬁﬁz
— (BB RENGE) » WHEIE3R - KK

WEEERERME » ABBUARESE
BRHNER BB BRERMAEGAKR -
MEMS > PRIBITEHAZEKTISE
AHRBEMMRE MY > RSB
AR L T IRAE LR AR & AR BB
BER RHMIFAEE > AFMs > &
BEAE &S BN EERZEE

RV HRZHMEREERK  BRAFIE
FFEGHEE o

E19HBEBRBEAMITH > EETLEE
RTNEITE - ZEAKEBEE=RH =B
TP > BT 2 BEETHRIBASETE
I~ EBERRPEEE0.25% RERMEL
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B BECSSSERE REAT
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BITFBE T 3% 3.5% o AT » A KER
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EN—FZBIBITEEHRS °
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Bl > DRIELE T LIT7%I 9% o ERITEA
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| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's business performance together with some
observations from the overall economic environment of 2020 and expectations of the year ahead.
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Economically, Japan also resemble the rest of G7. Export has
always been important to Japan and the revival of the Chinese
economy from the second quarter onwards have lessen the
impact of the economic downturn. Japan’s economy
contracted around 5% in 2020.

Mainland China has surprised the world as the only major
economy that has managed a positive growth, albeit only, a
2.3% in 2020. According to the economic pundits, China, is yet
again, similar to 2008/2009, emerging as the engine of global
growth. After an unprecedented first quarter contraction, the
mainland economic growth was equally unprecedented, with
3.2% in Q2, 4.9% in Q3 and a 6.5% in the Q4. When the rest
of the world stayed stagnant or facing another dip, economists
believe that she is expanding at a faster pace than before
COVID-19. Such a remarkable result vindicated the strict virus
containment measures of the government which
simultaneously adopted flexible monetary policies from the
lowering of the interest rate to liquidity easing. Furthermore,
the authority has rolled out a series of fiscal measures,
unemployment insurance, tax relief and public investment in

addition to the pandemic controls spendings.
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Chong Hing Bank Centre BIE$R{T

The success of controlling the spread of COVID-19 meant
that China was the only major manufacturing nation that has
operated without constraint. As a result, China has recorded
its highest ever monthly trade surplus in December 2020 after

three consecutive months of double digit exports growth.

Last year, the Chinese residential market benefited from a
loose monetary policy, gaining between 2-4% depending on
locations. Yangtze River and Pearl Harbor Delta had the best
performances. In line with expectations, the commercial

property rental showed a small decrease compared to 2019.

The Hong Kong economy has performed far worse than the
motherland not withstanding our low COVID-19 infection
rate. Our GDP has contracted by more than 6% and
unemployment rate has hit 6.6% in the fourth quarter of 2020,

the worse of sixteen years.

RLINIERI2019H B RSB REIE > < HEMK
AE——EARREBTENTELEER -
Fit > FEE=EABREMUHNHEO
BRz%E FEE-Z-_ZTF+_AH
TELURESHAEESIEE -

SRR BERNEEEE ) —S2SFH
BENEMEFEDHSEARREESEMN L
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B&HE T P& > EATRHAMETT o
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RERBABERER  — 2 -FFF M
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Chong Hing Square B EE5

Such appalling figures were mainly the result of severe
downturns in retail consumption, food and beverage in
particular, and an over 90% drop in tourist numbers. The
Government has launched and injected thrice into the
Epidemic Prevention and Anti-epidemic Fund in February
(HK$30 billion), April (HK$375 billion) and December
(HK$6.4 billion) respectively. Both our financial sector and
residential property sector stood firm. As one would expect
with poor retail figures, retail rental dropped by over 30% and
the office rental down around 15%.

BUSINESS RESULTS
For the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group recorded
a profit of HK173.5 million, it represents a decrease of 61%

when comparing with the year 2019.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 20 May
2021, the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.25 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.15
per share paid on || September 2020, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.40 per share for the year 2020.

L NEEBHNERFTECHNTEHE
miERERK (5 2 ERRTE) UK ik
BEABTBRT 90% A _EFREY o BUAFRR BN
BRENEEESS=ZTEAEE 95
#— R (300f2#7T) ~ WA (3,750 8% 7T)
M+_H (4f8E7T) - TR HEMEM
EFEMHEIRAZHE - —WMFEH> T
EHEAE  SEMRESTHRBIAE0% > B
FIEEE TP 15% ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT ERBHREE

A detailed business review and analysis are to be found in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report. In summary:

For the year ended 3| December 2020, due to
COVID-19 pandemic, the total rent received by the
Group amounted to HK$320.4 million, reduced by
HK$34.6 million, a drop of 9.7% compared to 2019. For
our major properties, the aggregate occupancy rate is
74%.

As to property development in Foshan, The Grand
Riviera, a total of 99%, 100% and 100% of residential units
of Phase |, 2 and 3 respectively had been sold. 94% of the
total Phase 4 units have been sold by the end of 2020. As
of 31 December 2020, the total sale proceeds of the
whole development project amounted to HK$5.9 billion.
A further HK$1.2 billion will be generated as and when
all the remaining residential units, car parks and shops are

sold off in the future.

The Group is developing a residential property project
“Elegance Garden” in Sanshui District of Foshan. It has a
total buildable area of 142,908.8 sq.m. The overall
planning and design scheme has been approved by the
Foshan Municipal Government. The building construction
work has started in October 2020 and is scheduled to be
completed in October 2023.

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel and Serviced Residences,
operated directly by the Group, commenced business in
December 2019. Like all start up business, it experienced
hardship in the initial phase, exacerbated by the pandemic.
Through a series of measures, the hotel operation has
stabilized. For the year ended 3| December 2020, it has

generated a total revenue HK$37 million.

EXRFRMEEE Z5mR DT —EIR
A FENEFOERDN o IR
LI

ZWIHMBRERETE  BE

ETERF+ZHA=+— EtEF
A E AV EERETE & N 40 78 15 3.204
—E—NFERL34608
FTEREMEZE

Bmx 8=
7C > BK1E9.7% »
RS LHAE=R 74% ©
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EREVEEE L 58 (A0 F i S A 2K
EHWEY > AEBEAEFATEE WS
LB 1218 7T o

AEBMPHELU=KEEETZEM
ERXREREEHERE EEETRA
142,908.8 /5K » BRSFRBIREH
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*  For the year ended 3|1 December 2020, the Group has a
total of four overseas investments: three warehouses in
Japan and one factory building in Australia, all of which
are long term investments co-invested with Value
Partners group (stock code 806.HK). Annual rental
income obtained therefrom amounts to HK$76 million, a
9% increase from 2019.

OUTLOOK OF 2021

Looking ahead economists are expecting a recovery in 2021.
IMF projected a global growth of 5.5% in 2021. Such optimism
hinges upon broad vaccine availability first in developed
economies and by the summer of 2021, across most of the
countries. The market expects a large fiscal policy measures to
be enacted in major economies such as US, Japan and EU,
which will stimulate the growth therein and indirectly, to the
rest of the world. The market further expect major central
banks to continue the loose monetary policy of last year. The
Federal Reserve indeed confirmed such a view this January.

The IMF forecasts the US to grow around 5% in 2021. With
the election of a new president, the world may benefit from
the more predictable and more conciliatory US internal and
external policies. The defrosting of the US-SINO relationship,
to be followed by the easing of US-SINO trade relationship
may again be a reality. Analysts expect, Mainland China, will
once again be the engine of the growth of East Asia. China is
indeed facing many challenges such as an aging population, a
sizable wealth gap geographically as well as between social
classes. On the other hand, these negative factors are more
than counter balanced by timely and focused central
government measures, a booming e-commerce and high
technology sectors. The general consensus is that the Chinese
central bank will maintain a stable monetary policy subject to
periodic fine tuning. The property market of the Pearl River
Delta may benefit more from the Great Bay Area development
than the rest of the country. Yangtze River Delta is forecast to
have a year of stable growth. Mainland China is projected to
have a growth rate exceeding 8%, ahead of all the other

developed countries.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT ERBHREE

The Hong Kong Government is expecting her economy to
grow positively in 2021 but with challenges and uncertainties
ahead in the first six months. The general market sentiment is
that with a stable political and social environment achieved
under the National Security Law, the economy will recover
steadily. Hong Kong is doubly benefited by the development of
the Great Bay Area as well as the listing of Chinese companies
returning from the US stock Exchange. Residential and
commercial property markets are forecasting a healthy
growth.

In conclusion, barring any unforeseen events such as adverse
mutations of COVID-19, or conflicts in the international arena,

we take a cautiously optimistic view in 2021.

BUSINESS PREVIEW

The Group is in a fortunate financial position during the
pandemic. Years of prudent and professional management of
our business have left us in a net cash position. As a result of
that, the Group affords to take a flexible and long term view
towards our business and our business partners. Now with
worldwide business environment calming down, we will
continue to explore both local and international investment

opportunities.

In 2021, we anticipate our Sanshui project to proceed
smoothly after our long experience in the Foshan region. Both
this project and the remaining units of the Grand Riviera will
benefit by the Big Bay Area development. The Chong Yip
Centre Shopping Mall renovation has been progressing well
and is now entering the completion stage. With such a fine
location, depending on the level of economic recovery in the
Hong Kong consumer market, we expect a satisfactory
outcome of this project. For the rest of our rental properties,
we again are taking a sanguine view on both the rental and the
occupancy rates.
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The ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel and Serviced Residences should
have well passed its worst phase of business. From the
summer staycation packages to becoming a high end
“quarantine” hotel last year, it has received an impressive
amount of comments in social media. These messages are
highly encouraging giving favorable opinions on its spacious
bedrooms, good services and food quality as well as its
panoramic harbour view. With a dedicated operation team,

we believe that the result of 2021 will reflect its true potential.

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher has resigned from his
executive directorship at the end of April last year to pursue
his personal interests. | would like to thank Christopher for
his valuable contribution to our group during his tenure and to

wish him the best of luck in his future endeavor.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to stakeholders and shareholders for their continued trust and
support, to all my fellow directors for their wise stewardship,
and to our senior management and our staff for their

commitment and dedication.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, | | March 202
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
its annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are property investment, property development and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 4| and 18

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of the business and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2020, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Five-Year Financial Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”,

” [

“Summary of Financial Highlights”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of the Annual Report. The above sections form part of this

report.
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RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3|1 December
2020 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at
that date are set out on pages 140 to 264 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.15 per share was paid to
shareholders on || September 2020. The Board recommends
a final cash dividend of HK$0.25 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.40 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are

set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 3|1 December 2020 comprised the
accumulated profits of HK$7,439,660,000 (2019:
HK$7,497,105,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set

out in note |4 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS

Movements in property, plant and equipment/Right-of-use
assets during the year are set out in notes |5 and 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development for sale/
properties held for sale during the year are set out in note 17

to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which
has replaced the previous share option scheme, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and will expire on 8 May 2022. Under the
Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual shall not exceed |% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the

Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or (iii) the

closing price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned

scheme since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 4| to

the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. The

Group has no capitalized interest during the year. (2019:
HK$nil)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are shown on page 105 of this annual
report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

In accordance with Article 105 and 106 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric shall
retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) of the Company. The Company intends to comply
with code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules, which provides,
among other things, that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr.
Lee Wai Hung, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and Mr. Tong Tsun
Sum, Eric being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages |10 to I19.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review
period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 3|1 December 2020, the interests of the directors and
the Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, or have been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND IT’S
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

EEEFQRAREEBEERER 2K
7 1 B

RZEBEFE+_RB=+—H ' EEk
THAEN AR REBEER (ERR
m#&%aﬁﬁ%w&MZkﬁ\ﬁ%
R RkESFPHEZEREESFTRAG
1RBIEXVERE 7R B8N A EME AR
AREBBMERZRAERATE (TH R
FiT1) » RERBEFRIAGIFHISE 35215
ABRESATMEFEENELH > HER
BLEMETAERETIESREZRE
TR E R AT KM FR > A EEm
T

£ 25 2 B) Be EL AR Gk 3% B BV B2 17 B2 4B R B
3R

TAF
ERIBTERRAS

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD # 5 & i@ Rz {7 % B

Family interests
(interests of spouse
or child under 18)

Corporate interests
(interests of controlled

Total interests as
approximate % of
the relevant issued

Long/short Personal interests Rigtgia corporation) share capital
Name of director position  (held as beneficial owner) (Fef@sk 18 5% AL Total interests R ARIEERT
ERgH HE/%E B At (REHA) MTFR 2z (RERI AT 2 M) ELL REFHEIE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 — 203,737,000 203,761,000 53.82%
B %150 (notes 1 and 2)
BAERE %A (BfsE 1 R 2)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Long 2,756,867 — — 2,756,867 0.73%
Winston )
notes: st
1. 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings Limited, of which Mr. 1. BIEREABRERERARZRE  ZARALBEREART

Liu Lit Chi is amongst its shareholders. The above numbers of shares are duplicated under the
corporate interests for each of these directors.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders, beneficially
holds 71,410,290 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the corporate interests of Mr.
Liu Lit Chi.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Company,
the following persons (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the

FERFRREMALHES

A ZEZEF+ZRA=+—H > mExa
SIPTEN > FYIRRER (R AT ERHITHAE
HBRIM) RA QB Z AP K ABRARR AR R #E
BRBESRAEHRBIEXVEE2RE
3NEWZRERMBRREINE 2 R 5%
B NEEIBHEEREITEEMBRT
RAEEFEAEMKEATRKREARE L
G E ZERIRRIRR A EES% S L2 1

2L .
=

m -
Group:

No. of % of the
Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position  Capacity ordinary share held issued share capital
TERREHE R/ 513 FriFE @R HE HERTRFERLL
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
EREBARAT w8 LET )N e
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 71,410,290 18.86%
EEEBARAT w8 LEE )N ey
notes: (i3
1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, amongst 1. BREBAERAADREEZIMRILZAALT > BEACEBNE

others, Mr. Liu Lit Chi. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liu Lit
Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
by any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives
Officer of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or
more as at 31 December 2020 which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly,
have material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was partied to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In March 2018, the Company entered into a lease agreement
with Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a former Non-executive Director. The
Company leased the property for a monthly rent of
HK$75,000 with effect from | March 2018 for a term of two
years. The lease agreement had been terminated upon Dr. Liu
Lit Chung’s passed away in July 2019. For the year ended 3|
December 2019, the aggregate rent paid by the Company
amounted to HK$525,000.

In March 201 |, the Company entered into a service agreement
with K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy
services provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher, a Non-executive Director, is the sole director
and the sole shareholder of K.A. Kho & Associates. In addition,
a supplemental agreement with aggregate service fee of
HK$12,900,000 was signed in February 2016. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, no service fee was paid by the
Company (2019: HK$672,000) and the aggregate service fee
paid and payable by the Company amounted to
HK$12,845,000 as at 31 December 2020.
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In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of

business of the Group on normal commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were both
less than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Company and
its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the shares in the Company.

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at
31 December 2020, the top 10 largest shareholders are as

follows:

ETH ARG U EEESBEENEZ

EENA LR ZIIB R EREEES
A $E IR — AR P SR AR TRIETT o
FEERRMES

TEERN > FEBZATAREREHG
FEBRBARRDZ=1 > MAEER
ZHARERRGEEERERRRIER
DZ=t FRBFREFKREBBALT
HERARR (EZENEBREELARNEH
TRABERDZH) BEGEEZEAM
FER SR R R o

iRE - LENRMERG
BE_Z_ZTE+_RA=+—HLEE
RN AR KREMBARLERE « W
ENBEERERTZRKM -

#—:HQEE'-EEI'J 10 {i B2 3R
*E}F“ZIS NFEIRREBEMHOER > RTF

—_EF+_"_H=1+—HEFREEEMI0
IR ©

Number of

shares held %

Name of shareholder RS RERMHE BAtt

1. HKSCC Nominees Limited ERPRGEE (REAN) BRAR 157,924,482 4172
2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited BIE (K1E) BIRAE 139,554,088 36.86
3. AlbaHoldings Limited EEEEBRAT 35,000,222 9.25
4, MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64
5. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 5,000,000 1.32
6. ChengKeeMan Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83
7. ChengKee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
8. LeungKwok Choi Leung Kwok Choi 2,548,000 0.67
9. LeungLaiFong Leung Lai Fong 1,300,000 0.34
10. On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
Total CE 358,676,792 94.74




LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the register of members of the Company as at
31 December 2020, the location of shareholders are as
follows:

R SR 53 i

BREARBRRBILMOEL > RZF

“EF+"A=+—HBREIMOT

Number of

shares held %
Location of shareholders BRI HERHHE BAtt
Hong Kong &B 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia HEREEDE 36,060 0.0095
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZERMEX 16,860 0.0045
Australia E 8,580 0.0023
Total CE 378,583,440 100.0000
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT REZARERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at the end of the financial year and of their
respective profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing
the financial statements, the directors are required to select
suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent
basis, making judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure
from accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to
presume that the Company and the Group will continue in

business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the
Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and
Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved terms of
reference by the Board, the committee is authorized to
discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all matters
relating to the daily management and operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant
daily operational issues, review business performance and take
prompt corrective actions as appropriate. The Board believes
that the function of committee could help to relieve the Board
of detailed review of information and to increase the

operational efficiency among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s

website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 38 to 39. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of
the Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold
twice in each financial year immediately before the Board
meeting for approving the interim and final results. The
committee is satisfied with the Company’s internal control

procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 40 to 4I.
The report showed the main duty and the work performed by
the committee during the year of 2020.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 42. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2020.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 3| December 2020 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix |4 of the

Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the

Company are set out on pages 61 to 85.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors and officers’ liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report
prepared by the directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year

and up to the date of this report are as follows:
Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine

Mr. Liu Ying Shing, Claudius

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo, Darryl

Mr. Mok Siu Kwong, Stanley

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung, Tiger
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EFgHR&=2

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, | | March 2021

% B Em

KTEEZRAMBRREEE - FARRT
GEEITE % > ZEFETERTERE
FHERTARBTE - SULARR1TZ
REBFEFAGLRGREE-—BRERNU
EREH - AERASEHMITRATATZ
1% ERE

AEEGm
EIE
ES

&8 "B —4F=8+—H



LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANISATION CHART
ERIEEEARAEBEESE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXg

EXECUTIVE CORPORATE
MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

RITEBZEE TREEREEE

REMUNERATION AUDIT
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
FMESE BREEE

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

REZEE

-]
c
@
r4
m
(7]
(%]
P
m
=
m
2
>
Zz
O
0
o
)
v
(]
>
=
m
1]
(e}
<
m
P
4
>
z
0
m
b
*
0}
=
&
5
oy
i
i

Procurement Human Resources Project Development
Management Department Department Department

RREES L AHEED s EEYRH

Secretarial Department Leasing Department

Finance Management and Property and

China Propert
Information Technology Facilities Management Prop%r:y;(:\:éz?ment e
Department Department p Development Department

P EERARRES WERBEEEY ERERE hENEE R

w
~

EYHEXRTEES

== |

HETEHLE



w
©

0207 14Od3Y IVNNNY | @3LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

[H]I]
I8
HHit
m
M

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT ZH1ZZEE

I

The Audit Committee (“AC”) is made up of four members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting
policies. External auditors are responsible for auditing and
attesting to the Group’s financial statements and will report to
the management of the Company from time to time on any
weakness in controls which come to their attention. The AC
oversees the respective work of management and external
auditors to ensure the management has discharged its duty to

have an effective internal control procedures.
The AC had performed the works as follows:

I. To review the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 3| December 2020;

2. To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2020;

3. To review and monitor the external auditors’

independence;
4. To review the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from

external auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of

external auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of
account and finance team of the Group in order to carry

out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by
auditors were agreed and implemented by the management in
2020.
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Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the
report of the external auditor, the AC recommended to the
Board’s approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 with the Auditor’s Report
thereon.

The Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for 2021.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 9 March 2021
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT IEBRZEGHRE S

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members.
The main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board in
order to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii)
to identify suitably qualified individuals to become directors of
the Company and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the directors and succession plan for
directors, in particular the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the
Terms of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The Terms of Reference were duly authorised by
the Board.

In year 2020, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following

issues at its meeting:

I. To review the composition, size and structure of the
Board of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including
years of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5.  To review the directors’ appointment control schedule

— Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the

Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To review and amend as required from time to time the

Board’s diversity policies.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the
meeting are circulated to the Board for information. The NC

meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Hong Kong, 9 March 2021
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT #BiZE &

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of four
members, a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/
or make recommendations to the Board with regard to the
structure of remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. VWhen necessary and appropriate, the Chairman
and Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by referring to the
Terms of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities
and duties. The Terms of Reference was duly authorised by
the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had
reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

I. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the
Board regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowances
for the year 2021; and.

3. To review and approve the annual performance bonus

and its policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the

meeting are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, | | March 2021
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B4 % 2

2020
k- Jamk- 23
HK$'000
BT
Revenue
Wiz 771,622 1,276,508 (40)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
PERFARRRZAEEEF 162,560 429,984 (62)
Basic earnings per share
BREARF AHEHK$0.437T AHEHKS1.147 (62)
Net assets value per share
SREEIE BIEHK$33.457C BIEHKS32.947T 2
Dividend per share
sRES
Interim
) ABIEHK$0.157T BIEHK$0.227T (32)
Final
A BHEHK$0.257T BIEHKS0.387T (34)
Total
CES A HEHK$0.407T AHEHK$0.607T (33)
Dividend payout ratio
KB 93% 53% (40)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the audited
consolidated profits of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately of HK$173.5 million, comparing
to that of 2019 amounted to approximately of HK$446.5
million, representing a decrease of HK$273.0 million (dropped
61%).

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from
property investment, property development, property
management, treasury investment, trading & manufacturing and

hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other

than the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of gain(loss) on
changes in fair value of investment properties, gain on transfer
of property inventories to investment property and net

exchange gains (losses).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$320.4 million,
decreased by approximately HK$34.6 million from
approximately of HK$355.0 million in the year of 2019,
representing a decrease of 9.7%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’s overall occupancy of major investment properties
maintained at 74% as at 3| December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEE

HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is
a 20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers
over 182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 3| December 2020, Chong Hing Square
generated a gross rental revenue of approximately HK$96.3
million, decreased by HK$17.4 million from approximately of
HK$113.7 million in 2019. The occupancy was 87% as at 3|
December 2020.

Looking ahead, we expect the retail high street rents will be
flat and the overall economy will likely be recovering due to
the roll out of the vaccines and the increase of tourist arrival
towards the end of 2021. The management forecasts the
rental revenue of this building would be improved in 2021.

Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, is a 26-storey Grade A office building. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, Chong Hing Bank Centre generated
rental revenue of approximately HK$97.1 million, increased by
HK$5 million from approximately of HK$92.1 million in 2019.
The Company, having retained several floors for the group’s
use, had entered into another 5-year fixed lease with Chong
Hing Bank Limited at a monthly rental of HK$7.98 million from
HK$5.66 million, representing an increase of 41%. The
management regarded the tenancy would bring stable and

good rental return to the Group.

Chong Yip Centre

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402—-404 Des Voeux Road
West. In 2019, the management had decided to revamp the
mall for gaining higher rental return. The modern and chic
concepts bringing trendy retails and F&B outlets would be the
main theme of this new shopping mall. After renovation, the
management expected this would be one of the young and

popular malls in the western district.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB E Z 51 & & 201

The construction work was on schedule and it was practically
completed and inspected in early 2021, it was expected that
the shopping mall will be ready for tenants to renovate in Q2
2021.

Total renovation cost was amounted to approximately of
HK$140 million and all expenditures are funded by internal
resources. No rental revenue was generated from this

property during the year.

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 3|
December 2020, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of
approximately HK$6.3 million, it recorded net rental revenue
of HK$3.1 million after rental elimination. This property

recorded 100% occupancy as at 31 December 2020.

PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanjing
Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey
Grade A commercial building which commands a strategic
location and enviable view over The People’s Square just
across the street. With a total floor area of over 516,000
square feet of office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks,
this property was approximately 60% let in terms of office
space and 83% let in terms of retail space as at year end. For
the year ended 3| December 2020, this office building, after
taking exchange translation, generated a rental revenue of
approximately HK$115.4 million, representing a decrease of
9.6%.

The management will continue to improve the office’s
occupancy despite the oversupply of office building in Puxi
district and the continuing adverse effect to the Chinese

economy caused by the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEiEE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at | Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently
located within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial
district and within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West
Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive
development and is developed by phases. The whole project,
including Phase | to Phase 4, was completed and handover for

occupation in September 2018.

Financial and Sale Results

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
sale revenue of approximately HK$226.0 million of which 72
residential units and 328 carpark units were sold and

recognized under consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 5,171 residential units out
of total 5,264 units (representing 98%) and a total of 1,651
carpark units out of total 4,670 units (representing 35%) were
successfully sold out fetching accumulated sale proceeds of
approximately HK$5.9 billion. The management forecasted
that further sale proceeds of approximately HK$1.2 billion
would be received if all unsold properties including residential
units, carparks and retail shops were sold under current

market conditions.

Elegance Garden, Sanshui

In 2019, the Group, through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Top New Investment Limited, acquired a piece of
land at Sanshui District of Foshan by open land auction for a
cash consideration of RMB775.5 million. The site area of the
land is approximately 33,670 square meters with plot ratio of
3.2 times, making the accommodation value of RMB7,198 per
square meter. The management regarded the consideration
for the purchased land is fair and reasonable having taken into
account the minimum bid conditions set by Foshan Public
Resources Center, current market value, as well as the

location and development potential of the vicinity area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB E Z 51 & & 201

Location and vicinity

The development is located at the heart of Bei Jiang Xin Qu. It
is surrounded by the well-developed facilities, such as Beijiang
Primary School, Xindongli Center, Beijiang Feng Huang Park,
Sanshui Renmin Hospital and Sanshui Bus Stop. It takes |5
minutes’ drive to the Guangzhou and Foshan High Speed
Railway Station and 20 minutes’ drive to Sanshui High Speed
Railway South Station only. The development is just 2. miles
away from the Sanshui Metro Route 4, it is closely connected
to the Guangzhou and Foshan cities.

Project design

This residential development named Elegance Garden, consists
of 9 blocks 3|-storey residential apartments with three typical
sizes of 88, 98 and 108 square meters respectively. Given the
plot ratio of 3.2 and green area ratio of 30%, it provides a total
of 1,084 residential units with developable areas of over
105,000 square meters. If including the retail and commercial
area of approximately 1,315 square meters on the ground
floor and 918 carpark spaces mainly built at basement level,

the total developable area is over 143,000 square meters.

Construction

The piling and foundation work had been commenced in Q4
2020 and the construction progress was on schedule. Barring
any unforeseen circumstances, the whole project would be
scheduled to complete and hand over for occupation in Q4
2023. As at the date of board meeting, major contracts
including basement and superstructure, lift, M&E, landscape
and architect designs were awarded to different contractors

and institutes.
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HOTEL OPERATIONS

PRC

Budget Hotel

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel
business in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these
budget hotels are managed by and under the brand name of
Hanting. Due to the restructuring of the business strategy, the
Group had sold the budgeted hotels at Shanghai and Beijing in
2016, only the hotel in Guangzhou remains in operation.

For the year ended 3|1 December 2020, the budget hotel
revenue decreased by 41% from approximately of HK$13.5
million in 2019 to approximately HK$8.0 million in 2020. Due
to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic, the occupancy of
Guangzhou’s hotel was lowered to 12% in February 2020 and
then recovered to 87% in December 2020.

HONG KONG

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Center), located at 181—-183 Connaught Road West,
was converted into a [83-room hotel and serviced residences.
The hotel was in full operation after obtaining the hotel license
on 2 December 2019. Apart from providing 183 guest rooms
(room size ranging from 330 sq.ft. to 1,080 sq.ft.), other
facilities include two restaurants, named The Common Room
and The Tea Room, gym room, multi-functions room, sky
lounge bar (planning stage) and a wide range of services and
amenities. The two restaurants started operation in the fourth
quarter of 2019.

For a newly opened hotel, 2020 was a very difficult year. Just
one month after the opening, the hotel was suffered from the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The hotel industry has been
impacted by a significant decrease in visitor arrivals. For the
year ended 3| December 2020, the hotel and F&B business
recorded a gross revenue of HK$37.7 million but incurred a
net operating loss of HK$80.3 million after including
depreciation of HK$59.9 million. A management committee
was set up in April 2020 to closely monitor the Hotel

operation and F&B business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEiEE

Since then, various cost-cutting measures and revenue
improvement works had been done to increase the financial
results, which include implementation of no-pay leave,
reduction of casual labour and cessation of recruitment. In
order to raise hotel occupancy rates, the hotel has offered
dining promotion and staycation packages to attract local
customers. To widen other source of revenue, an on-line
catering platform eShop has been developed for selling X’mas
party set and Chinese poon-choi etc. Given the quality services
and dining experience echoed by the hotel guests, One-Eight-
One Hotel became one of the popular hotel brands and its
operating revenue has been improving significantly in 2021.
Hotel operating revenue had turned into positive EBITDA

since September 2020 with occupancy of over 62%.

Since 22 December 2020, the hotel has become one of the
designated quarantine hotels to accommodate the quarantine

guests arriving in Hong Kong.

OVERSEAS INVESTMENT
In February 2021,

investment in Brisbane, Australia by subscribing 15% of a

the group participated in an office

Property Trust which acquired a 2|-storey fully rebuilt grade
A office building located at 310 Ann Street, Brisbane. The
Trust was managed by the property and investment manager

of AsheMorgan.
The office building, with 198,000 sq. ft. lettable area, was fully

let to two major tenants, the Queensland Government and
the Allianz group with an annual rental growth of 3.5-3.75%

during the 7.5 years unexpired lease.

The purchase price of the property is AUD210 million. Given
the stable rental return and the debt leverage investment
structure, the management considered the investment would

provide an attractive investment return to the group.
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SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

Since the year of 2017, the Group teamed up with the same
joint venture partner, to acquire three warehouses in Japan
and one manufacturing plant in Australia. For the year ended
31 December 2020, all these warehouses and manufacturing
plant continued to maintain a stable rental revenue with 100%
occupancy.

The management regarded the investment would bring the
Group’s a stable rental return together with a long term
appreciation of properties. The share of results of joint
ventures of approximately HK$44.2 million, under equity
accounting, represented the 50% share of net asset value of
the investment which mainly included the annual rental

revenue and valuation gain on investment properties.

The manufacturing plant located at Adelaide was acquired at
AUDI I.5 million in 2018, after holding the investment of 2.5
years, the plant was disposed to a third party at a cash
consideration of AUD 8.8 million, representing an increase of
63%. The sales contract was signed in December 2020 and the

transaction was completed in early 2021.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from approximately
HK$12,394.0 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$12,577.7 million as at 31 December 2020,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$183.7
million. The increase in shareholders’ funds was attributed to
(a) profit attributable to the owners of the Group of
approximately HK$162.6 million; and (b) net increase of
investment revaluation and exchange reserves totaling
approximately HK$221.7 million; and (c) 2019 final dividend
and 2020 interim dividend paid approximately HK$200.6

million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB E Z 51 & & 201

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET CASH BALANCE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net cash balance (being
cash and deposits less borrowings) amounted to approximately
HK$513.9 million, decreased by approximately HK$29.5
million from approximately HK$543.4 million in 2019,
representing a decrease of 5.4%. The decrease of net cash
balance was used for the construction payment to One-Eight-
One Hotel project, Sanshui residential project and renovation
cost of Chong Yip Centre.

In the years ahead, the Group’s major capital expenditures will
be incurred for the Sanshui residential project and the
renovation cost of Chong Yip Centre. The management will
ensure all these capital expenditures within the budget and do
not undermine the company’s working capital.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had a gross gearing ratio,
(gross borrowing divided by equity attribute to owners of the
Company) of 11.7% (31 December 2019: 12.2%), and a net
gearing ratio (net debt divided by equity attribute to owners
of the Company) of 0% (31 December 2019: 0%).

The management expected that the Group’s cash balances
could be increased steadily further by the sale of the remaining
residential and carparks units of “The Grand Riviera”, Foshan
residential project, and the stable rental revenue generated

from different rental properties.

BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2020 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming
from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with various banks, most of which have
established long relationship with the Group. The management
will consider to widen the funding source from capital market
if both the market conditions and terms are favorable to the

Company.

The management will closely monitor the company’s funding
position, internal funding and cheaper external funding will be

used for coming development project.
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LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain positive cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will
not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment

obligations but also to improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various
investment properties, cash sale proceeds from various
completed and uncompleted development projects and
committed banking facilities. Liquidity risk of the Group is low
and it has been further reduced by early refinancing and

improvement of cash flow.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan
tenors. The Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out over
a medium-long term, with 68% of debts becoming due within
2-5 years, and 32% of debts becoming due within | year
respectively. It was the fact that the Group’s liquidity and cash
flow position in PRC was improved substantially following the

successful sale of “The Ground Riviera”, Foshan.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the
Group may use certain derivative instruments such as interest
rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements
and foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group’s policy to
allow using derivatives as hedging purposes only. With respect
to the counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group
transacts only with financial institutions with strong

investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s
financial position. Given that, the management will actively
involve and review the movement of interest rate so as to

minimize the financial impact.

REBEE AR RREER
FEFNMBERRERFREERRTT
RRBEEZ - FRETHRRBDEETES
BWAEBBETRERRAERSE > 777
EAEENEEETNR

FERNRBEETERBEZEREY
ENEEEEAZBA - REZSEENK
B 5% i 3% R 1A B BV IR & 85 & W e WA
EHIRITER - 7EBIAHET AR
HiERBREMNRERNNECE—D
FEfE o

FIERE R AR

BB R SRR P A PR R B M RS ©
FEBNFRIBPETHHESG 255 68%
BHER_ERFREH > R32%EFHAIN
—FREH -FE L AEEETRED
MBETRRERERREMINEEH
L 225k INTEE R RIBERE ©

Bk E R

EEEMNRRINE R R 0 AEE A fE
BETHEIR > flUFREHH - §%
1= BEARI R B RIMNESHK - £ &
BRAFEAZSTETIRFERARTE
BAR - ERTTETANXZZRARAE
FERETRABRIFRETRNME
HIBEITRR S -

2= m B

MRS RELFRAREEHAER
NHBRARTELEETEETE - E1EE
REEVNEERBANRED  URE
R R EDHMBUERHIR &

-]
[
2
r4
m
"]
(7]
P
m
=
m
2
>
r4
o
0
o
=
v
o
>
=1
m
Q
o
<
m
P
r4
>
r4
0
m
HE
#
]
-]
&
5
oy
i
i

EvHExIHRE G

-

|
;]

b



o
o

0207 14Od3Y IVNNNY | @3LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB E Z 51 & & 201

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and
not to speculate in currency movement. As at 31 December
2020, other foreign exchange exposures related to some
major investments in Shanghai, Foshan and Joint Ventures
projects which altogether amounted to the equivalent of about
HK5,903.5 million or 39.5% of the Group’s total assets.

DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has entered derivative transactions with bank in
order to hedge the investment in Japan. The foreign exchange
risk exposure has been reduced by entering Cross Currency
Swap transaction for the purpose of matching the Japanese
assets with Yen borrowings. Besides, in order to minimize the
exchange rate risk effects of cash inflow, the Japanese yen
dividend receivable have been hedged by a Single Rate
Forward. The management keep closely monitoring these
foreign exchange exposures by implementing different
appropriate measures on a timely and effective manner.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a workforce of
472 (31 December 2019: 511). Staff cost for the year include

salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately
HK$133.2 million. (31 December 2019: HK$144.0 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that
the pay levels of its employee are reasonable and competitive
in the market and their total rewards including basic salary and
bonus system are linked with their performance. The members
and work done of Remuneration Committee are shown on

page 42.
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TEEBR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code” or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing
Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY
(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-term
value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart
adopted by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on page 37.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR
LEADERSHIP AND CONTROL OF THE
COMPANY

e The Board is accountable to the shareholders for
leadership and supervision of the senior management for
the purpose of creating long-term shareholder value and

producing a sustainable growth and successful business.

e  The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and

financial performance.

*  The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems.

e The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management should
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness

of these systems.

*  Duties of the Board include approving interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases of interim
and final results, setting the dividend policy, and approving
the issue, allotment, disposal or grant of options in

respect of unissued new shares of the Company.
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CLEAR DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for
the Company’s business, daily management and
operations generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s operation and performance by delegating duties
to different Executive Directors and senior management
to achieve targeted objectives. The Board gives clear
directions to management of their powers and
circumstances in which the management should submit a
report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision A.2.1 of the
Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the
best interest of the Company that by nature of the
Group’s business which requires considerable market
expertise and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound
experiences in the property and banking industry, shall
continue in his dual capacity as the Chairman and
Managing Director.

(1i1) BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND

INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises three Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and five
Independent Non-executive Directors. For the year
ended 3| December 2020, the Board met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least one-third of the Board should be
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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*  The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or
other relationships which might interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment and each
Independent Non-executive Director brings his own

relevant expertise to the Board.

*  The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and
independently.

*  The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
In short, these committees have Independent Non-

executive Directors.

e In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising
two Executive Directors and two Independent Non-
executive Directors to perform the corporate

governance duties.

e The biographies of the directors appear on pages |10 to
I 17. These demonstrate diversity of experience and

calibre of the Board in making management decisions.

(IV) APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

e The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and

succession planning for directors.

*  Those directors who have been longest in office as at
each annual general meeting shall retire from office and

be subjected to re-election.

*  For newly appointed directors, they are required to
submit themselves to shareholders for re-election to the
Board at the first annual general meeting following their
appointment.

e All directors have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and were appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Under the Article 105, 106 and |13 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, all directors including
the Managing Director are subject to retirement by

rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
as follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers
as are appropriate to the position as an Independent
Non-executive Directors or Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(i) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company, including
but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(i) to notify the Board immediately upon the
occurrence of, or the directors becoming aware of,

any matter which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee are available to review on the

Company’s website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL
DUTIES AND SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors with supportive commitment of creating a

healthy corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
introduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other

regulatory requirements.

Throughout the year, all directors complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules regarding Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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(V1) CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of
attending continuous professional training for the year
ending 31 December 2021.

(Vi) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the Company Secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports
to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman of the Board or Executive
Management Committee on governance matters and also
facilitates induction and professional development of the
directors. All directors have access to the advices and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the
Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year, the Company Secretary
has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biography of Mr. Lee is set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” in the annual report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS
() MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL

BOARD DECISION AND GENERAL
PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate
governance and in compliance with the requirement as
mentioned under Appendix |4 — Corporate Governance
Code, the Board has performed to hold full Board
meeting at least quarterly during the year 2020.

The Executive Management Committee was established
on 30 October 2014. The current members of the
committee comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly
approved terms of reference by the Board, the

committee is authorised:

(I) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;
(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take

prompt corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or

other distributions to the Board;

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to

sustain the growth of the Company; and

(6) The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which shows
the Group’s financial and operating results with

detailed analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve
the Board of detailed review of information and to
increase the operational efficiency among different
departments. For the avoidance of doubt, all matters that
require public announcement pursuant to the Listing
Rules or rules of any other relevant regulatory body must
be approved by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ThxERIRES
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate

governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and the Board committee meetings, which
are normally circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed
version is sent to all directors for their records and open

for directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent professional

advice at Company’s expense.

The Company has purchased the Directors and Officers
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«  Details of 2020 Board meetings attendance record are * —FTFEEFGGRHFEITHE
set out below: #;YUOTF -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
L i
Executive Directors HTESR
Liu Lit Chi BaE
(Chairman, Managing Director and (F/E  EFHLIERTHEY)
Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEiE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEFHATE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(resigned on 28 April 2020) (R-E_ZFEMF—+/\HEEE) 11 100%
Lee Wai Hung R 4/4 100%
67
Non-executive Director FERITER w
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 4/4 100%
i
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTESR §
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 2/4 50% »
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur E#HE 4/4 100% 4
Ma Hung Ming, John o5y 4/4 100% N
Cheng Yuk Wo BB 4/4 100% ¥
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EZH 4/4 100% s
T
Rill
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(Il) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND

TIMELINESS
The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination

of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply

of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give
relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance of
meeting). Where appropriate, communications are sent

electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those major
rental properties, property under development and other

investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company’s business and operating results with reference

to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review

performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to review
the Company matters by reference to monthly

management reports.
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(1l RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s
strategic objective through an established, appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to
the Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been formulated

after having identified the main area of risks.

*  During the year of 2020, the management had completed
enterprise risk management and the internal control
assessment and various follow up actions had been done
based on the findings and recommendations by Deloitte.
The management highly regards the internal controls and
considered that such review based on the identified audit
areas, will be performed annually so as to manage the risk

and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and

senior management’s remuneration policy:

e The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and
determine the remuneration packages for all directors

and senior management.

e The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
(Chairman), Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo and a Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher.

e The committee meets at least once per annum.
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*  The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payment
and any compensation payable for loss or

termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the

Board’s corporate goals and objectives.
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e Details of 2020 Remuneration Committee meeting *+ Z—E_ZTFEHMEZESTFTELRE
attendance record are set out below: SCERETINT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEHERH HEE
Members of Remuneration Committee FMESEZS8
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BRE (/%) 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HRR 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John 957 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo ZREHA 11 100%
Cavior Liu (Secretary) BHE #Z) 11 100%
*  The committee is authorised by the Board to oversee « ZHETEEZEETEEEREETH
and determine the remuneration of Executive Directors TEERSREEBAEZFHN o

and senior management.

c No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

On matters other than those concerning him, the

Chairman or Managing Director may be invited to

committee meetings to give advices.
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Committee members are allowed under certain
procedures to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense for making and determining the
remuneration package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after
each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees
for all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual

general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in

the Remuneration Committee Report on page 42.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR
AND COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE
COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF
PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects in all shareholder
communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding

the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS
OF REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Audit Committee currently comprises four
members, all of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr.

Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or major

organisations.
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e The committee meets not less than twice per annum.

The Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive

Director who is in charge of finance matters may be

invited to the meetings. The committee also meets not

less than twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.

*  The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an

external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;
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V)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting (vii) AN AERZMBERGTER g

policies and practices; FEER ; E

(7]

("]

(ix) to review the external auditor’s management letter, (ix) WEIINESZBEIHNERE 2K K

<

any material queries raised by the auditor to %~ ZBETH A0 ER ~ 475 g

management about the accounting records, financial RREREEFIEREEERE B

accounts or systems of control and management’s NERERREARERRE(FH §

response; and Z[EIFE 5 & g

o

() to ensure that the Board will provide a timely x) BREFGREDERIIMNEZ BE

response to the issues raised in the external gEma TEEE 2 ERENR

auditor’s management letter. BRI HIRHIVEE © &

z

e  Details of 2020 Audit Committee meetings attendance —_ECEFEBERE ERUE :Z:

record are set out below: SCEREIT ¢ "

#

E

&

Number of Attendance &

meeting attended rate ]

HEEERY HEE %

Members of Audit Committee BEZEEZE i
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) B (2/%) 2/2 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 2/2 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &R 2/2 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEH 2/2 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TR (WZE) 2/2 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group’s

system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at

Company’s expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work done
and findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit

Committee Report on pages 38 to 39.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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(1i) AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditor had

received from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately
HK$3.82 million for audit and audit related services (2019:
HK$3.33 million) as well as HK$0.67 million for non-audit
services (2019: HK$0.5 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND

(F)

EFFECTIVE SYSTEM TO SAFEGUARD
SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND COMPANY
ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial

position and to protect its assets.

The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be
exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of audit
and separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness and
compliance with Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors will
discuss with external auditor in the Audit Committee
meeting at least twice a year on key issues in relation to

internal controls, audit findings and risk management.

As concluded in 2020 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found

by the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on
7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board. The committee shall comprise members
not less than three and a majority of the committee is

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma
Hung Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun
Sum, Eric (Independent Non-executive Directors) and

Mr.

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive

Director).

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience
required) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company.

Details of 2020 Nomination Committee meeting

attendance record are set out belows:
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Number of Attendance

meeting attended rate

HEEERE HEE

Members of Nomination Committee REEEEZE

Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BIE (£) 171 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HRR 11 100% 7;
Cheng Yuk Wo s 11 100% =
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B 11 100% &
Ma Hung Ming, John 95 1/1 100% .
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEH 11 100% =
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) ZEIE (FE) 1/1 100% z
«  Committee members are allowed to take independent « ZETZERSREIEXER:> s
I
professional advice at Company’s expense. BRARAT AT o ﬁ
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(G)

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the

Nomination Committee Report on pages 40 to 41.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible

for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

Its other current members are Mr. Lee Wai Hung,
Executive Director of the Company and two Independent
Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen,
Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company.
The duties performed by the Corporate Governance

Committee include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of the directors of the

Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the

Company;
v)

to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under

the Listing Rules; and

TtEERRS

=
=

(G)

FRIEREESEBERIIEXE
HNFEOZE4 BZIRBEZETRE
=

ERRREZE G HERE 3
BANERBIFAEE

EEELRERTG

RN S~ —:EEHtEﬁi
TEERE  TERERITE
%@Zﬁ%ammf°

CEEABATIRAESEAE
BT o

ZEgRFHMESAEFERL
£ BERFPRITES > UKW
UBIIFRITEFERRRTERE
BEEL o

ZEEBFEDS

TEEREZEEEELARLEE
BB REERE pd
BEETIIRIE:

1
]
I||
ST
I8
s

B

(i) FET RIS BR AT ZEEER
HERER  THEEFRY
Fe

(iy WAKRBERKEATNESKRER
BEABZIENRIFESES
R ;

WA MRERERTZHRRE
MERBTEARKREERKE

(i)

H5] ~ M REREAREAQ
RAEEREEZTTATA;

(iv)

) BAFRABDNERSETEEER
TIRASRELHRAZE
EREEEQARSEHIKE ;
)4



(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their
corporate governance within the department and
require them to submit proposal or remedy action

to redress the matters.

(vi) FEEFBEIMAEEERET
T ERKEIMFTHAFIA
ZEEER > WiIRERZHM
HITHAERRER -

«  Details of 2020 Corporate Governance Committee *+ Z—_ZE_ZTFEGLEELZETEE
meeting attendance record are set out below: HECERETIMT -

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERE g

Members of Corporate Governance Committee S¥EARSEES
Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman) B (F/E) 1”7 100%

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher BRI

(Resigned on 28 April 2020) (RZEZFFEMF—+/\ HRER) = =
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &R 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EEH 1”7 100%
Lee Wai Hung Rk 11 100%

(H)
U

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different
departmental heads) fully appreciate their respective
roles with supportive commitments of creating a healthy

corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes
that management (include different departmental heads)

has in place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different
department heads for the Company’s operations and

daily business affairs.
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(I) BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF

REFERENCE AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee, each
of the Committees have specific written terms of

reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
and all members are Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-

executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston and comprises one Executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises three

Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present their respective reports
to the Board after each meeting, for addressing their

work done and findings.

() SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
() PREAMBLE
This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practices in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and

prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of
open and timely disclosure of relevant information on its
activities to shareholders, subject to applicable legal

requirements.
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The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of the
Company’s strategy, operations and financial
performance.

Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the

Group position and prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual
and other general meetings, which have been
enhanced to provide shareholders with additional

information in an understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant

regulatory bodies.

Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk from
which shareholders can access information of the
Group. The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, financial reports, and
corporate information of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
The Board regards the annual general meeting as the
principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and

welcome any constructive opinions.
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Details of director’s attendance record of the annual
general meeting of the Company held for year ended 31

December 2020 are set out below:

BE_ZE_EZHF+_A=+—HIt
FEZARATRRAGEFTHET
BREHIWTF ¢

Number of Attendance

meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE
Executive Directors HTES
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BE (2E) 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEFHAIE) 11 100%
Lee Wai Hung FEIE 171 100%
Non-executive Director ERITER
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher HEE 171 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B ERITER
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses R 0/1 0%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur E#RR 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EBiE 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo EBERA 11 100%
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric EZ% 171 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 2| days for
consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And all

other general meetings to be sent at least |14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are
encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to

attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage
the highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the
Board committees and the external auditor of the
Company will attend the annual general meetings to

answer questions from the shareholders.
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(1l1) SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

. Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the
public are responded by the Executive Directors,
Director of Finance, Company Secretary or the
appropriate members of senior management.

e The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(IV) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

*  All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are continually
reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

e Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.

*  Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting
circular containing:

*  re-election of directors;

*  general mandate to buy-back shares;

*  general mandate to issue shares;

o amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
*  voting at annual general meeting; and

*  comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll
and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation
to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day
following the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 32.
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(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO

CONVENE A GENERAL MEETING (“GM”)
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may
request to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (a) must state the general nature of
the GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
GM; (c) must be signed by the shareholders making such
request, and (d) may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more of those shareholders.
A request by joint holders of shares must be signed by all

such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office
of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The request will be verified by the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company Secretary will convene a GM on
behalf of the Board by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements or applicable

rules or regulations to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders

concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them
may themselves convene a GM, but any GM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months

from the date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be
proposed as a special resolution, the directors shall be
deemed not to have duly convened the GM if they do not
give such notice as is required by section 578 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

=
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(V1) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT

FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give
notice of a resolution if it has received requests from the
following number of shareholders:

(i) Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to

which the request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting

to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) must be sent to the
Company in hard copy form at the registered office of
the Company; (c) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given; (d) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (e) must be received by
the Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company will give notice of the resolution or

circulate the statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement must be received in
time to enable the Company to send a copy of
the statement when the notice of annual

general meeting is despatched;

(i) and, the shareholders concerned have to
deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not
later than 7 days before the annual general

meeting.
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(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have
to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later
than 7 days before the GM.

* If the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above manner
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no action will

be taken by the Company in that regard.

. Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses to each
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the annual general meeting in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the

meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder
qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578,
580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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(Vi) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including

Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules

and the articles of association of the Company as amended

from time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company
intends to propose a person other than a director of the

Company for election as a director of the Company at any

GM, the following procedures shall apply:

e a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged with the Board at the
registered office of the Company;

e the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the GM appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such GM; and

* in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the
nomination of a director must state the full name of the
person nominated for election as a director and include
the person’s biographical details as required by the Listing

Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association
in the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 5
May 2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved the
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company.
The changes were carried out in compliance with the latest
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which came into
effect on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of Association is
available in the Company’s website.
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ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) acknowledge the
significance of effective Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) initiatives at an operational level. The Group is
committed to the principles of good corporate governance
and strives to integrate corporate social responsibility (“CSR”)
into its corporate ethos. In 2020, the Group succeeded in
developing its business while promoting initiatives that benefit
the environment, our staff and the community, continuing to

contribute to the building of a harmonious society.

The principal activities of the Group are property investment,
property development and investment holding. For the year
ended 3| December 2020, our primary properties were
located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). They comprised offices and commercial, residential

and industrial buildings.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(“ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. In
the preparation of this ESG report, we adhered to the four
core principles of the ESG Guide, namely the “Materiality”,
“Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency” principles. In
addition, we have adhered to the ESG Guide in terms of the

presentation and measurement of data for this ESG report.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from | January
2020 to 3| December 2020 (“Reporting Period”). Apart from
the principal activities of the Group, the activities reported

below also include property management and hotel operation.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

In light of the impact of global warming and environmental
pollution, the Group continues to seek opportunities to
protect the environment. We have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but not
limited to improving our environmental track record by
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing
waste in our daily operations, as well as by aligning with
“sustainable buildings” best practices.

ENERGY-SAVING CHARTER

In support of government initiatives on addressing climate
change, the Group signed the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department’s “Energy Saving Charter 2020” for
Chong Hing Bank Centre and Fairview Court. This Charter
promotes energy efficiency and energy-saving, one of the most
crucial means for Hong Kong to continuously reduce its
carbon emissions. The Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department has set four targets under the Charter: (i)
maintaining indoor room temperatures between 24°C and
26°C during summer, (ii) switching off appliances and systems
when not in use, (iii) procuring energy-efficient appliances and
systems (e.g. appliances with Grade | energy labels/Voluntary
Energy Efficiency Labelling Schemes), and (iv) encouraging staff
to adopt energy saving practices.

LEADERSHIP IN ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
DESIGN (“LEED”)

The Group is committed to maintaining environmental
sustainability by focusing on running and maintaining green
buildings. Our Chong Hing Finance Centre in Shanghai, having
been awarded a LEED gold certification in June 2020, is proof
of our commitment to designing and maintaining our buildings
in a resource-efficient manner and providing a healthy
environment to the users of these buildings. Environmentally
friendly features of the Chong Hing Finance Centre include
reducing heat-islands in the surrounding areas and reducing

light pollution.
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EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) emissions have been reported to
have a major effect on climate change and global warming. In
support of environmental protection initiatives around the
world, and to minimise GHG emissions and non-hazardous
waste, we adopted initiatives in a number of areas, including
deploying energy-efficient systems and implementing waste

recycling and pollution prevention.

During the Reporting Period, we participated in the
Environmental Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality
Scheme and were awarded the “Indoor Air Quality Certificate
— Good Class” for Chong Hing Square and Chong Hing Bank

Centre.

Under the regulations for electric-vehicle charging facilities in
the PRC, the Group has installed several electric-vehicle
chargers, covering no less than 15% of the total parking spaces
available at the Chong Hing Finance Centre in Shanghai. This
helps to reduce energy wastage and air pollution, as well as to

promote the use of electric vehicles.

Such charging facilities have also been installed at One-Eight-
One Hotel & Serviced Residences in Hong Kong, both for
hotel guest use as well as for the hotel’s own fleet of Tesla

limousines.

To ensure operation practices within our properties are in line
with the best environmentally friendly practices, as well as
applicable environmental protection laws and regulations, the
operations of Chong Hing Bank Centre, Chong Hing Square
and Fairview Court followed the framework and adopted the
forms of ISO 14001:2015.
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GHG emissions during the Reporting Period: REHIEA R = RASHER - g
z
Sources Types of GHG Unit 2020 2019 &
KR AEREER Efl ZTCTF —E-hE B
Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and use of vehicles Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) tonnes 0.02084 0.00316 ;
REE RS EE RS EIE FA{EMINO,) i f
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) tonnes 0.00104 0.00002 5
HE{E(so,) W 9
Direct emissions or removals from sources (Scope 1) 3
B BE R RIS (8 1) S
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonnes 125.19 115.95 b
MENRREPT AR = RARHE Z&1Eik(Coy m a
Methane (CH,) tonnes 0.28 0.26 2
B2 (CHy) i 2
Nitrous oxide (N,0) tonnes 18.17 16.83 ;z>
SIEBEN0) 1 5
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2) b
PR RIBHER (5 2) =
Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonnes 3,578.51 470.76 ]
ABNATREEN —H{bRi(COy) g s
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonnes 64.46 9.83 .|
HEBTERERANBEENER —&1tik(CO) i x"E
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3)
Hithin 2 RAgHkg (8E3)
Electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by government departments ~ Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonnes 16.11 1.55
B EPIRE R RS KEFTHENES ZS1EHR(CO) i
Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonnes 1.24 14.81
[EEFLRIEHIIAT Z&1EHR(CO) i
WASTE MANAGEMENT B &R

FHREHE > RANEHEEREER
RERBEEY - BEWILL > HATH
B D BEIRVEE M 0 RIE B EREVEY
BEHEE BERVEENBEYEUK
REHIRENEE - fli0 > SR A E
B RIFTVAREE  ZEEERER
BhFzF 25 0 ENAUAR DAL -

Our business operations did not generate any significant
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless,
we recognise the importance of waste reduction. Waste-
management measures have been introduced to minimise both
the amount of waste generated and its impact on the
environment. For example, to reduce paper consumption in
Chong Hing Square’s toilets, the Group has installed automatic
hand dryers instead of providing paper towels.

EEFMHEL  BEEHKRARNBEKR
AE o FFITFMREUITE > R EIHK
HLERAEABEXBERBIRM -

Compared to last year, the amount of recycled plastic and
paper had increased substantially. Ve have also stepped up
the recycling effort to extend the recycling scope to include
used cooking oil generated from our hotel business.

Recycled materials during the Reporting Period: SR HARS R AL MR 89

W
Materials recycled Unit 2020 2019 E
Bk B ot 3 —F-hE
Plastic tonnes 01029 00021 =
2} i J
Paper tonnes 0.0255 0.0008 _
R it "
Aluminium cans tonnes 0.0158 0.0877 I
inig W -
Used cooking oil tonnes 250.08 - g

ERBNRH I i
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USE OF RESOURCES BRER
We continue to endeavour to reduce waste, conserve water I E B BAIFFE LRI > TRXEY
and save energy in our properties through sustainability —ZEHETTIHEE  BI/KREHAE ©

innovations.

ENERGY-SAVING

R AE

Global warming and climate change are the main ZIKER{EAREFEECEHAZMEER
environmental problems facing the world. The Group has FEIRIEME - ZEBEEFIE—RIIE

A=

established a series of measures to promote awareness of i LA 12 /= & 85 & 7 > /0 H 2 One-Eight-
energy-saving, particularly at One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced One BIERRFEREE ©

Residences.

The Group’s measures to improve the energy efficiency of its TEREHME > FEERIRSHSENGE
operations during the Reporting Period are highlighted below: B EFIEHIFEEZFHEHENT ©

Head Office .
43

Y=

Investment Properties
REME

Hotel Operation .
BIEEF

Setting and maintaining the average room temperature to be between 24°C-26°C
RIZERRERE ERERE4EEZH

Switching off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) that is not in use

FE A ERRMARE ITEE « BRRETRF)

Switching off some lifts after office hours

EMARERERE DT EER

Using electrical appliances with a Grade one energy label according to the Mandatory Energy Efficiency
Labelling Scheme introduced by the Hong Kong government

REE BRI E RN TREE > FREA—RERRENES

Using Forest Stewardship Council certified papers for printing

ERARMEEZRE §lENHRETIIED

Using light-emitting diode (“LED") lighting for buildings’ exterior hillboards
ERFHEINEERERE N HE (TLED)) REA

Switching off lighting in areas that are not occupied

FAFIEG AR RVAREA

Having dedicated staff to conduct reqular inspections and monitor energy consumption
AEATHRERERERHE

Upgrading Building Management Systems

RABTFEERR

Upgrading the Chiller in the Chong Hing Bank Centre

RARERTRONR SRR

Using double Low-E coating on external windows, to minimise the transmission of ultraviolet and infrared
light

EINE LIEREEEESERE - B8 RIMRRAIMRREST

Switching off some lifts at midnight

EFREERED SR

Reducing how often beds are changed and rooms prepared where possible but without affecting customers'
experience in using our hotel services

EAREEEZREERBNART - ErfR) ERAEREERRIEE



Electricity consumed and intensity during the Reporting
Period:

BEHENAEEREE !

Unit 2020 2019
Efil - 53 “E-hE
Electricity Consumption kWh 4,547,059.24 628,678.79
BEE TRE
kWh/employee 14,435.11 1,860.00
TER /B8

The relatively large increase in electricity consumption is due
to the Group’s expansion into the hotel industry. The
provision of serviced residences increased electricity
consumption for every unit/room leased, while the number of
staff members serving the residents did not increase
proportionally. Hence, we can see an increase in electricity

consumption intensity per employee.

The Group will continue to monitor and improve performance
on consumption levels of resources and further initiatives will

be implemented if necessary.

PAPER USAGE

In our daily operations, employees are reminded to reduce
paper consumption as a matter of good practice. During the
Reporting Period, the Group implemented waste reduction

and recycling initiatives.

In order to reduce paper usage for our carpark management
system at Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai, an
automatic licence plate recognition system (ALPR) was used
during the Reporting Period. The system included standard
resolution IP cameras designed specifically for licence plate
recognition. To prevent misidentification, we installed a special
lighting system near the barrier. As a result, no more physical
car park tickets are required from this automated system. We
also accept electronic payment — for example, WeChat Pay
— making all parking processing and transactions paperless at
this property.
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USE OF BIODEGRADABLE TABLEWARE

We also introduced eco-friendly products into our operation
to minimise pollution. For food and beverage operations at
One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences, we provide
recyclable paper straws and some biodegradable tableware,
such as corn-based disposables for takeaway orders.
Furthermore, we use bamboo tissue instead of tissue paper
made out of wood pulp. Bamboo grows up to 30% faster than
trees so it helps reduce environmental harm. We are
committed to building a strong foundation for living a

sustainable life.

WATER MANAGEMENT

Chong Hing Bank Centre complies with the suggested
standards of the Water Supplies Department’s Quality Water
Supply Scheme for Buildings. To promote water conservation,
signs and notices are posted near sinks, and sensors are

installed at taps to control water consumption.

WATER CONSUMED AND INTENSITY DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD:

ERTEMERER
EMTARIRRESRSIAEEP » UFET
AERL L5 4% o TE One-Eight-One il [ & AR
BRNEETWERSED > RMEMLETE
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KEER
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FAKE -

BREHHENAKEREE :

Unit 2020 2019
i —g-ss =
Water Consumption m? 27,416.73 2,909.45
ke sk
m*/employee 87.04 8.61
UKR/EE
The relatively large increase in water consumption is due to F/KEHHPEE LA CHNREERES

the Group’s expansion into the hotel industry. The provision
of serviced residences and restaurant and catering services
increased water consumption for every unit/room leased and
restaurant in operation, while the number of staff members
serving the residents or customers did not increase
proportionally. Hence, we can see an increase in water

consumption intensity per employee.

The Group will continue to monitor and improve performance
on water consumption level and further initiatives will be

implemented if necessary.
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EARTH HOUR

On 28 March 2020, Liu Chong Hing Property Management &
Agency Limited pledged to support Earth Hour by turning off
all non-essential lights for an hour at 8.30 p.m. They also
pledged to help safeguard the future of the Earth by treasuring
the world’s natural resources, choosing sustainable products,
reducing waste and promoting and using renewable energy

wherever possible.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to any

pollution ordinances or regulations.

RECRUITMENT AND EMPLOYMENT

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and
that we owe a lot of our success to our employees. Given this,
we have an all-encompassing approach to recruitment,
employment, promotion and retention, coupled with
reasonable remuneration and benefits for our employees. In
relation to employment and labour practices, we strictly
comply with the laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC. We advocate a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities and we comply strictly with

relevant laws and regulations.

The Group ensures that a fair and equal recruitment process
is in place. Candidates are considered regardless of their
gender, age, race, family status, religion or disability. The
Group provides equal opportunities to all employees for

promotion and career development.

For candidates’ security in the recruitment process, we
confirm that all candidate information will only be used for
recruitment purposes and can only be accessed by authorised
staff. Information on unsuccessful candidates will normally be
deleted 24 months after their application.

A comprehensive framework incorporating detailed human
resource management policies is included in our Operation
Manual and Staff Handbook. The Operation Manual and Staff
Handbook provides information and guidelines to our staff in
Hong Kong and the PRC on working conditions, benefits and
remuneration, training and development, as well as health and
safety. Employees are also encouraged to discuss their job
progression and career development goals with the senior
management who oversee their daily activities. Furthermore, a

performance appraisal is conducted annually.
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE

The Group strictly follows labour laws and regulations and
provides a comprehensive package to employees, which covers
sick leave, casual leave (i.e. leave of absence at short notice for
personal matters or family emergencies), marriage,
compassionate, annual and injury leave, and statutory holidays.
This system aims to take care of all employees, expand the
variety of corporate culture activities and raise the sense of

belonging among employees.

Employees who are required to report for duty under tropical
cyclone warning signal No. 8 or above or a black rainstorm
warning signal are eligible to apply for over-time payment and
allowances, such as meal and transportation allowances.
Furthermore, the Group is pleased to grant due consideration
to the circumstances of individual employees and respond
flexibly if they have practical difficulties in resuming work on
time due to adverse weather conditions or road and traffic
conditions. A clear work arrangement is forwarded to each
employee via instant messaging, and relevant guidelines are
stated in a staff handbook.

The coverage of the Group’s medical benefits includes not
only its employees but also the employees’ spouse or children.
In addition, the Company provides training allowances for all

work-related courses.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places heavy emphasis on ensuring the health and
safety of all employees. For example, all property management
staff are required to wear safety boots, which provide
significant protection. We ensure well-stocked first aid kits are
placed on all floors in our offices. To ensure awareness of
occupational health and safety issues, the Group arranges
safety training for all employees. The Group has also continued
to optimise its work practices and daily management, through
measures such as anti-slip flooring around the swimming pool
and tree-care monitoring in Fairview Court, to foster staff’s
health and safety. The aim is to create a safe, healthy and

comfortable working environment.
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The Group emphasises safety when using equipment in
workplaces, communicating safety tips through training,
briefings and notices. Equipment operating guidelines and
procedural training sessions are provided regularly to
continuously promote and enhance employees’ safety
awareness and practices. We always aim for a target of zero
accidents and fatalities.

In addition, our property management business has obtained
ISO 45001 in recognition of our compliance with occupational
health and safety standards.

The COVID-19 pandemic broke out in 2020. As we were
highly concerned about the health risk the pandemic may pose
to not only our staff but also stakeholders in the Group’s
operations, such as customers and vendors, the Group swiftly
responded by circulating clear reporting flow charts for our
entire staff to follow when facing different health risk

scenarios.

The Group implemented the following measures accordingly
to fight against the pandemic in our offices and investment

properties:

*  Requiring staff to adhere to the Group’s office hygiene
requirements in response to COVID-19, including
wearing face masks and washing their hands more

frequently

e Temperature taking is required before entering our head

office and investment properties

*  Providing face masks and other disinfectant products at

our head office and site offices for staff use

*  Assigning staff members to different shifts when returning
to work in the office to lower the risk of spreading
COVID-19

At the Group’s hotel, where our frontline staff members and

customers are exposed to a relatively higher infection risk:

* Installation of infrared body temperature detection
system, intelligent disinfection station and biozone air
purifier in different areas of the hotel

*  Germagic disinfection coating being applied to indoor

public areas of the hotel

e Provision of hand sanitiser and face masks to hotel guests

and staff members
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Educational materials on personal protection and hygiene were
also timely circulated to staff. For example, educational
materials on “Healthy lifestyle under social distancing” were
circulated to help staff look after their health and well-being.
Training on selecting and using disinfectant products and
personal protective equipment was also organised.

The above measures not only looked after our staff’s health
but also the health of the Group’s stakeholders. The Group
will continue to optimise its work practices for the sake of
staff health and safety with the aim of creating a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment.

For the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to health
and safety laws and regulations. We comply strictly with
applicable laws and regulations such as the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) and Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59), Laws of Hong Kong.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Human capital has always been the key to the Group’s success.
To enhance staff’s personal and career development, during
the Reporting Period, a series of training programmes were
organised to ensure staff received adequate training in
responding to their needs in different positions and roles.

PRACTICAL TRAINING ON
CUSTOMER SERVICES

LE BRRLEARY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
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New employees, especially those who meet and provide
services to our guests on the front line, were required to
attend an orientation training course on their first day of work
to familiarise themselves with the Group’s objectives, culture
and employee rules and regulations. In addition, internal cross-
training programmes were also provided for staff. The training
scope for the Reporting Period included environmental

management, customer service and technical skills.

In September 2020, our property management department
organised a training session — Practical Training on Customer
Services — for our staff to enhance customer service

awareness and skills.

In addition, our property management department invited the
Hong Kong Fire Services Department to give a fire safety talk
and to arrange an evacuation drill for staff from the property
management department and representatives from other

administrative departments.

LABOUR STANDARDS

To prevent any risk of using child or forced labour, appropriate
candidate screening and age checking control is implemented
in our recruitment process to ensure we do not hire child
labour in Hong Kong and the PRC. Working hours are clearly
stated in our employment contracts with staff and we ensure
they are in compliance with the applicable labour standards
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not hired any
child nor forced labour, nor had received any notice of non-

compliance in relation to any labour laws and regulations.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group aims to deliver top-quality services to the
customer, while expecting first-rate quality from selected
suppliers. We require our suppliers and contractors to comply
with local laws and regulations, labour practices and health and
safety standards. To the best of our knowledge, we would not
engage any company that has any past record of questionable
ESG practices. Suppliers’ quality will be regularly evaluated by
inspecting their quality certificates and, where possible, by

conducting supplier audits.
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The Group takes into account the impact of our suppliers’
products on the environment and, where possible, favours
those who follow environmentally-sound practices, such as
offering products with greater durability and greater energy
efficiency. Before procuring any materials or products, our
procurement staff examines the necessity of the product or
service to avoid any unnecessary consumption. During the
selection process, we take into account factors such as
product quality and safety. At the same time, emissions and
pollutants produced, such as noise and waste materials at all
stages, are also one of our criteria for supplier selection. For
the sake of sustainability, we consider alternatives when
purchasing replacement products, favouring those with greater
durability and greater energy efficiency. Priority is given to
local suppliers in the hope of promoting local economic
development and reducing our carbon footprint by limiting the

distance it has to travel.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A document management system with multiple access
permissions was installed to improve and enhance data
protection and security to prevent information leakage. By
having different security levels, access to information is

restricted to only authorised users.

The Group emphasises the security of customers’ personal
data and supports a general policy of openness about how we
collect, use and disclose such information. To ensure data
privacy, all employees are required to fully comply with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance at all times when handling
customers’ personal data. In addition, we strongly recommend
that customers take time to carefully read our Privacy Policy
and Personal Information Collection Statement when

submitting their personal data and information.

As a hotel operator, the Group recognises the importance of
protecting our guests’ data. According to our Privacy Policy,
we ensure that only authorised employees are given
permission to access guests’ personal information. All relevant
documents containing sensitive commercial data only are used

within hotel property.
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To promote social integration and equal opportunity, the
Group is dedicated to providing barrier-free access and
facilities for people in need. At One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences, we provide accessible rooms which are

designed for guests with disabilities or special needs.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance in relation to data

privacy laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy on bribery, corruption
and money-laundering activities and has set out clear guidelines
for directors and employees to adhere to. For instance, to
prevent corruption, a tendering procedure has been adopted
for all projects; all tender documents are kept confidential and
are restricted to the relevant parties. All directors and
employees are required to strictly follow the relevant laws and

regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not
received any notice of non-compliance of the Group or an
employee with regard to corruption-related laws and

regulations.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

We are committed to supporting the community by
incorporating social participation and contribution into our
strategic development. We believe that this will nurture a

sound corporate culture and good practices in the Group.

Although we were thrilled to organise charitable activities
during the Reporting Period, we were also well aware of the
health risks that our staff and the relevant community may
have been exposed to from any physical contact in these
activities. Therefore, to lower the risk, we temporarily
stopped organising charitable activities during the Reporting
Period. We look forward to resuming such activities in the

future once the pandemic is over.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

BRI 1 EMERANBTRSGI

CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
under Appendix 27 to the Rule Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
following table provides an overview on the general disclosures

FEERBEBMESXZMERAEE
ZF EHRAME _+tr RG> 8K
BRI\ EES R o TREMIESIRE
EHBEIREEI—MRIKERBARER
BR THIIMERMER2RZEH

and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects S IE{HZESMREA o
under each subject area, which are either cross-referenced to
the relevant chapters of the Review or supplementing the
Review with additional information.
Description Reference Remark
fiidt 2% fist
ENVIRONMENTAL
IR
Aspect Al: EMISSIONS
BEAI : H#i
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant lawsand ~ Protecting the Environment
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—fRIKE BHBERREZREBHN « mKRIMNES  BERBEEEY RERE
MELEM | @) BUIR ; k() ETHETARERTZ ENEMER
RIRBIRVER o
KPLA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
FRENIERAL B R AR o 713,/
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RRERIRIRAL 2 BERBAANE CURHE) &k (NER) BE MUBESEM - N
BHERMEF)
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, N/A We do not generate
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). hazardous waste in our
operations.
FRENIERAL3 FELTEEREENEE UWHE) Rk MER) BE MUEERE 7TER BMNEBIRESRE
il « SRS EBENNES -
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Waste Management
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FRENIERAl 4 FELTREEENEE CEHE) k (NER) BE MUEEEE BYER
il « SRS
KPIA1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Waste Management
PRERIERALS BRI EREERFERR o BEYERE
KPLA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Waste Management
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
RENIERALS HRREEEREEEENNG L  REELENEHREHR - BYER



Description Reference Remark
fid 2% fisE
ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
1815 ()
Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EEA2 : EREIER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other ~ Use of Resources
raw materials.
—MRIKE BRERER (BEER  KREMEME) BB o BERER
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or Use of Resources — Energy
oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, ~ Saving
per facility).
RS EMISIRAL REMEDNERR AR NE « RI0h) BEE UTE BRER — Bk
TREEES) RZE (MUBEREN « BEREHE)
KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, ~ Use of Resources — Water
per facility). Management
SR ENIRIRALL BEKBREE MNUBEEEN  BRRMHE) BRER — KFERE
KPIA23 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Use of Resources — Energy
Saving
RREMISIRAL3 HiRAERERAR D B RASRR o BRER — ik
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Use of Resources — Water We encounter no issue in
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Management sourcing water that is fit for
our purpose.
RIRENIRIRALA WRSKEER KR LABEARE  UREARKNEABRAE BRER— KRER HAEERERKES
R © E I BRI o
KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if N/A We do not generate
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. significant packaging
material waste in our
operations.
RSREMISIRALS M A aEMHNEE (U E) Rk (ER) SEEEEE - FER HANEBLESRE
RUEIBOER o

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

BEA3  RERXAER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

Protecting the Environment

— iR HEETABRERRAGREREAT BHHCR © REIRIE

KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environmentand ~ Protecting the Environment
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

RRERIEIRAS.I HEEFEDHRGERAAEENEARERERNERENTE RERR
178 -

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

ERREIER

Aspect BI: EMPLOYMENT

[BEBI . B

General Disclosure

—RiRE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
requlations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti- discrimination, other benefits
and welfare.

BHMRARE  BREREA TR B TERE 27
16~ RIERUREMFBRABHE | ) BER ; K (b) BFHETA
BEATENHERAERAGINER o

Recruitment and Employment

EERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRIE - HERERRGS

Description Reference Remark
fid 2% fist
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
ERRSIER (B
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical ~ N/A
region.
SR ENIERBI Bith - BEEE  FRANRMESDMESEY - TEm
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. N/A
SR ENIEIRBI2 Bith « FRERNRMEBEDHEERKLE - TEm
Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EBEB : BEEZS
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant lawsand ~ Health and Safety
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employee from occupational
hazards.
—MRiKE EMRMHZ2IARGERFAEEEHEHELREN  HRK, RBERERXZ
R (b) BFHETABEAR ENRRMARRRBINER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. N/A
RERIERBI EIEREMETRABKLR o TEm
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A
FSRERIERB22 EIGEEATIERY TEm
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they  Health and Safety
are implemented and monitored.
FRSRERIEIRB23 HAFRANBERREAZ2EH > URERATRERAE  BREZZ

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EEB3 | FERE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development and Training
duties at work. Description for training activities.
— MK BRRAHERRITLIFRE RN AENECR  HltEaES o ERKE
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.  N/A
senior management, middle management).
FAsERIEIRB3. BN RERER MSRERE  PREEES) APNTHE TER
A7
KP1B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and N/A
employee category.
RSRIERIEIRB32 RIthRERERBD - BRESTMARIINTIIRY o TER
Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
[EBEB4 : HT2E
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant lawsand ~ Labour Standards
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
—RIRE BRMLETHAENS T : @BER; RO)ETHETABEX HIER
FENHMAERRBINER o
KPIB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid childand ~ N/A The child and forced labour
forced labour. issues are not material to
our operations.
RS ENIEREA. Ht iR R B AR ENBERE T RAHIST - TiEm BMNEBLES RE
REIMNRHFHINE
R o
KPIB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. N/A The child and forced labour
issues are not material to
our operations.
R ENIEIRB42 HRERRERBEREHRERBE RN SR - TiEm BANEBLESRE
REIMNRHFHINE

AER o




Description Reference Remark
fid 2% fisE
OPERATING PRACTICES
EiERA
Aspect BS: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
[EEBS | (AfEHRERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain Management
—MRIKE EEMRBINIRE RS RREER o fitiesE el
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. N/A
RS ENIEIRES.| BB D HHEEHE o TEm
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers  Supply Chain Management
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
RS ENIEIRBS.2 HRARERHEENES  RHRTEREANGLERHE .  HEEERE

URERERNMITRERSE

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

[BEB . EmEE
General Disclosure

—RiRE

KPIB6.1
R E1R B6. |

KPI B6.2

RARE IS B6.2

KPIB6.3

RENIER B3
KPI B6.4
RSB NISIE B4
KPI B6.5

SR RAIEIRB6.S

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
BfREERNRBHRREZ S  BS  RERARZEEUR
BREN | @BR ; k() BTHETABEARENEMER
RARBINER o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
BESEEREREHTRZ2ARFEZAMACKNE DL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

RERRERRRBIRHABUREHSE o

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

R RIB A A S FAVER

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

i E BT BRRERLKER o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.
B EEBRRERMRER  URBERATRERAE o

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

Emaft

There were no recalls
concerning the provision.
REBTHERENE
ErmZAEH o

There were no validated
complaints received during
the reporting review
period.
REBTHERENE
SRR o
Intellectual property rights
are not material to our
operations.
BARNEFHIRER
HERIBEATE
Recall procedures are not
relevant to our operations.
BEEFARFANES
WRAHRRATE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRIE - HERERRGS

Description Reference Remark
fid 2% fist
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
ZERH (R)
Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EEB7 . RES
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies: and (b) compliance with relevant laws and Anti-Corruption
regulations that they have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—MRIKE BRDLLER B MeFRAREN © @BER; RO)ETHE RES
TABEARENBMERRRBINER o
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-Corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcome of the cases.
SR EIEIRET.| RESBHARETASHESRNIBEENESMARGNHE RES
E R
KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how  Anti-Corruption

they are implemented and monitored.

R&’5

RS ARR IS 1R BT.2 HRHBERRRRER  URBHAIRERS L
COMMUNITY
#HE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[BEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

—fRikE BRUHEZERT BEEREHERENRGEERIHEELRE
HEMZHMEE o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

SR E G BS.| EIEREEHE  RIESEE FIEX @8 Xt BF) o

KPI BS.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

BRE1ER8.2 HEIHEMBHAER (NEBHERH) o

Giving Back to the Community

[ E
Giving Back to the Community

[ E
Giving Back to the Community
[EEHE




CORPORATE INFORMATION B & #t

As at 11 March 2021 RZE-_—£=F+—H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, Bs, m. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, 6aM, GBs, 0BE, LLB (HK), |.P

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, b, s, |p.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric, caust), cPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

559
HMITES
BElERE
(F/E - EFELERITHAEE)
BEiEfRE
(B ZE FARASTE)
FRERE
JEMITES
SFER R ITEE BES M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, AP, (Architect), MHKIoD
BIERITES
ERERES 18t GaM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
E#REE
S B SZ 18+ P, 8BS, P,
B &7 1 25 45 Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
BB R4 caust), CPA (Practising), CFE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION B &#t

Asat 11 March 2021 RZZ2-—£=A+—H
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Salla Tin (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

BEREET
BERM ST (Z/F)
BREB/L
&R E
BEERTE
FRIESE (HE)
RBZEE
BINEKRE (Z/FE)
STERRTE
BEFSE
&R E
BRHEL
EEREE
FRIBIE (HE)
HMEEE
BREEL (Z/E)
STERRIE
BHR#Egt
ERERAN ok
AMER T (F)
TEERERET
BEERE (FF)
BHRHEL
FRERE
HITEEEZES®
BRVE L (Z/F)
FREBERE



As at 11 March 2021 RZE-_—£=F+—H

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liu Head of Property Development

Mr. Luk Chi Chung Head of Finance Management

and Information Technology
Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine Head of China Budget Hotel

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil Head of Project Development

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim Head of China Property

Development

Ms. Hung Shuk Yee Head of Procurement

Management

Ms. Salla Tin Head of Human Resources

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung, Peter  Senior Project Manager

Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina Accounting Manager

Ms. Wong Yuk Man Accounting Manager

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu Manager of Finance Management

and Information Technology
Mr. Wong Ming Kwong Maintenance Manager

Mr. Leung Kin Pong Project Manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 & & #}

Asat 11 March 2021 KZ2=—#=F+—H
SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant

P.C. Woo & Co.
AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

BANKERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Hong Kong Branch

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

f2Em

HYMT1REMAT

eI B AR 12BN B F5 P
L IEEXESIE= 1T
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&%) - BA=PRS G5tEmTT

SR T B AR 1% BT

iR1T
BAIRITE R DT
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ERIR1T (B5B) BRAF
BAERITHERAT

Mg =FUARITEBDT
R EIRTAIRAT
EFEXKFIRITEARAT
ETIRIT (B8) BRAT

&8 LSESRITAERAT
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As at 11 March 2021 RZE-_—£=F+—H

REGISTERED OFFICE
23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7723
Email: info@Ichi.com.hk

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
| 8A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@)]chi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@]Ichi.com.cn

FOSHAN NANHAI OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

| Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town

Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@lchi.com.cn

FOSHAN SANSHUI OFFICE
Room 1638-1639, Block 3, Sanshui Square

9 Zhangbian Road, Xi Nan Street
Sanshui District, Foshan
Guandong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8778 6929

Email: foshan@lchi.com.cn

s SR

&

EaEh =gk
BIESRITRO=+=18

E5E 1 (852) 29837777 fHE : (852)2983 7723

EEER . info@Ichi.com.hk

MR R
FREEM ™
HEE
IRHRE==N5%
AMTIZ IBA =

5T 1 (862083758993 fEE : (8620) 8375 8071

B . guangzhou@lIchi.com.cn

LEEMERE
HE ST

FARPEER = /\J\5R
BIEERAFL3I105E

EiE 1 (8621)6359 1000 fHE : (8621) 6327 6299
EH © shanghai@Ichi.com.cn
HILEEENER

PEERE

HLHEEE
MLEEA e IR RN & ER
BER—

RN TEE —HA

BEE © (86757) 6386 0888 fEHE : (86757) 6386 2218

FEEL © foshan@Ichi.com.cn
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AR fTiE RIS 9 5%

=K% 3 1638-1639
B | (86757) 8778 6929
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEKEREEAEGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 81, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26
February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the
Company since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves
as the Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship
in any other public listed companies in the previous three

years. Mr. Liu is the uncle of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA, MSc.

aged 54, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a
Master degree in Economics from the University of London,
specialising in Finance and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu
oversees the Company’s strategic development, project
implementation and business operations. Mr. Liu also served
as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
(was appointed on 30 October 2020), a member of the
Executive Management Committee as well as director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a
nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

MITESR

BIgkE

Nt+—% ' BZE—tE/N\BALBIEH
EXRATNEETEEFE - AR BR&ER
“E-OFE"AZ+ A HEHEATR
SEFEKERITRERE  B—NtT
FRREIRILEERATRTRNITES °
BRETEERAATDRNITEEZEERK
REZEGIFEURETHEB AT ZE
E BREEEEREREZSHE R
AZEEBEREMMERAT ZESE bk
FIEEEN > RBE=FR > BX4E
M2 BEEREM EHTARATRES
MEFRKE BAERESELEEZMN
A o

EEEkE

BA., MSc.

E+Wpk B—ANtFEEZEAS
ABRRITES RZZEZENFE/N\BEEB
EZER/TRFEREFEEE - BEXRE
REMARBEEERITEMU  TE/M
BREGKERR BREREEERRN
A REREE - HEWIT URBERKE
B BARERBTHERARABEEE
BAEZEEZIF (R _EEF+A=+
HEZE) ITEELZEGLZEURSE
FTHEBABZES - FREBMEES
RBEAZFR > BXRENRBEEEMAA
fth LB ARATEREERAEFTHE - i
BENEREZER -



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 58, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive
Management Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law
degree, a Master of Business Administration degree and
Postgraduate Diploma in Construction and Real Estate. He is
also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Lee had worked in an international
accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee has over thirty
years of experience in corporate finance and accounting. Mr.
Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed as
director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible for the
Company’s finance and secretarial matters. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lee did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.

WITESE ()

FRERE

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in
CRE

E+N\RE BERATRITESRATW
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EEZEEZEURBEERATETH
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THERETS2UKRERKREMESF
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FAREHMAEEREE - FEAETE
MAERRE B EEBEEEH AR IIE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEKEREEAEGN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect),
MHKIoD

aged 58, served as Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of
Architecture degree. He is an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under the
Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal
Institute of British Architects, an associate member of Royal
Australian Institute of Architects, a member of Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada and an associate member of
American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive
Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni Association
and a Committee Member of the University of Manitoba
Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from
1997 to 2003, he was a Director and Council Member of the
Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr.
Kho is also a Committee Member of the Professional
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as
an Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce and Director of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Kho did not hold any directorship in

any other public listed companies in the last three years.

FRITES

BFERREE

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,
Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIloD
E+N\ B-E——FHLAEHES
TABFFRITEZERMBETAELF
FNEEERIRREEERE - 5TRE
BEAERTREARZLIBURBERRLT
B - th2ZBWRGI T ZRAITAL (B
SEM) R R EEMEE ARG T 2 s fER
i BEERMBEEE > AEERE
EMBEEs  BNEREEMBTE
B> MEAEZXBEMBEETENEE
BEMBEEE - FREER—NN\N
FE-ANZEHBHENZERBEE
ARERRENTEZERMERARLTE
RERKEZE IN-ANEEEZ
TE-FHRBEHEEBECELEE
EREE -HFEREB_ZTNFEEE
FERREMEREEEALTEZEES
Boltsh FRER_Z—tFESE
HEARERSEGESAEREER
EHEESARADES - FLAKE
B RBE=ZFR > FRELREHE
EREM EHARABEEEAESH
FZ o



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now
serving as a Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
is a practising solicitor and the Consultant of Messrs. P.C.
Woo & Co. He is also serving as Chairman of The Insurance
Authority. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary
President and Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President
of International Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to
his directorship in the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in China Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (Formerly known as China
Resources Enterprise, Limited), The Hong Kong and China
Gas Company Limited, K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An China Investments
Company Limited and Towngas China Company Limited, all
being public listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng’s other
directorship in public listed companies in the last three years
includes Kader Holdings Company Limited. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any directorship, whether in
Hong Kong or overseas, in any other public listed companies

in the last three years.

BiIERITES

BREEL

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), |.P.

t+—8 R—NWNANENBEZREA
RARBIIEHITES IR ABAR AR
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EI7RET > WHREREEEERERE - B
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEKEREEAEGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 81, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London
respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975
and in Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur
Au & Co., a firm of solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is
a Notary Public and was a member of the Notary Public
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School Management
Committee Member of the Clementi Secondary School. He
now serves as legal adviser to the Association of Hong Kong
Nursing Staff (previously named as the Association of
Government Nursing Staff) and The New Territories North
District Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District Governor of Rotary
International District 3450 (Hong Kong/Macao/Mongolia) in
1990-1991. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Au did not hold any
directorship in any other public listed company in the last

three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is
serving as a member of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the Vice
Chairman of Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, this
is a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has extensive experience in the catering
industry, as well as property management and development.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison
University in 2004. As for the community service, Dr. Ma was
the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year
2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the Chief President of Hong Kong Chamber
of Commerce, Qianhai. He also serves as the Vice Chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Vice President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce and the Executive Director of China
Overseas Friendship Association. On | July 2015, Dr. Ma was
appointed to Justices of the Peace by The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEKEREEAEGN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 60, was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now
serving as a Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from London
School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’
of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory
services. Mr. Cheng is currently an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited,
CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring International Holdings
Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited, Somerley
Capital Holdings Limited, Kidsland International Holdings
Limited and C.P. Pokphand Co. Limited, all of the
abovementioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cheng was also an Independent Non-executive Director
of C.P. Lotus Corporation, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange which was privatised on 29 October 2019,
from 2004 to 29 October 2019 and DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, from 3 November
2015 to 29 May 2020. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has
not held any directorship in any other public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. TONG TSUN SUM, ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from
Macquarie University, Australia. He is a member of CPA
Australia, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand. He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, the Governance Institute of
Australia and the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tong did not hold any
directorship in any other public listed company in the last
three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 53, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant, holding
Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
thirty years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance
Management and Information Technology Department.

MS. EVA LIU
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 57, Head of Property Development. Ms. Liu is a
Chartered Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in
Architecture from the University of Cambridge, and Property
Valuation And Law from the City University of London. She
was in architectural practice in England before joining the
Company in 1999. She is the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEKEREEAEGN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 46, Head of China Budget Hotel. Ms. Yan joined the
Company in 2007. Ms. Yan was educated in Vancouver,
Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked
with various mainland companies at senior management post
for leading and handling numerous successful real estate
projects including the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top
residential villa projects in Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has
extensive experience in business club operations both in
Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in charge of the
Company’s budget hotel business.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 57, Head of Project Department. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years
of experience as a practicing architect in both UK and Hong
Kong. Mr. Pan joined the Company in 2006.

MR. JAN KWOK WA, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 52, Head of China Property Development. Mr. Jan joined
the Company in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with
over twenty years of construction and project management
experience representing Clients, Consultants and Contractors
on both private sector and government funded projects in

China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

MS. HUNG SHUK YEE

aged 56, Head of Procurement Management. Ms. Hung holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration of the University of
Hull. She has over twenty years of experience in general
administration, procurement and facilities management in the
banking sector. Ms. Hung joined the company in 2016.

MS. SALLA TIN

aged 54, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Tin holds a Master
Degree in Human Resources Management of Macquarie
University, Australia and has over twenty years of experience
in human resources management in the banking sector. Ms.

Tin joined the Company in 2018.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BEBAFAZTES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general
meeting of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the
“Company”) for the year 2021 (“2021 AGM”) will be held at
27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong on Thursday, 20 May 202[ at |1:00 a.m.
for the following purposes:

To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial
statements together with reports of the directors and of
the auditor of the Company for the year ended 3|
December 2020.

To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.25 per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2020 Final Dividend”).

To re-elect (a) Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, (b) Mr. Lee
Wai Hung, (c) Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and (d) Mr.
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric as directors of the Company.

To fix the directors’ remuneration for the year ending 31
December 2021.

To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or

without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

6.

“THAT:

(2) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in paragraph (c) of this resolution)
of all the powers of the Company to buy-back
shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any
other stock exchange on which the shares of the
Company may be listed and which is recognised by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose,
subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any
other stock exchange (as applicable) as amended
from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;
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7.

(b) the aggregate number of shares of the Company

()

which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(2)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in paragraph (d) of this resolution)
of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and
any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company) which
would or might require the exercise of such
power(s) during or after the end of the Relevant
Period, be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BEBAFAZTES

(b)

()

(d)

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures,
notes and any securities which carry rights to
subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the
exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant

Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted, issued and
dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted, issued and dealt with (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i)
a Rights Issue (as defined in paragraph (d) of this
resolution); (ii) the exercise of any rights of
subscription or conversion under any warrants,
bonds, debentures, notes and any securities of the
Company which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an issue
of shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to any options granted
under any share option scheme adopted by the
Company; (iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends
or similar arrangement providing for the allotment
of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company from time to
time; or (v) specific authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval shall

be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the

earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company; or

(b)

(©)

(d)
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(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be
held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to the
holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as
at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements
of any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory applicable to the

Company).”
“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 6

and 7 set out in the notice convening this meeting being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to
Ordinary Resolution No. 7 set out in the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the
addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate
number of shares of the Company bought back by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to
Ordinary Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice
convening this meeting, provided that such extended
amount of shares so bought back shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate number of issued shares of the Company as
at the date of passing of this resolution.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING B E & F

9. To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
Liu Lit Chi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2021
Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is the holder of two
or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need
not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the
Company's Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3. Record dates of entitlements of the members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
2021 AGM to be held on Thursday, 20 May 2021, whose name should be recorded in
the Company’s shareholders book on Thursday, 20 May 2021. The Register of Members
of the Company will be closed from Friday, 14 May 2020 to Thursday, 20 May 2021,
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2021 AGM, all
share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be
lodged with the Company'’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 May
2021.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2020 Final Dividend,
whose name should be recorded in the Company's shareholders book on Friday, 28
May 2021. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
26 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or
separately must be lodged for registration with the Company’s Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 25 May 2021.

4. The registration for attending the above meeting will start at 10:30 a.m. on Thursday, 20 May
2021.
5. The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any inconsistency, the

English version shall prevail.

6. If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is in force at
or at any time after 8:00 a.m. on the date of the meeting, the meeting will be postponed or
adjourned. The Company will post an announcement on the Company website (www.lchi.com.
hk) and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) to notify shareholders of the date, time and
place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm Warning Signal is in
force. Shareholders should decide on their own whether they would attend the meeting under
bad weather condition bearing in mind their own situations.

7. A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-election of the
directors of the Company, (ii) general mandates for the buy back and issue of shares of the
Company and (iii) Precautionary Measures for the Annual General Meeting will be sent to
shareholders today along with the Company’s 2020 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors: Mr. Liu Lit
Chi (Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy
Managing Director) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung; Non-executive Director: Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and
Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung
Ming, John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum, Eric.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
TEEZKRTEERRE

Closing Price per Share SR B 9
Last Trading Date Closing Price Market Capitalization March 2019 to December 2020 2
of Each Month per Share i ;@QEEE:S:@H:E 0
SAREXAA SREHE (HK$ in million 3
(HKS %%) BETET) E
31/1/2019 12.08 4,573 5
wn
a5
28/2/2019 12.66 4,793 E
I
0
29/3/2019 13.88 5,255 o
m
x
30/4/2019 13.68 5,179 k.
o
31/5/2019 11.98 4,535 -
>
d
28/6/2019 12.40 4,694 g
]
31/7/2019 11.90 4,505 g
&
30/8/2019 10.82 4,096 ﬁ
=] =] 0 - ﬁ
30/9/2019 1038 3,930 -l W W e K
31/10/2019 10.76 4,074 4 H HE S E
29/11/2019 10.70 4,051
31/12/2019 10.64 4,028

Market Capitalization &
31/1/2020 10.02 3,793 B
HK$ in Million B%EET

28/2/2020 9.26 3,506 6000
31/3/2020 7.79 2,949
29/4/2020 7.83 2,964 S
29/5/2020 6.72 2,544
4,000
30/6/2020 7.06 2,673
31/7/2020 6.57 2,487
3,000
31/8/2020 6.61 2,502
30/9/2020 6.29 2,381 2000
125
30/10/2020 6.22 2,355 :
B
30/11/2020 6.79 2,571 R
31/12/2020 7.04 2,665 A e 828 948 -
0 ~ ~ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ o
I
4
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LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
ErEEEBEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E-Z-TF+_F=+—HLFE

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED OTHER INVESTORS

ERERARAT EREEARAR Hitig&#&

18.86% 34.95% 46.19%

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED
*ERIREFARAR

Property Investment In(\)/‘t’eesrtﬁaesnt Property Development Property Management Trading & Manufacturing Hotel Business

nERA MR NEYR NEEE HARNE BEEE

Liu Chong Hing Maanshan Gaoke ONE-EIGHT-ONE
Property Management Magnetic Material Hotel & Serviced
s Loaia o & Agency Limited Company Limited Residences
BRSO g e LB E BAENEEERAE B LERE A ONE-EIGHT-ONE

o (BhLFaE) BRam e BEREHALE

100% 50% 90% 100% 51.54% 100%

Japan Higashi The Grand Riviera
Chong Hing Bank Centre Matsuyama Foshan Nanhai

Elegance Garden Guangzhou Wealth Good

N : Property Management
Cho;ﬂél;i;mre Logistics Centre Foshap;Sanshul Company Limited
= BEBIMRSL (f; m*f%) BMTHHF
= WEEBERAR

100% 50% 90% 100% 100%

Hanting
Express-Guangzhou
Yue Xiu Pan Fu

Japan Kakegawa

EERERMNESREE

Japan Hadano
Logistics Centre
BERBWRRL

Fairview Court
=EEH

100% 50%

Australia Manufacturing
Plant
N E

Chong Hing Square
BIEES

100% 50%

Chong Hing Finance Center

Shanghai
LiERIEERPL

100%

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited  * EREEFEHERAFARAF L



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP mEBEFEZY)EXK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HLEE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
FEEEEZ B RER HREERER
it WEED (EBR) (FHR) RERR

Investment properties
REWNF
Hong Kong:

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre 100% 7,100 110,000 0
24 Des Voeux Road Central
BIERAT A
EEE R

2. Chong Yip Centre 100% 32,400 54,000 c/p*
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
s
EEETI00-404 55
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3. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
EEH
RIEEIR

4. The Westwood 10% - 221,900 c/P
8 Belcher’s Street
FAER
SRR FH05R

411,900

Kowloon and New Territories:

NFERAR

5. Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 C
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
AIEES
B A FREI5E

6. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 I/P
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
ERTIEXE
DR E364-3665

EYHEXRTHEES N

7. Chatham Place 10% - 61,000 c/p
388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom
iR
AL RUE I 3085%

251,200

& Under Renovation £ TR#ETH

HETHELTE & |



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP TmEBEFEZY)EXK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&+-F=+—HLEE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
HEEEREZ B RER HREEAER
it e (FEBR) (FHR) RERE

Investment properties
RENF

People’s Republic of China:
PEARHAE -

8. Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000 C
No. 288 Nanjing Road West 413,000
Huang Pu District 180,000 P
Shanghai
AIEEREHL
L
FRFRR 18055

9. The Grand Riviera 90% - 182,000 C
West of Luocun 73,000 S
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
ZgNiEE
Il
MmEE
MLEENLEERR
WRE R

951,000

Hotel land and building
BELHRET
Hong Kong:

B

10. ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & 100% 10,800 184,000 H
Serviced Residences
181-183 Connaught Road West
ONEEIGHT-ONESES /& R AR =\ 6
FHEER181-1835%

)
®
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Interest in >
the property Approximate Total gross m
attributable site area floor area >
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use 5
FEEEEZ B R ER HREEER «
L Wi (FEAR) (FHR) LIRS FRiE T
Investment properties (Joint Ventures) ﬁ
REWE (BETLE) g
Japan: i
A% : ke
z
o
11.Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 W Z
296-1,294-1,301-2, 301-1, 300-1, 5
299-1,302-1, 295-1, 2
Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi, »
. o
Saitama Prefecture =
AR -
15 £ R oz Shingo, g
296-1,294-1, 3012, 301-1, 3001, 299-1, 3021, 295-1
12.Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 509,000 457,000 W
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka
Prefecture
AR
iS5 Shobugaike 10255
13.Hadano Logistics Centre 50% 53,700 104,000 W
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa
Prefecture
RHYIRA O
2| & &= %7 Soyo, Aza Hoihato, 548-1
754,600
Australia
14.589-599 Torrens Road, St Clair, South Australia 50% 319,800 161,600

129

EYHEXRTHEES

HETHELTE & |
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP TmEBEFEZY)EXK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&+-F=+—HLEE

Interest in
the property  Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use Status
REEEEZ BB ER BREEEER
ik WEED (FER) (FHER) bizkicdii) s TREE
Properties under development
BRPYF
Hong Kong:
B
15. Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po ~ER TER  tElf
KT A%
1540 R
People’s Republic of China:
HEAREAE -
16.  Elegance Garden 90% 362,300 1,170,000 R Construction in progress
Plot No.2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao 14,000 C mIETH
Xinan Jiedao, Sanshui Qu 321,000 P
Foshan
HIERE
Hlm=KkE
FRATERR A ER AR
1,505,000

C=Commercial % H=HotelB/E I=Industrial ¥ P=CarPark E{Z R=Residential {t%& 0=0ffice EZ1&
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities € fff & B 4% W=Warehouse &&



SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION K ERE il

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 11 March 2021
HERENR=-E=-—%=8A+—8
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

0
0
2
0
Fd
3
>
z
O
E S YN g
Interim Results : Announced on 6 August 2020 ﬁ
for six-month ended 30 June 2020 o
BE_ZT_TF,A=+HL BER"E_ZFN\ABLM E
MBS Z A 3
r4
Annual Results : Announced on | | March 2021 3
for year ended 31 December 2020 2
BE_E_BE+-_A=+—HIL BR=E=—F=A+—BAM 3
FEIRERE 2
5B
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING =
RERAE 4
Annual General Meeting : To be held on 20 May 2021 g
RRBEXRE R _E_—FHA-+HET
Latest time to lodge transfer forms : 4:30 pm on |3 May 2021
EXBR XA REHAR —E—FRR+=HTFOEE=+S
Closure of Register of Members : From 14 May 2021 to 20 May 2021
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive)

to attend and vote at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting)

HiEMmERMNBRESLFE _E_—FFR+WORAE_ZE”_—FHA"+H
(RERRHE_T_—F (BEMXEEER)
REBFERERIKZR)

CASH DIVIDENDS

RERS

Interim cash dividend 2 HK$0.15 per share

FHRERE BB 0.157T
Paid on : Il September 2020
X{TEHA —EB_ZFAR+—H

Proposed final cash dividend : HK$0.25 per Share

BRI SRS SRA0.257T
Payable on : 4 June 2021
<+ BHA —ZT_—FXAWmA
Ex-dividend date of final dividend : 24 May 2021 31
P e —FHEA=+MA .
Latest time to lodge transfer forms ) 4:30 pm on 25 May 2021 o
ERIBR X4 &% AR ' _E_—FHFR_+RHTFOER=1SH :
Closure of Register of Members ) From 26 May 202| to 28 May 2021 E

(for purpose of ascertaining ‘ (both days inclusive) _

entitlements to receive
the final dividend) I

HEMERMNBRETFE — B —FRRA+AAEZE_—FHAZFN\E =
(ﬁiﬁ%%m%%ﬂ%) (BEMXEEEAR) 5

&




SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION K ERE

Share Registrars and transfer office Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

w
N
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RINESCRERE

Share listing
ARE i hE

Stock Code

B AR SR

Board lot

BEE

No. of issued ordinary share
BETHBERRMNHE
Company’s e-mail address

NE)EEMAE

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE KB ER A

183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BERAPRESFTLARAT
BEREFERKER—/N\=5
PO+ tEiE—t——FE—t—/ 5

The Company’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
TABRRENBEMERZAERAF
]

00194

00194

2,000 shares
2,000 fig

378,583,440 shares
378,583,440 %

info@Ichi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.Ichi.com.hk

B FEERETREE/VE

BRERER _+HsRRIERITHRO =12
% | (852) 2983 7779

f£H : (852) 2983 7723

#8E  http://www.Ichi.com.hk




Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I AZENETER

-
mEETmR
[ |

ARG EE K
Hith 2 mlRm*

REMBIRRTE
IrEEmEER
mERERER
AR E MBS RARMTEE




w
A

0207 14Od3Y IVNANNY | @3LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT L Z BT & =

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 140 to 264, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 3| December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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REI40E 264 ENER BB XEBRAE]
(U T8 T&ERQR)) REMBAT LT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as they represented 60% of the Group’s total
assets, combined with the judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment properties
are located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The carrying amounts of investment properties
amounted to HK$9,000,490,000 as at 3| December 2020 and
a loss on changes in fair value of HK$136,196,000 was
recorded in the profit for the year then ended.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method, income capitalisation method and residual method,
which are dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions in
respect of prevailing market conditions such as unit sale rate,
reversion yield, monthly market rent, gross development value

and estimated project development cost.

MBS HIE

B FEEREHFINERHIE
BAHTRERSMHERERNEARAE
ENEH - GEFHREEHFASEAEE
REMBRRRE AR RFETEERN -
HAFENELEERREHEBHER -

REMEME

BB EGEARRETEE
ThEREM BSEEAEE%  ERFRHA
BEATEERMVAE - HMmEE R
FBIRRMIE 4FTIRE > REYEMNRS
BRPEANREME (XA TEFEBFRE)
REYER_S-_EF+-"A=+—H
B9 BR 1 {8 2 78 15 9,000,490,000 7 » MELE
#Z B I FEE R W st A B 136,196,000
TR AT EEZEEIS

MINARE M FFIMRME4FRE > SEREB
REMEDRBILGEREEZEER (U
TR ML ERR ) PREF AR QT EET
AR FRERNEERMNEZBAZH
HBENAREHHERRMEE 14 HETD
REAEZLERE - R BERNEERRI
EEE HBURRRITHBRENET
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1% HERNOERE - EAHEMRS
MEREBEKRBEFEBERAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT L Z BT & =

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT
MATTER
Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

*  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the Valuer;

*  Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions to assess if the adopted approach

is appropriate for the respective properties;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methods
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong and the PRC; and

*  Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including
unit sale rate, reversion yield, monthly market rent, gross
development value and estimated project development
cost by comparing these estimates to entity-specific
information and market data based on our knowledge of

the property markets.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT L Z BT & =

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, || March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&afEmk
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE
2020 2019
ZEITE —ZNE
NOTES HKS'000 HK$000
i3 BT BETT
Revenue Wi 5
Contracts with customers EREH 364,569 848,844
Rental income LA 320,423 354,999
Interest and dividend income FIERIREMA 86,630 72,665
771,622 1,276,508
Direct costs BiEME (324,680) (562,561)
446,942 713,947
Other income HA 28,577 12,747
Administrative and operating expenses T REERS (217,352) (231,158)
Other gains and losses Hihlis K E518 7 (12,598) 108,662
Finance costs R 8 (43,171) (45,265)
Share of results of joint ventures FribaEhEEE 44,218 32,191
Profit before tax PRIRATER] 246,616 591,124
Income tax expense Rttt 9 (73,106) (144,655)
Profit for the year FEEET 10 173,510 446,469
Profit for the year attributable to: AEEGFIDER
Owners of the Company AATRR 162,560 429,984
Non-controlling interests R RS 10,950 16,485
173,510 446,469
Basic earnings per share SRERRR 13 HK$#1%0.43 HK$#11.14




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #rEfEm Rk EM 2 mE =S

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZZE-T&F+ZF=+—HILEE E
2
0
2020 2019 =
ZEITE —ZNE -
HK$'000 HK$000 =
BT BETT 3
Profit for the year KEEHR 173,510 446,469 2
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hittzm () % g
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ FE@EHHHEZEmk2BER - ﬁ
Fair value losses on investments in equity BATEES ARMEEKEZ
instruments at fair value through other EETAATEESE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (97,481) (12,996)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to B o BN P Rm ik 2B .
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of MBI EBMEE 2 ERER
foreign operations 330,380 (95,301)
Share of other comprehensive income (expense) Pt A& ¥ HMPEKE (i)
of joint ventures 2,804 (12)
Other comprehensive income (expense) rEEHM2ERE (FH) (%)
for the year (net of tax) 235,703 (108,309)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERHRGRE 409,213 338,160
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EENEEEDER |
Owners of the Company PUNCIE 384,282 326,270
Non-controlling interests ElZ e 24,931 11,890
409,213 338,160
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #x& B ik &

As at 31 December 2020 RZE_F£+-F=1+—H

2020 2019
—ECEE “Z-NE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BETT AT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties REME 14 9,000,490 8,771,446
Property, plant and equipment M  BE Rkt 15 1,395,632 1,457,320
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,879 10,757
Interests in joint ventures BECEER 18 334,918 307,843
Investments in securities EHIRE 19 468,547 543,952
Fixed bank deposits with more than three BFAZER%IEZ
months to maturity when raised EHRR1TER 23 48,598 -
Deferred tax assets BLEREEE 29 20,608 27,472
11,274,672 11,118,790
Current assets MEEE
Properties under development for sale FHERRTME 17 1,014,408 895,424
Properties held for sale FHEYE 17 584,077 686,117
Inventories e 20 25,753 25,455
Trade and other receivables B 5 REM IR 21 80,924 84,174
Contract costs BRI 22 - 3,815
Investments in securities ESRE 19 20,598 18,097
Taxation recoverable A EfRER - 27
Fixed bank deposits with more than three BFAZER BT
months to maturity when raised EHRITER 23 62,350 13,284
Bank balances and cash BTERRES 23 1,876,768 2,039,861
3,664,878 3,766,254
Current liabilities Pt )=
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MR 24 399,334 448,258
Lease liabilities HERR 25 2,710 4,837
Contract liabilities aHaGE 26 771 46,965
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR 28 1,808 7,065
Taxation payable FEfIHRR 33,370 40,790
Borrowings — due within one year B — R—EREIH 27 480,469 491,350
918,462 1,039,265
Net current assets TMENEE S 2,746,416 2,726,989
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHEE 14,021,088 13,845,779
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Other payables H At TR 24 98,116 93,373
Lease liabilities HEAR 25 3,487 6,151
Borrowings — due after one year B — R—EREIH 27 993,376 1,018,384
Derivative financial instruments ERIFTETR 28 - 776
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 29 260,726 256,875
1,355,705 1,375,559

12,665,383 12,470,220




2020 2019
—ECEE “Z-NE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz BT AT
Equity it

Share capital &z 30 381,535 381,535
Reserves BT 12,196,132 12,012,500

Equity attributable to: RRAEDEH
Owners of the Company ERFRE 12,577,667 12,394,035
Non-controlling interests ST g 87,716 76,185
Total equity RefEiagE 12,665,383 12,470,220

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 264
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on || March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI
BIIERE
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I EFMAER TR

HRFE 40 E 264 B 2 i BB HRERERN
TE_—F=-HAt+—HESEESHER
BT YHTIALTRRE

MR. CHENG YUK WO

BERFAEE
CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e mEH K

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&—B—H

Profit for the year AEEET

Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEFAEMZERGE 2 B T A ATEESSE
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations MEBINEBEL 2 ERER

Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures Pk EEEHMPES T

Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMEESH

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year
Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

FEERE () K8
HRRENEE ARG HE
BRZANRZRE (5E12)

At 31 December 2019

RZE-hE+-B=1+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

FABRFREN
Property Investment Statutory Non-
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
MEELE RAE( EERER JFER
fRA& TR ] ] ER i Byl 5t fRER R 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BRFT BT BB BT BRI BRTFT BT BRI
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Fffta) (Fit5Eh) (Ff3kc)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (15,506) 160,203 29,062 8,806,747 12,332,773 64,295 12,397,068
- - - - - - 429,984 429,984 16,485 446,469
- - - (12,996) - - - (12,996) - (12,996)
- - - - (90,706) - - (90,706) (4,595) (95,301)
- - - - (12) - - (12) - (12)
- - - (12,996) (90,718) - - (103,714) (4,595) (108,309)
- - - (12,996) (90,718) - 429,984 326,270 11,890 338,160
- - - - - 31,956 (31,956) - - -
- - - - - - (265,008) (265,008) - (265,008)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (28,502) 69,485 61,018 8,939,767 12,394,035 76,185 12,470,220
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e mEH K

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

At 1 January 2020 RZE_2£—F—H

Profit for the year AEEET

Fair value losses on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEEFAEMZERGE 2 B T A ATEESSE
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations MEBINEBEL 2 ERER

Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures Pk EEREM2ERE

Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year FEEHEMPE (i) Wit

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividends to non-controlling interests

FEERE () K8

HRRENEE ARG HE
BRZANRZRE (fizE12)
XTI RERR R ZRE

At 31 December 2020

R-E_FF+_A=+—H




Attributable to owners of the Company

FAFRRAEN

Property Investment Statutory Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

MERER REEM HERER iR
223 YRt 1] i ER 1] bt 45t R 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BB AT BB BETR AT BB bt BB BT

(note a) (note b) (note c)
(Ff3ta) (FftzEh) (FftzEc)

381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (28,502) 69,485 61,018 8,939,767 12,394,035 76,185 12,470,220
- - - - - - 162,560 162,560 10,950 173,510
- - - (97,481) - - - (97,481) - (97,481)
- - - - 316,399 - - 316,399 13,981 330,380
- - - - 2,804 - - 2,804 - 2,804
- - - (97,481) 319,203 - - 221,722 13,981 235,703
- - - (97,481) 319,203 - 162,560 384,282 24,931 409,213
- - - - - 24,656 (24,656) = = =
- - - - - - (200,650) (200,650) - (200,650)
- - - - - - - - (13,400)  (13,400)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (125,983) 388,688 85,674 8,877,021 12,577,667 87,716 12,665,383

notes:

(a) Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional
interest in a subsidiary acquired during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2012.

(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment properties in
previous years.

(c) The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). In
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the
PRC.

(a) BRI EE TN et A=+ AL EREE_ T —E+ A=+ -ALEER-HANBARM AR BEREZNBARRMEE L HNEERARRAGZER
(b) NEEHRERBIARENER  HENE  BERRBATNEMELNHE

© HEEBREEREAAINTERBEADNRREFNER - REPEATE  AAANTENBADARS BN 0 RENEERTARRHEE  EEZRBERIZTATEMERN 0 AL o ]
BREARERERST ACRBHAETEANEESR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #&&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

2020 2019
ZEITE —ZNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Operating Activities LEED
Profit before tax FRARAT R 246,616 591,124
Adjustments for: R
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of REVEATEEEZSHER (W)
investment properties 136,196 (119,843)
Gain on transfer of property inventories to MEFREBERENENE
investment properties (81,350) -
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets BATEES A B eRERE
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ATHEESHWE (2,507) (3,356)
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative ERITETRATEEEE
financial instruments 18 5,972 465
Dividend income from investments RERSRA (34,760) (18,760)
Interest income FISWA (51,870) (53,905)
Share of results of joint ventures Pk EERER (44,218) (32,191)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREERTE 70,845 14,577
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREEERTE 5,013 4,845
Finance costs gl 43,171 45,265
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE&EWE « BER&EHE 1,840 314
Operating cash flows before movements in KRABERSEY LERTRE
working capital 294,948 428,535
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZIRGISRTERZ AL = 89,308
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R AMAEURRRTR 2 B 8,270 2,739
Decrease in contract costs BHRAZRD 4,061 16,046
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEMZEZ AL 150,644 130,465
Increase in properties under development for sale &R R4 2 1810 (61,318) (895,424)
Decrease in inventories FEEZRD 1,187 3,890
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables BHREMBEMERTRZ (5 &M (69,881) 256,403
Decrease in contract liabilities BRHEEZRD (49,219) (480,367)
Decrease in derivative financial instruments TEER T AR (12,005) -
Cash generated from (used in) operations EEBE (FTA) B 266,687 (448,405)
Income tax paid BIFEHR (68,240) (203,462)
Dividend received on investments BRERS 34,760 18,760
Interest received Bl 51,870 53,905
Net cash from (used in) operating activities TEEBFE (FIA) ZRE38 285,077 (579,202)




2020 2019
ZEITE —ZNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Investing Activities REEY
Addition of equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEESAHMZEREZ
e TEZIEm (23,706) (24,042)
Proceed from disposal of equity HERATBES AR MEERZZ
instruments at FVTOCI R T RMSHE = 51,120
Addition of financial assets at FVTPL BATES ARz SREEZIEM (15,608) -
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL  HERATEEIABE SRHEE 15,614 7,822
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEKRRE (9,722) (14,609)
Repayments from joint ventures BEREEN 19,947 17,323
Addition of investment properties REMEZIEM (73,670) (11,857)
Addition of properties under development BRAPYEZIEM = (89,016)
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more than ~ ZA=ER%ZIEZ
three months to maturity when raised EHRTER (110,092) (3,326)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than =R %I
three months to maturity when raised EHRTER 13,284 8,190
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFRAZRE (183,953) (58,395)
Financing Activities REED
New borrowings raised HEVS R 401,376 1,935,460
Repayments of borrowings BEfER (443,782) (1,284,386)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEEER (5,223) (5,018)
Dividends paid BRE (214,050) (265,008)
Interest paid on borrowings B ERFHES (41,150) (44,855)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities RUEIEE) (FRA) PRI 228 (302,829) 336,193
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeRRSSEER RV BE (201,705) (301,404)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —B—BZRERIRELEER 2,039,861 2,368,804
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMERhREE I HE 38,612 (27,539)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +-A=+—-HZHRERASSEER 1,876,768 2,039,861
Represented by: Bp:
Bank balances and cash BITEIRRE 1,876,768 2,039,861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual
report.

The principal activities of the Company are property
investment and investment holding. The principal activities of
the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes

41 and 18, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(‘“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT

YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to

References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and

the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for

the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual

period beginning on or after | January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS |
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”’) (CONTINUED)

NEW AND HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions?*
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Frameworlk?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2°

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

— Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 20202

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKFRSs

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are

accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and

measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique

equals the transaction price.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level I, 2 or 3 based on

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

* Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level |, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

*  has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that

have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net

assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the

equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a

joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint

venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the

Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is

included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. VWhen any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint

venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest

in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group

reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a

reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of

the relevant joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

*  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

* the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

* the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group

has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including allocation
of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (sale of properties and interior decoration
services), the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price

basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to

the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards

complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance

obligation is measured based on output method, which is to

recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance

in transferring control of goods or services.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s

performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that

the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it

would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the

customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.

Contract costs

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its interior
decoration contracts. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant standards, failing which it recognises an asset for these

costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

() the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the Group can specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future; and
(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption

to leases of land and building that have a lease term of 12

months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
e any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

* an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property and inventory are presented within “investment
properties” and “properties under development for sale/

properties held for sale”, respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

*  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

*  payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

*  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate

lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the

lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an

operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment

properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease

payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a

rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to

be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a

rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the

Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS |5 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components
are separated from lease component on the basis of their

relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under

HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to

fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial

disposal of the Group’s interests in joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HKS$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are

presented under “other income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related

restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS

requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or

deferred tax assets for investment properties that are

measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held

for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or

for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire

properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the

Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease

income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-
use asset is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor
classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period

in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and contract costs
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and contract costs to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant

cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets and contract costs (Continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets

capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group

assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets
related to the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable
standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised
as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related goods
or services less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been recognised as
expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs are then
included in the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to
which they belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of

that cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is

reduced to its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets and contract costs (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying

amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of

cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale/properties for
sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to
be sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development for sale/properties for sale are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the

sales.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Properties under development for sale/properties for

sale (Continued)

Properties under development for sale are transferred to

properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to
investment property when there is a change in use to hold the
property to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is
evidenced by the inception of an operating lease to another
party. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of

allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments

(including all fees and points paid or received that form an

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs

and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of

the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s

ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group

may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor

contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a

business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near term; or

C on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC]|

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly

represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’

line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected

credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade

and other receivables, fixed bank deposits with more than
three months to maturity when raised, and bank balances)

which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
[2-month ECL (“I2m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

instrument. In contrast,
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the

Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s)

that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks

of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

im o S R R MY 5

3. RURAMBHRREERTIEY
HEUER (48)

3.2 EEFHBE (8)

£RTH (48)

THEE (B)

EREERE (B)
(v) TEHAEERERZIERMES

BHEEBRZAEREOHRER Y
18 (AMENRBER AN REXRER
MO Z R E - BB RRENRIEZET
T E R E L SEE AR E AR -
TR EEBEZ G RREREREEE
MEZ#EE > B IREBMEZBREN
R BRI FETE °

—RME > BREEBEEARESHORE

NREBZFAASHNHREERELTER

FREAEN 2 IRE TR B 2 M EEE (%A
SRR E 2 B MAIRALIR) o

MBEEMEEZLEFERE SRIFE
WARREBEETMEENBREESS
BEBRAT AEBARREEREE
R A AN St o

FEBZEBAERAEMIANKREE

g E?JEM’{ELI& TR HE S
FE U AR TR I 1B RS 18 55 R AR FE ST AR FE SR B
BRSb o



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the

transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are

classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance

with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging

instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading

or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business

combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

* the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information

about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

c it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an

accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and

bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hedge relationship.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or

deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that are

measured using the fair value model, the directors of the

Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property

portfolios in Hong Kong and the PRC and concluded that (a)

the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong are not held

under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, (b) the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.

Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on

investment properties in Hong Kong, the directors of the

Company have determined that the presumption that the

carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the

fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying amounts of the

Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC are

recovered entirely through sale has been rebutted and the

deferred tax on the changes in fair value of those investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2020 at their
fair value, details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair
value of the investment properties was determined by
reference to valuations conducted on these properties by an
independent qualified professional valuer using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable
changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the changes in fair value reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the carrying
amount of these properties included in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The carrying amount of the
Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2020 is
approximately HK$9,000,490,000 (2019: HK$8,771,446,000).

Income taxes

As at 3| December 2020, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$179,001,000 (2019:
HK$191,234,000) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$700,592,000 (2019: HK$633,726,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the

period in which such a reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE 5. W=

(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM (i) BEREITSRNKBASE
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and the reconciliation of ZAEBIKANSIFKRERE &4

the revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts £ ZE IR ESEERHRNT !

disclosed in the segment information is as follows:

2020 2019
—ECEE ZE-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Property development MEER
— Sale of properties —WEHE 223,156 468,154
— Interior decoration services — ENEBIRF 2,812 273,781
Property management MEER 21,643 21,599
Trading and manufacturing BE RS 71,251 69,398
Hotel operation TBEASE 45,707 15,912
Revenue from contracts with customers HER AWM 364,569 848,844
Property investment (note) MERE (M) 320,423 354,999
Treasury investment HHRE
— Interest income — FIEIA 51,870 53,905
— Dividend income —REBA 34,760 18,760
Total revenue el 771,622 1,276,508

note:  Operating lease payments mainly includes base rental. Leases are negotiated for term ranging Wi SRAYONZIBAEEARS ROZBENRRA—EN\ENE
from one to eight years with monthly fixed rental. BEEHRS
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uz (48) 2
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM (i) BRELRFITSHANWASE (&) x
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS §
-
(CONTINUED) =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_EF+_B=+—HLEE :
- ]
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment development management  investment manufacturing operation Total
MERE MELR MEER MBRE ERRHE EEEE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BlETR
Sale of properties M - 223,156 - - - - 223,156
Interior decoration services ZREBIRE - 2,812 - - - = 2,812
Property management IESE - - 33,517 - - - 33,517
Trading and manufacturing ERREE - - - - 71,251 - 71,251
Hotel operation BB - - - - - 46,350 46,350
Eliminations on inter-segment &AL
transactions - - (11,874) - - (643) (12,517)
Revenue from contracts HER AN
with customers - 225,968 21,643 - 71,251 45,707 364,569
Property investment NERE 326,380 - - - - = 326,380
Interest income FIEWA - - - 51,870 - - 51,870
Dividend income REMA - - - 34,760 - - 34,760
Eliminations on inter-seqment  £EARRH
transactions (5,957) - - - - - (5,957)
Segment revenue PElE 320,423 225,968 21,643 86,630 71,251 45,707 771,622
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development  management manufacturing operation Total
MERRE MEERE BRRRE ST 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BT
Geographical markets MEHE
Hong Kong &EH - 21,643 - 37,709 59,352
PRC HE 225,968 - 71,251 7,998 305,217
Total &t 225,968 21,643 71,251 45,707 364,569
Timing of revenue recognition  FE:AINZSEF
A point in time H—HRE 223,156 - 71,251 13,360 307,767
Over time FEERE 2,812 21,643 - 32,347 56,802
Total &t 225,968 21,643 71,251 45,707 364,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

5.

W o (48)

() BERFITSRANKRADHE ()

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZT-NF+-B=+—HLEE
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  development management investment manufacturing operation Total
WERE WELR MEER MHRE BERAE BIELE fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BB BETFT BB BB BB
Sale of properties MEHE - 468,154 - - - - 468,154
Interior decoration services ZREBIRE - 273,781 - - - - 273,781
Property management UESE - - 34,528 - - - 34,528
Trading and manufacturing ESREE - - - - 69,398 - 69,398
Hotel operation BB - - - - - 15,996 15,996
Eliminations on inter-segment &AL
transactions - - (12,929 - - (84) (13,013)
Revenue from contracts HERRANRNE
with customers - 741,935 21,599 - 69,398 15,912 848,844
Property investment NERE 359,250 - - - - - 359,250
Interest income FIEWA - - - 53,905 - - 53,905
Dividend income REWA - - - 18,760 - - 18,760
Eliminations on inter-seqment  £EARRH
transactions (4,251) - - - - - (4,251)
Segment revenue NElE 354,999 741,935 21,599 72,665 69,398 15,912 1,276,508
Property Property Trading and Hotel
development management  manufacturing operation Total
MERRE MEEE BRRRE BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Geographical markets HESE
Hong Kong E# - 21,599 - 2,431 24,030
PRC i 741,935 - 69,398 13,481 824,814
Total st 741,935 21,599 69,398 15,912 848,844
Timing of revenue recognition  FE:AINESEF
A point in time H— s 468,154 - 69,398 2,342 539,894
Over time BEERE 273,781 21,599 - 13,570 308,950
Total &t 741,935 21,599 69,398 15,912 848,844




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the relevant properties specified in the contracts
are based on customer’s specifications with no alternative use.
Taking into consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
legal environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group
concluded that the Group does not have an enforceable right
to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment results in contract liabilities being recognised

throughout the property construction period.

The Group provides interior decoration services to these
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
construction services based on the stage of completion of the

contract using input method.

The Group’s interior decoration contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the construction
period. The Group requires customers to provide upfront
deposits, when the Group receives a deposit before
construction commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the

deposit.

A contract asset is recognised over the period in which the
construction services are performed representing the Group’s

right to consideration for the services performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

Property development (Continued)

All the interior decoration services are for periods of one year

or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the
operation of the properties which are payable by the tenants,
are recognised over time using output method when the
services and facilities are provided. The Group applied the
practical expedient in HKFRS by recognising revenue in the
amount to which the Group has right to invoice, since the
Group is entitled to bill a fixed amount in advance for each
month according to the terms of the relevant lease. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not

disclosed.

Trading and manufacturing

For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon
delivery.

Hotel operation

Hotel room revenue from customers is recognised over time
using output method when the service and facilities are
provided. All the hotel operation service are for periods of
one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not

disclosed.

Revenue from food and beverages is recognised when the

food and beverage are delivered to the customers.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SEEH

Information reported to the executive directors of the ZAARFIAPMITES > BIEELERKA >
Company, being the chief operating decision maker WMERZEHTZSERREMEERZ D
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resources allocation or #fHERl > JhiZEEBE TR HAVIEEMN
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods MRFEMHEADINEZE - TELEREKA
and services delivered or provided. No operating segments REEAEEZ ] 2HRDLER > HIES
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at B BIEREEDEIES HHEIE o

the reportable segment of the Group.
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Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments (&EBMBERELENFREESELE

under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows: BZzEBREEIEUT :

|.  Property investment — investment and letting of |. #XERKE —WEKERHEE
properties

2. Property development — development and sale of 2. X% E —MEZEKRHEE
properties

3. Property management — provision of property 3. #XEIE — REMESERY
management services

4, Treasury investment — dealings and investments in 4. BHMEKRE — B REMESMTAN

securities and other financial instruments REBREE

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of 5 EBZkEiE —HitERNEKRHEE
magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotel 6. JBERE — BEEERKENER
and food & beverage business e

LUHSETHRS S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im o S R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating and reportable segments.

SEEH (8)
SEWERES

ES VL

For the year ended 31 December 2020
Segment revenue
Comprising:
— revenue from customers
— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses
Loss on changes in fair value of investment properties
Gain on transfer of property inventories to

investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative

financial instruments

HE-F-SE+-A=+-OLER
Sk

i

— BRI

— £ENZS ()
HENS
RENEATEESHER
WG EBBEREN R

BATEESARZZEHMEEATEEESNE
TRITETIRZATEELDER

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEKRREZESE
Net exchange (losses) gains ERF (518 &

Segment profit (loss) AEER (518)

Finance costs MEHA

Share of results of joint ventures FritEEEERE

Profit before tax PRI An R

note:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices.

Wi  EEARBRRTHERR

UTRABERKREBIE 2SR



Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment ~ manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MmEiRE MERRE MEEE MBRE BARRE HEEEE SR : ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it #ETR Pt AT #Etrn #ETR #ETT fitie BT
326,380 225,968 33,517 86,630 71,251 46,350 790,096 (18,474) 771,622
320,423 225,968 21,643 86,630 71,251 45,707
5,957 - 11,874 - - 643
(42,897) (234,267) (21,918) (41,382) (67,496) (123,969) (531,929) 18,474 (513,455)
(136,196) - - - - - (136,196) - (136,196)
- 81,350 - - - - 81,350 - 81,350
- - - 2,507 - - 2,507 - 2,507
- - - (5,972) - - (5,972) - (5,972)
(12) - - - - (1,828) (1,840) - (1,840)
(2,790) 1,414 (313) 49,242 - - 47,553 - 47,553
144,485 74,465 11,286 91,025 3,755 (79,447) 245,569 - 245,569
(43,171)
44,218
246,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEHEM (@)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) SHEWERES (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results U TARERNEB I EZ2AEB N E

by operating and reportable segments.

SES Ptk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Segment revenue

Comprising:
— revenue from customers
— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative

financial instruments

BE_F-NE+-A=+-HLEE
NENE
afE
—&Rlm
—&ERRS ()

BERX

RENMEATEEZY KD
BATEES AR EMEEATEEES Nn
TRITETIRZATEEEDER

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERREZEE
Net exchange (losses) gains ER% (518) W&

Segment profit (loss) R (518)

Finance costs B

Share of results of joint ventures PRt EtEEE

Profit before tax BRAD A
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
ES L MELR MEER BHRE BERRE BELE DR i a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BB BB BT BETT BB BB
359,250 741,935 34,528 72,665 69,398 15,996 1,293,772 (17,264) 1,276,508
354,999 741,935 21,599 72,665 69,398 15,912
4,251 - 12,929 - - 84
(136,197) (478,934) (20,572) (38,653) (63,769) (60,111) (798,236) 17,264 (780,972)
119,843 - - - - - 119,843 - 119,843
- - - 3,356 - - 3,356 - 3,356
- - - (465) - - (465) - (465)
(174) - - - (138) (2) (314) - (314)
(561) (7,846) 104 (5,455) - - (13,758) - (13,758)
342,161 255,155 14,060 31,448 5,491 (44,117) 604,198 - 604,198
(45,265)
32,191
591,124
note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. Wizt EERRZERITHEKER

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the ZEFENHE7 FEEERMAME Iz AE
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. E&stEEKMER o DEEF (B18) 57
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by/loss Rt AFTLEECEXBERMBEREZ
incurred from each segment without allocation of share of ER TR DEMBINZEN TS Z2EH
results of joint ventures and finance costs. In addition, the 8¢ b9 MIBERESLEEHMERE D
Group’s administrative costs are allocated to respective BT Ffi% K 2 TR 4 B3R 1B B £ 75
operating segments on the basis of revenue earned by DEHIMZNGZENRESEESE -
individual operating segment. This is the measure reported to ZAEBEBEMUIDFESEZBFEELERE
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and AZ2%# > HEFERDVEKRTZDER
performance assessment. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

6. SEEN(R)
SHEEERAR

UTRABERDEZTEREERER

by reportable segments: S
Segment assets REEE
2020 2019
k- et 5 —2NE
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT
Property investment MERE 9,256,391 9,006,316
Property development MERR 2,379,134 2,794,724
Property management MEER 2,171 3,709
Treasury investment MHRE 1,486,354 1,236,491
Trading and manufacturing BEREE 104,029 92,749
Hotel operation TGS 1,355,945 1,415,713
Total segment assets NEEERE 14,584,024 14,549,702
Taxation recoverable ELNEEN - 27
Interests in joint ventures BECEER 334,918 307,843
Deferred tax assets BEREEE 20,608 27,472
Consolidated assets REEE 14,939,550 14,885,044
Segment liabilities SiEaE
2020 2019
ZEI%E —Z-hE
HKS'000 HK$000
BT BETT
Property investment MERE 365,955 328,726
Property development LY EE 58,734 176,015
Property management MEEE 2,857 2,986
Treasury investment HBRE 2,929 8,974
Trading and manufacturing B REE 11,007 10,902
Hotel operation RS 64,744 79,822
Total segment liabilities NEaERE 506,226 607,425
Taxation payable FEfSHRR 33,370 40,790
Borrowings EEN 1,473,845 1,509,734
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 260,726 256,875
Consolidated liabilities Geaf 2,274,167 2,414,824

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated
to operating segments other than taxation recoverable,
interests in joint ventures and deferred tax assets. All liabilities
are allocated to operating segments other than taxation

payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

HERPERBRRDERPEER
BRI ATIREIIR TR - S E R XA RIE
EMEBEREI > FREEEIDEERS
D MEREMRR - (ERRIELEIRE
&R FRAREIINEEEHE -



6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. SEEN (R)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HthaEEH
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation Consolidated
EUES UES MHEE fEkE  HARWE R &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BT BT BETR BETR
Amounts included in the measure of ~ GiEENELER
segment results and segment NEREVEE!
assets:
2020 -3
Additions to non-current assets (note)  FEETEEEM () 78,210 19 12 - 3,450 928 83,392
Depreciation e 9,531 1,007 14 - 3,288 61,891 75,858
2019 2
Additions to non-current assets (note)  FEREBELM () 20,764 93,129 - - 5823 746 120,462
Depreciation & 9,975 m - - 2559 6,616 19422

note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred tax Wi  FRHEEROEASOLES SRTAREIRESE

assets.

Geographical information

EER

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and other AR&EFEZEFZUNBTERPFEEMME o

parts of the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing ABREAEERFELRESINREEZINEE
operations from external customers is presented based on the Rl GiRRKELRREMEZIR - BREA

location of the operations. Information about the Group’s f£EIEHREHEENERBILE ERFREM
non-current assets is presented based on the geographical EZ2%R o

location of the assets.

Revenue Non-current assets (note)
Wzs JERBEE ()

2020 2019 2020 2019
. . 3 “Z-hE ZE-%E “ZNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong 58 327,238 290,673 7,408,749 7,503,529
PRC HE 444,384 985,835 2,993,252 2,735,994

771,622 1,276,508 = 10,402,001 10,239,523

note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred tax ~ [ifif: FREEEFQEASCLES  SHTIARETRESE -

assets.

Information about major customers

FEERAEH

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31 #HE_Z_ZTF+_HA=+—HK_-Z
December 2020 and 3| December 2019 contributing over —hE+_"B=+—HILFEE » LERK

0% of the total operating revenue of the Group.

BERZBmMAERBEERDER
10% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hth s R 518
2020 2019
ZECEE —BNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of REVMEATEEES (B8R W&
investment properties (136,196) 119,843
Gain on transfer of property inventories to MEGFRBEEREYE NG
investment properties 81,350 -
Gain on changes in fair value of financial BATEES A Bz eREE
assets at FVTPL ATEEEDNG 2,507 3,356
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative ERMITETRZ ATE/ZEEHE
financial instruments (5,972) (465)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEYE « FERRHESE (1,840) (314)
Net exchange gains (losses) ERFlE (8518) 47,553 (13,758)
(12,598) 108,662
8. FINANCE COSTS g% S
2020 2019
k- - 5 —ZNE
HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT
Interest on borrowings: EAFIS .
Bank loans RITEM 40,127 43,709
Other borrowings HitfEmR 1,427 984
41,554 44,693
Interest on lease liabilities HERENS 296 410
Other interest expense HirFl 2 H 1,321 162
43,171 45,265
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FRrigiix it
2020 2019
ZECEE BhE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
The charge comprises: SHEE
Current tax: KEERIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BETER 11,297 12,945
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIEEFRER 1,399 98,182
12,696 11,127
Dividend withholding tax IR EFENHR 9,657 15,778
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEEE (B FREfE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMER (81 (130)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEIR RS (56) 389
(137) 259
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") FRE 1 S (ETR 40,223 15,502
Deferred taxation (note 29) IESERRE (Mf5E29) 10,667 1,989
73,106 144,655




9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. PRz (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AFEEZIREELZSIBRERMRRIRA
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as &#| Z ¥ERUIT:
follows:
2020 2019
> S 23 —ZNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Profit before tax FRiRADER 246,616 591,124
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% HIRZ16.5% (ZB—LE : 165%) 5tEZ
(2019: 16.5%) BRNER 40,692 97,535
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures Pt S EnEEE BT E (7,296) (5312)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose RAAINRERZRBEZE 42,857 15,380
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BRFMMAZRBRE (53,424) (33,328)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEEE (B8 TEEE (137) 259
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEEZ NG E 9,591 17,300
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses RARERMAZMBERZNBTE
previously not recognised (387) (856)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEERELSEZMBADFEREZ
operating in other jurisdictions e 7,616 30,570
PRC LAT Rl e AT 40,223 15,502
Tax effect of PRC LAT REIMEERZRBTE (10,056) (3.875)
Dividend withholding tax IR EFEMHR 9,657 15,778
Others Hith (6,230) (4,298)
Tax charge for the year AEEREZH 73,106 144,655
notes: Mt
(a) 0On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (@) RIE-N\F=AZ+-0 EBUALBET (ZT—LERHE (&
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill 1) (B75%) BHIER (MEHIER)) » ZEHIERSIATLEHERR
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two- REE o ZEER_E-\E=A-+/\REEMALR  LRKA%E
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will ERTE - RELENSRIE  CEREDERNE_EEBTIE
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group Bizs 5 MER-EEATHABAIER 659K - FHE
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a LRAGRRENENEIBRNABRER 6. BN EEREES o
flat rate of 16.5%.
The directors of the Company considered the amount involved upon implementation of the two- SRAEERS ) BHERFIGHNEMSIRNEBARSHBRE
tiered profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong WEREARMG - BENGREMEEE B ERRERH165%51H
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.
(b)  Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and ~ (b) BEA\RENBECEFMERE (CEMERE) REEMBRER
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: HEARE] > EIBATIRER 5% (ZB—NE 1 25%) °
25%).
(© The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements set forth  (¢) REFEREZRAANERRE  ~AEEERRTELMIEER - B

in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development projects and
the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.

THRERERARNRERENEREBENRIRENE KA
AR EEH DR ERE RN RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. xFEEGEF
2020 2019
ZECEE =y -
HKS'000 HK$000
AT BT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: AEEHEFNENBRTIIRE
Staff costs BT 128,487 139,662
Staff retirement schemes contributions, net of ETRMRBAMR IR URERR
HK$589,000 (2019: HK$22,000) forfeited A1 589,000 70 (ZB— N © #¥22,0007T)
contributions 4,734 4,364
Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) ST A4t (EIFEE/ME) 133,221 144,026
Auditor's remuneration TZENEME & 2,810 2,391
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BERRERE 70,845 14,577
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 5,013 4,845
Government grants (included in “other income”) BUFEEh (2357 TEMUAL) 15,700 -
Selling expenses (included in “administrative and ~ $5EB8% (A5 (TR ERL )
operating expenses") 1,039 3,989
and after crediting: IEtA
Gross rental income from investment properties KREMELREWA 320,423 354,999
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that & : EFREERESIRA Z R ENEEEER
generated rental income during the year (21,821) (25,968)
298,602 329,031

During the current year, the Group recognised government R ZEE » REEH L2019 E K =18
grants of approximately HK$15,700,000 in respect of COVID-  EERYEATF #Bh 49 A 15,700,000 7T » EH A
|9-related subsidies, of which approximately HK$ 11,880,000  #3#¥& | 1,880,000 7T £1 &5 & B [T (AU 7
relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong ¥ iB:t38I5R] o

Kong government.



1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND . EF - THEZRESME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2019: I1) BfNHEMLFI0R (ZZE—HFE 118)
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directors were as follows: EEZMNEWT :
Other emoluments
HitHE
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (notee)  contributions emoluments
£IBERN
R 1BEE BRIER
HE HithigF (Ftste) HENHEN i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BT BRI BETT
2020 —ECEE
Executive Directors (note a) BITEE (fista)
Liu Lit Chi BIE 300 9,516 - 559 10,375
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BE{E 200 5,933 - 391 6,524
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher [exbiczhing 65 2,687 - 129 2,881
Lee Wai Hung I 200 3,756 - 375 4,331
Non-executive Director (note b)  JEHITES (IftsEh)
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FEHR 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BUERITES (MaEo)
Directors (note )
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &R 300 - - = 300
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo ZRERAT 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEEH 300 - - - 300
Total 4t 2,565 21,892 - 1,454 25,911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

EF -THRIERESHE (B8)

Other emoluments

Hithii<
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note e) contributions emoluments
ES (il
Hik 2% BIREF
i3 HAtEF! (MizEe) Bl e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT

2019 —E-hE

Executive Directors (note a) BITES (MsEa)

Liu Lit Chi BaE 300 9,291 - 559 10,150

Liu Kam Fai, Winston BE{E 200 5,881 - 387 6,468

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher BRsE, 200 4,818 - 378 5,396

Lee Wai Hung R 200 3,709 - 371 4,280

Non-executive Directors (note b)  JEHITEZE (HizEh)

Liu Lit Chung RS 117 559 - - 676

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FEHR 300 - - - 300

Independent Non-executive BUFRTES

Directors (note c) (MisEc)

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 300 - - - 300

Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiRE 300 - - - 300

Ma Hung Ming, John BB 300 - - - 300

Cheng Yuk Wo ZRERAT 300 - - - 300

Tong Tsun Sum, Eric BEEH 300 - - - 300

Total st 2,817 24,258 - 1,695 28,770

notes: HizE:

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection withthe ~ (a) HgTEEzMEREERANRARAEBER 2 REER
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b)  The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of (b LRI ES e REEATATINBATES ZREER
the Company or its subsidiaries.

(© The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as  (¢) BRI ES M HREATARES ZREEH
directors of the Company.

(d)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five  (d) R AEARERAAESARAREHAL (BEES) ZER
highest paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join or upon joining the e EAMARERIMAREER 2 REISRERE - BE-SZ
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a director SE+ZAZH-BRIZ-NETZA=t-ALMEEE LR
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 ESHERAAETRENSHRS: -

December 2019.

(e) The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the individual ~ (e) HEZZRCSETA=+-ARZE-NE+ZR=t-HLAE
performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group for FEARRAMZRBRESHENRRER  LHAERFHZE
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. Bl

) The Group has been providing accommodation to the directors at no charge. The estimated ) FEE-EEERESRMEERE - Y EMNELEABIES,55,000

money value of the benefit in kind is HK$5,595,000 (2019: HK$6,001,000).

7o (23— H6,001,0007T) o



I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four directors (2019: four directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out as above. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 3|1 December 2020 of the
remaining one (2019: one) highest paid employee who is
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

. B THESRESME (&)

FATERLGESHESOENZE
E(CE-NE EBRESE) » HEFMH
BEIME - BE_ZT_ZTF+_H
=+—HLEFENHKHT—R(ZZE—AH
F.—R)eeHEE (LERATES
ITEAR ) ROEREMEE BN T -

follows:
2020 2019
—ECEE ZE-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Salaries and other benefits TEMEMEF 1,840 1,821
Performance related bonuses HBRFEENRE - -
Retirement scheme contributions RINEFIER 184 182
2,024 2,003

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

FENBFEFNRSHMNE TAHU
T EFMENTEER :

No. of employee

STAH
2020 2019

—ECEE —E-hE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001t E % #2,500,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r & B 55 3R &= i 55
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE
12. DIVIDENDS 12. R
2020 2019
ZECEE —BNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: ERBERDRZKRE :
Interim dividend paid for 2020 — HK$0.15 per share —Z - ZEBRHHREERBE0.157T
(2019: interim dividend paid for 2019 — HK$0.22  (ZZ—hE&E : ERZZS—NETHRE
per share) ShEE0.27T) 56,788 83,288
Final dividend paid for 2019 — HK$0.38 per share ~ —ZE—NEERAHRESRBL0387T
(2019: final dividend paid for 2018 — HK$0.48 (ZZ—NEF: BRZE—\EXRHEES
per share) A 0.487T) 143,862 181,720
200,650 265,008

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 3| December 2020 of HK$0.25
(2019: final dividend in respect of the year ended 3| December
2019 of HK$0.38) per share, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$94,646,000 (2019: HK$143,862,000) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by

the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$162,560,000 (2019: HK$429,984,000) and on 378,583,440
(2019: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 3| December 2020 and 3| December 2019.

ERBREHERE BE_ZS SR
+ZA=+—HUEFEZXRERESRK
BB T(ZE-—NE  HEZZT—H
F+ZA=+—HLEEEZXRERES
B B 1£0.387T) » 497 15 94,646,000 7T

—NE . B¥5143,862,0007T) » &%
HESgER LAREERRAEX
B LESRERE o

13. EREXEF

ARTRREGESRERRF T KIRLE
FEXAATDRREEHEZ RO BIE
162,560,0007c( = T — h, F: B &
429,984,0007T) R A FE B HITEBR

378,583,440 % (— &= — N, 4E . 378,583,440
B%) stE ©

—7'L¢+ B= +—E|JJ:$FI791’=J?¥E
ABELER RIS ESREBAFE
EiRo



14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units and retail stores under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years, with unilateral rights to extend the

lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or

lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease

14. IREME
FEARBRBCEHEHESBEE &
EMTEBMURTERE SALM
HE - HERBAPE—FIREFE  HH
EEFAENBHEEREERAHEA
FFRIRIAEALSN o

HRFIARAEIUEBRERES BHIII6E
ERE REAEEFSHBENLH
MmARINERR - HESEAFE 2 RER
BEERNSHAEAEHERREE
EEEMERNEE -

term.

HK$000

BT
FAIR VALUE ATEE
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—F—H 8,701,400
Currency realignment xR (61,654)
Additions 1210 11,857
Gain on changes in fair value ATEEZHNG 119,843
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—NFE+ZR=+—H 8,771,446
Currency realignment XA 177,502
Transfer from properties held for sale REHENEER 114,068
Additions 121 73,670
Loss on changes in fair value ATEEEEEE (136,196)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_2F+_A=+—-H 9,000,490

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the
Group’s policy to engage an independent qualified professional
valuer to perform the valuations. The management works
closely with the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

EREFMERITEER > AEENER
DERBISERFRGEMETHE
EEEAGEMRYGE BIIEEN
LERMAM A EER A B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, independent
valuations were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Ltd. (“Vigers”), an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group which has appropriate
professional qualifications and recent experience in the

valuations of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the same locations and conditions or,
where appropriate, by capitalising the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the

inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

im o S R R MY 5

14. REME (R)
AZEZREF+ZAZ=+—BRZE
—NE+ZA=+—H > BUEERH
BB R EHERRR AR AR (TEAEHT)
BT ST ARAEE T EREZE
U EERERMGEN  HEER RS
LMRETHERFEENEXRTERK
HTRAREER o

HENEZEBUED2ZERME KK
BHNEUMENTSRERNSZTHE
BAERAENRMBEEUMENT
BERUAESEMEFREIHE B BN
IS E(RERE) SH - EFFAN
BERECLERDESZAEMMZMERN
BUMERRAENRTE > BERE
HEMAAMAAN EYEERNEER
RHERERA -

TEREFERATEER > MENESR
RIEABRSEBRIAR °

TRILERKREVENAFEENM
EENEL (FEREREFFRANMGER
ISREAZH) » URBATEEFET
MEMASHAIMNRASENEE B2
FEEFEIEEATFEERBRNR
B (B—EF=ARA) o
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEME (B) 2
-

. =

Investment properties m
held by the Group in the Relationship 3
consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant of unobservable =
of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value -
BEBFERIREMES] HERGREREY EXTARAGHNZY ARG HNEYH g
REEMBIRAR SATRERRR g
k.

Investment properties in Hong  Direct comparison
Kong with an aggregate carrying method

amount of HK$646,820,000 BHLEE

(2019: HK$533,450,000)

EEENRENFARAEER The key input is
6468200007 (ZF—NEF © B TEEYA

533,450,0007T)
(1)  Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into accountthe ~ An increase in the unit sale rate
() EfisEER time, location, and individual factors, ~ used would result in an increase

such as frontage and size, between the in the fair value measurement of
comparable and the property, ranging  the investment properties by the
from HK$123 to HK$31,300 (2019: same percentage increase, and
HK$130 to HK$34,000) per square feet  vice versa.

on gross floor area basis for properties  FIRHNEIHEBR—B LA 29KE
and ranging from HK$930,000 to MENATBESERFERNE S
HK$1,500,000 (2019: HK$930,000 to > RZMA o

HK$1,450,000) per unit for car park

spaces.

Z BRI AR ARYRENF ARG 2B

ERRER M ERERAE  BHFERRE

AERDAETAREAR 13 TEBE313007

(ZE-NE B 10T EA340007T) (B4

BEER:) » CHRHD IS EREK930,000

TEAE 15000007 (ZB—NF : 5B 930000

TEAM | 4500007T) o

221

EYHEXRTHEBES

HETELTE-& - |
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
EEBFHRIRENES
REEMBIRRR

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
fERIREREH

Significant
unobservable input(s)
EATAHRAGHMEH

BMBWRMEE

14. IREME (48)

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
ARG LAY
SRTEERMRR

Investment properties in Hong
Kong with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$4,513,600,000
(2019: HK$4,762,800,000)
EEENRENFARAEEY
4513,6000007 (ZB—H @ B
4,762,800,0007T)

Income capitalisation
method

WAL

The key inputs are
IEEYA

(1) Reversion yield

()  TRERBRIEIERE

(2)  Monthly market
rent

Q SRmEHE

Reversion yield, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property and
prevailing market condition, ranging
from 3.3% to 4.8% (2019: 3.3% to 4.8%).
ZRNESERWABRE NRLERTED
> B ENERET A3 3%E48%(CE-NE
33%E48%) ©

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of time, location and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$39 to
HK$170 (2019: HK$42 to HK$180) per
square feet per month on lettable area
basis.

ZRIRE AR HRNEANERS 2N
BREZR > MAARFE » BAWHHEEIAR
AHAERH ST AREABEITERE 707 (2
T-NE BEQTERE 1807T) °

Aslight increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
FrERRMENEREEREM L &
TREMENATREHEREATR
R27A o

Aslight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in
a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
FRfEATREEEREN LT 8%
REMENATREABRERLA R
TR
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BREME (&) 2
-
=
Investment properties o
held by the Group in the Relationship o
consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant of unobservable E‘
of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
EEBFHRIRENES EERITREEEY EXTARARHNEH ARG LAY g
REEMBIRRR SRTEERMRR a
k.

Investment propertiesin Hong  Residual method
Kong with an aggregate carrying Fl&%

amount of HK$827,000,000

(2019: HK$719,000,000) The key input is
EERNRENELERER FEEHA

71 827,000,000 7

(ZE—N& 1 BH719,000,00070)
(1)  Gross development Gross development value on completion An increase in the gross

value basis, mainly taking into account the development value would result
() EBEEE time, location, design, frontage, layout  in an increase in the fair value
and size between the comparable and  measurement of the investment
the properties, which ranged from properties by the similar
HK$21,175 to HK$38,500 (2019: percentage increase, and vice
HK$22,000 to HK$40,000) per square versa.
foot FRNESREBE-ELA 8REN

ZRERE HERERYEANERG BN ENATEETSRIBNNE AT
EARE  MPERERAE  BRTREHN RZFA-
BRREETASTHREBELISTESE

385007T (ZB—NE | HAK2,000 TE AR

400007T) ©
(2)  Estimated project  Estimated total construction cost to An increase in the estimated
development cost complete amounted to HK$55,400,000 project development cost would
@  EAHEEZEMA (2019: HK$139,935,000) result in a slight decrease in the
fT TERR AR B S 2 4378 5 55,400,000 7 fair value measurement of the
(ZZ—N& : H1139,9350007T) © investment properties and vice
versa.
FRMEEE R ERA—E LT €9
REMENATEEAEREN TR K
)
Investment properties in the Direct comparison
PRC with an aggregate carrying method
amount of HK$360,860,000 BRI
(2019: HK$232,195,000)
EHENR R AR ERE The key input is
3608600007 (ZB—NFE B IRRUA
232,195,0007T)
(1) Unitsale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the  An increase in the unit sale rate 223
()  EBHEER time, location, and individual factors, ~ used would result in an increase @
such as frontage and size, between the in the fair value measurement of 5
comparable and the property, ranging  the investment properties by the "
from RMB4,650 to RMB23,600 (2019: same percentage increase, and g
RMB4,650 to RMB24,000) per square vice versa. 5
meter on gross floor area basis for FEMEHEER—B LA aoRE
properties. MENATEESERARNE DL i,
ZRIBE HAERERNEANZAGZEN 0 k2R I
BRIRE - IERERAR  ROBERR 5
EIBEBREABTARAARB460TEN a
R 6007 (CF-NE : ARB4650TEN #

R#240007T) ©
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
EEBFHRIRENES
REEMBIRRR

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
fERIREREH

14. IREME (48)

Relationship
Significant of unobservable
unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
EXTARNRLNEH ARG LAY

SRTEERMRR

Investment properties in the
PRC with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2,652,210,000
(2019: HK$2,524,001,000)
ERENRENFAREEEY
2652210000 7T (ZB—5 © %
2,524001,0007T)

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December
2020 and 3| December 2019 were measured using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence

were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

Income capitalisation
method

WAL

The key inputs are
IEEYA

(1) Reversion yield

()  TRERBRIEIERE

(2 Monthly market rent
Q) ERmEHEE

Reversion yield, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property and
prevailing market condition, ranging
from 6.0% to 6.5% (2019: 6.0% to 6.5%). investment properties, and vice
ZRNEEEAWABRE MEMERTRT  versa.
o RERENEREEEA6E65% (CT—N FANARENEREEEEMNLA &
1 60%E65%) © TREMENATREHEREATR
RZ74R o

Aslight increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of time, location and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
property, ranging from RMB95 to
RMB1,278 (2019: RMB95 to RMB1,278)
per square meter per month on lettable FIRNERATHREEELH LA 84
area basis. RENENATEEAEREALA R
ZRINHE  HARHRNEANERG AN 2R

BREZR > MAARFE » BAWHHEEIAR

LA ST HRHARES TEARE

127870 (CF—NE : \RESTEARKE 1,278

7o) ©

Aslight increase in the monthly
market rent used would result in
a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

TEIEFE+ZAZT-HARIE-AN
F+ZA=+—HRERENENAT
BEDMAERATRASLNEATEA
B2 GERT > MABERATFEER
HBE=MRA -

FRREEAHEFELE=HRA -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERSRE ‘;?
2
Furniture, :
Other fixtures, p3
Hotel leasehold motor vehicles F)
land and land and Plantand  and computer -
buildings buildings machinery equipment Total b
BELE  REELH 5 B %
RigF RigF BEREE ERREES B =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 L
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
COST RS
At 1January 2019 RZZE—NF—B—H = 106,314 41,195 114,046 261,555
Currency realignment BERAR - (26) (812) (584) (1,422)
Additions 1Em - - 5823 8,786 14,609
Transfer from property RERTEEA
under development 1,117,575 - - 216,363 1,333,938
Disposals HE - - (481) (9752) (10,233)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE
+-A=+—H 1,117,575 106,288 45,725 328,859 1,598,447
Currency realignment R - 74 2,683 1,631 4,388
Additions = - - 3,450 6,272 9,722
Disposals HE - (1,226) (1,051) (10,174) (12,451)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZTE
+=-H=1+—H 1,117,575 105,136 50,807 326,588 1,600,106
DEPRECIATION AND EREH
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hE—B—H - 17,536 24,423 95,517 137,476
Currency realignment xR - (1) (493) (513) (1,007)
Charge for the year TEELH 2,739 2,485 2,559 6,794 14,577
Eliminated on disposals R ERHE - - (342) (9,577) (9,919)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NE
+-B=+—H 2,739 20,020 26,147 92,221 141,127
Currency realignment ERRE - 17 1,561 1,535 3,113
Charge for the year FEESH 32,870 2,625 3,288 32,062 70,845
Eliminated on disposals R EREH - (490) (946) (9.175) (10,611)
At 31 December 2020 NZZ-TF
+-A=+—H 35,609 22,172 30,050 116,643 204,474
CARRYING VALUE IRE(E
At 31 December 2020 RIE-EE
+=H=+—H 1,081,966 82,964 20,757 209,945 1,395,632
At 31 December 2019 ey i
+ZA=1+—H 1,114,836 86,268 19,578 236,638 1,457,320
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[
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15.

notes:

(@)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

Hotel land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or 2% to 3%
Other leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and 10-20%

computer equipment

The management of the Group concluded there was indication for impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant and equipment
relating to hotel operation with carrying amounts of approximately HK$1,273,480,000 (2019:
HK$1,330,669,000). The management of the Group estimated the value in use of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the assets belong. Such value in use calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the management of the Group covering the
following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate is 8.5% (2019: 8.8%) as at 31 December 2020. The
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using 4% (2019: 4%) growth rate. The
growth rate is based on the industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on management
expectations for the market development.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Based on
the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined that the recoverable
amount of the CGU based on the fair value less cost of disposal was higher than its carrying
amount. No impairment is recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

15. M% - BERRE (E)

MizE:
(@) LiinE - BERREBENEESEEUTIIERAE:

BEDHRET BEE 2R ER 2% E 3%
SR tHRET %gﬁZﬂﬁEmﬁm%m

HEREE
i RE  ERREMRE 10-20%

(b) HECZ-TE+TA=T-HUESE FEEEEELEENEER
ENS THRAMEABKI40007T(ZE—NE: BE
1,330,669,0007) NERBEE 22 W% « BERKMEET T AETE o
FEMEEREHEEMBNRSELSNNERBE  ZEREE
NAEERRERERN ZREMERNRENAEAEEEEN
NAREENHBERE  RAFERALS% (ZE—HE 88%) oM
RENEMREHENER 4% (ZF—NE © 4%) MEREHE - R
TRETEEREN MATBBTENRITIERE S EERE
BNF—ERRBREREENR ZENERREEEBET R
ERTEREN o

TRESFENATEEAHERFARAEEZREE - RET LS
R AERERERE  BATEEASLEAENENRAHE B
BEIMRERENE AR AREREE HE -5 FRF 2
R=+—HILEERREDHE -



16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

l6. EREERE

Leased

properties
HEME
HK$'000
BETT
As at 31 December 2020 AZE-EF+A=+-H
Carrying amount BREE 5,879
As at 31 December 2019 AZE-h&E+=ZA=+—-H
Carrying amount BREE 10,757
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-EE+-A=+—ALEE
Depreciation charge e 5,013
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T-hE+-BA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge & 4,845
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
HE_ZT-TH HE_ZNE
+ZA=+—HILEE +-A=+-HIEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Expense relating to short-term leases IR EERMNER 4,085 3,806
Total cash outflow for leases HERERLEE 9,308 8,824
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERN = 4,980

For both years, the Group leases various offices, director and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of one to fifteen years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the

period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
various offices and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease

expense disclosed above.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

WMEHRE > AEESKEXHHERRE
MAZ -EEMEIES HESHEN
EEFHA—FI+HF - HEFRRZE
REENBERGHEEN  HREE&
AR B ERAEG - ZEBEEER
EHARM TG AT REH RV RA IR B > %A
BRI E F I E & B FI 586 IR
PR °

AEBTEHASMERERETIESIL
EHEESR N_E-_THF+_H
=t+—HERZZE-NF+ZA=+—H"
EHATHERA SR AR E T KA
HENMEAAAENHASHEL -
BRTHEARENHEEEEPHIERE
moh o HEBERHIMERMEMOE o
HENEETSREEENIERG o
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17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE/PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of properties

under development for sale of approximately

HK$1,014,408,000 (2019: HK$895,424,000) was expected to

be realised after twelve months from the end of the reporting

period.

As at 3| December 2020, the carrying values of properties
held for sale of approximately HK$572,363,000 (2019:
HK$674,403,000) and HK$11,714,000 (2019: HK$11,714,000)
are located in the PRC and Hong Kong, respectively.

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The residual values are determined as the estimated disposal
value of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into account the

estimated residual values as at 31 December 2020.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense

im o S R R MY 5

17. FHERRFME FHEME

R ZEEF+"RA=+—H  FHE
BRPYEIREEL A HEY 1,014,408,000
TT(ZE—N5F : B¥895424,0007T) 78
HRERSHAR T B BER -

RZEEHF+ZHA=+—H8 FUHE
Y ERREEL A B 572,363,000 7T (ZF
— N4 : B 674,403,000 70) K 4924 81
11,7140007c( = T — L F: B &
11,714,000 7T) BB HFEKREE ©

HE M REEEURAREERR
sHfEMEIBERKRE - FEREE
EEAHE LB HEEE-
EZRI_Z_TF+_RA=+—HNMH
stRIGREE » WAHEE LMEHEITE
=

FR BEREARAXZFTHENERS

during the year amounted to approximately HK$151,911,000 #9#&151,911,0007% (ZZ2—HF 1 #
(2019: HK$191,859,000). #% 191,859,000 7T) ©
18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. AEEED
2020 2019
k- - 5 “E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT BETT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RERGEREZHA—F LT = -
Deemed contribution to joint ventures (note c) BRAHAECENER (o) 192,326 212,273
Share of post-acquisition results and other PRk R E R H 2 ERE
comprehensive income, net of dividends received  IIREREURE 142,592 95,570
334,918 307,843




18.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 3|

December 2020 and 3| December 2019 are as follows:

18.

TIABAXREBRR _T_F

BETEEN (&)

=E+—BRZF-AE+ZA=+—
BEETESERX .

Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ Class of of ownership of voting
Name of company Notes operations shares held interest power held Principal activities
BEERER Wik SEMARALE FRFFRRR{NEER) AR FERREZILE EHMR
2020 2019 2020 2019
B2 ZF-nE ZEIRE TR
Value Investing Group (a) HongKong/Japan  Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
Company Limited B4/B% Ligk ST
(“Value Investing")
FEREEEARAR
Clear Miles Hong Kong Limited (b) Hong Kong/Australia Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
(“Clear Miles") &8/ Bl LiEh NERE
Notes: (iEH
(a) In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value () RoE—tE+—p AEREEREFERAT ((EE)) IUEE

Partners Group Limited (“Value Partners”) to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Value
Investing which in turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust beneficial
interests in the properties located in Japan, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the
Group agreed to purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Value Investing, representing
50% of the entire issued share capital of Value Investing at the consideration of HK$1. Upon
completion, the Group has provided an interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of
JPY2,749,848,740 (approximately HK$191 million) to Value Investing to repay the corresponding
amount of shareholder’s loan owing by Value Investing to Value Partners, the effect of which is
to ensure that the shareholders’ loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro rata to their
shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the financial
results and financial positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the Group's consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value
Partners to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Clear Miles which in turn through a
wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the beneficial interests in the properties located in
Australia, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement which Value Partners agreed to sell and the
Group agreed to purchase 1 share in the issued share capital of Clear Miles, representing 50%
of the entire issued share capital of Clear Miles at the consideration of HK$1. Upon completion,
the Group has provided an interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of AUD3,600,000
(approximately HK$21 million) to Clear Miles, the effect of which is to ensure that the
shareholders’ loans of the Group and Value Partners will be pro rata to their shareholding.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial results
and financial positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.

Deemed contribution to joint ventures represents loans advanced to joint ventures which are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the loans are in substance formed part of investments in joint ventures.

©

% BABERAEEHARARMNERTRES  LEEHZEN
BAE FE 1000 EZNARYE > RECERONRREE o

REZEERS  BEERFEAYRAEREE—THRBHEREE
iy HERBEREEEERARNZHEFTREN0% - XATH
® rEERBEREEEFRATRMET 2,749,848, 740 HE (45
191,000,0007%) MRS RRER > BIEREEEREEAERATER
ERENRRETNERESE  AEAARGAEAREEMENRE
BARRE RSN SR AE -

RBTNE  AEEHEEREEBERARNEHLREHNNESN T
BERAEEERAANMBZANMBRN  RUBDEFALE
BRRAHBRES o

RZE-N\ENR » FEEAREZTAEENE 2 BA Clear Miles 50%
WERTRE LEBH2ENEAR FA0EZNRNYZ
RESERNURRES o

REZRENS BERFIEMIRASREN-—THREHERER
fafn o ER Cear Miles 2 B ER{TRAH0% - RETME  £EE
18] Clear Miles 2 2 7 3,600,000:87c (4078 21,000,0007%) B B RRE
R AfERARRTEARSEMENRRERRRERSNERE
LGt -

RPTME > REBH Clear Miles R FEHIRIRES » i Clear Miles
WEBEENMBRR BUES AL EBNGAMBERRS

—BEER REABEEEENNEXTAELENAANGELR
Wi ARREEAAZENREACELEREN S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. SEE¥ED (8
(CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing, T3 AEBEKXEEESRAIRERERK

which is prepared in accordance with International Financial M#BHREERREG ZASHMBER !

Reporting Standards, is set out below:

N
w
o
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2020 2019

ZEIEE —2NE

HKS'000 HK$000

BT BETT

Current assets TEEE 812 1,120
Non-current assets FREEE 647,197 598,892
Current liabilities mEaE 383,841 402,808
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEIER 812 1,120
Current financial liabilities Vi lup =] 383,841 402,808
2020 2019

ZECEE —2NE

HKS'000 HK$000

BT BETT

Profit for the year FEEHR 67,034 59,132
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMPERH (70) (4)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEE2ERGERE 66,964 59,128

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial HMU EEEREEBBRAT ZBilis
information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the BMBEMNBEAELEZSMBERRTETBE
interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated Bz & ¥R !

financial statements:

2020 2019

- a5 —ZNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Net assets BERHR 264,168 197,204
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMGEEREERERATZ

interest in Value Investing PR 2 D 50% 50%

132,084 98,602

Deemed investments BRARERAE 176,453 194,956

Pre-acquisition profits BARIRH AR AER (5,080) (5,080)

Carrying amount of the Group's AEERBEREEERRAR
interest in Value Investing ZIEmIRE S 303,457 288,478




18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The summarised financial information below represents the

information of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually

18. AERE#D ()

BUR 8t 2 M BB HE R S B R E 5 IF
BERZEERRZEmEER

material:
2020 2019
k- et 5 “E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
The Group's share of profit for the year AEEREBPRIGER 10,701 2,625
The Group's share of other comprehensive FEEFERMSEM2ERA (i)
income (expense) for the year 2,839 (10)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEEFERFMER2ERA
income for the year 13,540 2,615
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's FEERZAE LR HEIREELE
interests in these joint ventures 31,461 19,365
19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 19. EHFRE
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BRATEETA
BATREEA Ht2EHEm2
LiE: BnZENEE TR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BRTT BETR
2020 k- a3
Listed equity securities LR (@) 20,598 161,548 182,146
Unlisted equity securities JE LR AGES (b) - 259,482 259,482
Perpetual capital securities BRAEAES () - 47,517 47,517
20,598 468,547 489,145
Analysed as: PEEA
Listed in Hong Kong REBLD 20,598 209,065 229,663
Unlisted FEET - 259,482 259,482
20,598 468,547 489,145
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  LU{EIREZAD1EA
Non-current assets FREEE 468,547
Current assets REEE 20,598
489,145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 19. %188 (&)
Financial Equity
assets instruments
notes at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BATEEA
BATEEA Hitv2ElE s
i3 BHZEHEE ’&HIA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BETT BT
2019 ~F-hE
Listed equity securities IikAES (@) 18,097 228,229 246,326
Unlisted equity securities JE LR AGES (b) - 291,681 291,681
Perpetual capital securities BRIIEARES () - 24,082 24,042
18,097 543,952 562,049
Analysed as: NS
Listed in Hong Kong REBLM 18,097 252,271 270,368
Unlisted LT - 291,681 291,681
18,097 543,952 562,049
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  LU{EiREZAD4EA
Non-current assets FREFEE 543,952
Current assets TEEE 18,097
562,049
notes: (IS
(a) As at 31 December 2020, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments at FVTOCI ~ (a) RoE-EE+-B=+-0 AEERSENREHANATER
held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$161,548,000 (2019: HK$228,229,000) are ;8 SRARATEEGARMEERGE 2 #ETAN EHRAR
carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. A7 161,548,000 78 (ZF— 4 : E15228,229,0007) ©
(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, unlisted equity securities classified as financial instruments at FVTOCI (b RIZZEE+ZA=+-B rEEMBANRSHANATEE
held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$259,482,000 (2019: HK$291,681,000) are 8 SRARATEEGARMEARGE 2 EET AN EHRA
carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. SHAA AN 059,482,000 7T (ZE—FLE © EH291,681,0007)
() As at 31 December 2020, the Group held perpetual capital securities amounting to (© RIE-SE+-A=+-R rEEFMBEEUREHANATER

approximately HK$47,517,000 (2019: HK$24,042,000) which are carried at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Such investments are issued in August 2020 and July 2019 (2019: July
2019) with a fixed distribution rate of 5.5% and 5.7% (2019: 5.7%) per annum payable semi-
annually for the first five years and reset to the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial
margin every five years thereafter.

e PEABERBEAEFNABEST 00T (ZE-NE:
HI24002,00070)  ZEER_B-EEN\BR-_F-NEtE(ZF
—NE:ZB-NELR) BT REXBERASESSHKSTH(ZF
—NE5T%) ) BRESHERE-R - HENESRENZEEAR
SEMPNBREREE



20. INVENTORIES 20. 8§
2020 2019
k- ZZ-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
The Group's inventories comprise: rEREFEGAE !
Raw materials B 1,940 1,897
Work in progress FE M 7,575 5,668
Finished goods i m 14,132 14,908
Other inventories HizE 2,106 2,982
25,753 25,455
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the RAFERIAZTHZEERENAE

year amounted to approximately HK$55,137,000 (2019:

M£55,137,0007c( Z & — h &F: B

HK$52,672,000). 52,672,000 7T) °
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BRRHEMBUIRTR
2020 2019
e —T-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Trade receivables B 5 REIERR 30,663 23,102
Deposits paid EfifRESE 8,481 8,406
Other receivables and prepayments HAPEWERTR R FE (T RN 41,780 52,666
80,924 84,174
notes: Mt
(@)  Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the  (a) BXREENRNERHENEZRE - BEEABAEHLAN
terms of the sale and purchase agreements. Monthly rent in respect of leased properties are 22 8RME - HMEZZRANTI930-0 B Z EEMER - KAR
payable monthly in advance by the tenants. Other trade customers settle their accounts with an HHK ) KEZA M AE R EUIRRA 30,603,000 (ZE—1
average credit period of 30 to 90 days. The aged analysis of trade receivables of approximately F UBBD3,102,0007T) ZEREAMMT
HK$30,663,000 (2019: HK$23,102,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2020 2019
ZECTE —ZhE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within 30 days 30BR 10,096 8,147
Between 31 days to 90 days 31E90H 11,949 11,104
Over 90 days BB 8,618 3,851
30,663 23102
(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately ~ (b) ZRISEFCAS R s \REBRKERZREREANE
HK$539,000 (2019: HK$776,000) were past due and aged over 90 days at the end of reporting 1539,0007% (ZF— N BE7760007) 0 ERERBERKRERH
period but the Group has not provided for impairment loss. Debtors that were past due but not ERNA  ARELEHRZZEHZABERRER - ARAEE
impaired related to a number of customers that have a good track record of credit with the ERBANERDRRY B A0ANEIRER B  RIE
Group. Based on past credit history, the management believes that no impairment allowance is BENEELDR EEERALSRANEEERRGEAYS Bl
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit BERRATR2KE R REAASERRAERR AEELE
quality and the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does not hold LS G A IR o
any collateral over these balances.
(© All of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the functional currency of the individual ~ (c) FERFMAE BRUERUSEENERBR ZEEHTIE o
entities within the Group.
(d)  Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note 37b. (d BB S RAMBUERRAR(ETE  SHERRME D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

22. CONTRACT COSTS

22. S8R E

2020 2019
ZECEE “E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Costs to fulfil contracts BITEHNHME
Interior decoration contracts (note) EREBEL (HE) - 3,815

note:  Contract costs capitalised relate to the costs incurred that will be used in satisfying the

performance obligation of interior decoration contracts entered with the customers. Contract
costs are recognised as part of direct costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which revenue from the related interior decoration contracts is recognised.

23. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN
THREE MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN
RAISED/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from

0.01% to 0.25% (2019: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The fixed

deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.11% to 2.5%

(2019: 0.35% to 3.9%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

of the relevant group entity are set out below:

s BEAENENNAERRETERRIINEARESANENER
FIEENMAER - SHRFNERRSEE N RERIBRENG
AREREDAERNAN—S

23. FAZEREBEBMZERIRITE
MRTERRRE

IRITERMEUT B EAENF L
NFEEE0I%NE02% (Z T —H &F:
0.01%%E0.35%) - EHRERM B EE F
B NEEFII%EL% (ZE—NEF .
0.35% E3.9%) °

AEELIFERERBRNIEGES
ENRITEMRERRITER > |RIINM
i

Denominated in RMB Denominated in US$

ARSI WETFIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT
As at 31 December 2020 RZE_ZE+_A=1+—H 691,884 197,813
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+_B=1+—H 330,108 175,364

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out
in note 37b.

IR1TAEER BV R (E 5T 1 SF B A MY 5
37b °



24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. BHRHEMEMRR

2020 2019
- k- - —Z-nE
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Trade payables BREMART 6,283 10,560
Construction costs and retention payables EREERAREGRES 168,933 208,080
Deposits received and receipt in advance in REMEZ EWRE RRKEE
respect of rental of investment properties 124,238 148,006
Deposits received (note) ElEE (s 170,523 143,127
Advance lease payments Lk 4,330 5716
Other payables H AR 23,143 26,142
497,450 541,631
Less: Amount due for settlement within " - R+ ZEARIHBNRE & E
12 months shown under current liabilities (399,334) (448,258)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown R+ _{BB#%2IHzEREEE
under non-current liabilities 98,116 93,373
note:  The amounts represent refundable deposits received from subcontractors for the purpose of Mz EBEAXRIBEERRNTRERS  URRERREHRAER

securing their performance in respect of construction contracts in favour of the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

the invoice date.

WRESRNET

B S EMIRFAVERES A2 ZE H BB ot a0
B

2020 2019

b St - —Z-hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Within 30 days 30HA 6,283 10,560

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

BEGYMZTI9EEHA308 - ~&E
EHEMFREEERER  URRAE
FEABRARIEEHIAS AT ©

25. AE&E

2020 2019
ZEIZE “Z-hE
HKS'000 HK$000
BETT BETT
Lease liabilities payable: EAHEAE
Within one year —ER 2,710 4,837
Within a period of more than one year —FREFBBRE
but not more than two years 1,678 2,875
Within a period of more than two years WEREABRRLE
but not more than five years 1,809 3,276
6,197 10,988
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months i : ’+Z188 RZIHAR S & &
shown under current liabilities (2,710) (4,837)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown R+ —EB&IBZIEREEE
under non-current liabilities 3,487 6,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. ANAEE
2020 2019
ZECEE —Z-hE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT AT
Sales of properties MEHE (@) 77 46,965

The following table shows how much of the revenue TRETRAFEERANKEFESZ DM
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward #EE&GHNAERRM -

contract liabilities.

Construction contracts (note b) Sales of properties
BEAL (HsEh) e
2020 2019 2020 2019
ot -3 ZE—hE ZE-EF ZZ-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT
Revenue recognised that was RENEIESEERERE
included in the contract liabilities el ey
balance at the beginning
of the year - 205,932 46,965 333,196

As at | January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to WRZZE —-HhE—H—H > 8N EBES%E

HK$539,128,000. # 781& 539,128,000 7T ©

notes: MizE:

(@) Sales of properties @) MEE
The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase AEARESERENEINMEENES - BLERAHAGTERE
agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer 9, EEEXERNEE R T REE o
obtains control of the completed property.

(b) Construction contracts (b) BEEY
When the Group receives a deposit before the construction activity commences, this will give EAEREH T EHELAKEES  BESBHANBLRESS
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant HEf BEAEAYRINES AR KRS LE

contract exceeds the amount of the deposit received.

(c) Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be recognised as (© SERSEANSHAEHETBET—ERDAKS o
revenue in subsequent year.



27. BORROWINGS 27. fa®k
2020 2019
k- e —T-NE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE BBTR BT
Secured bank borrowings BIRRRITER 1,029,059 1,040,400
Unsecured bank borrowings BIEIRIRITER 432,000 451,000
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEfIIEFER A R AR IE (a) 12,786 18,334
1,473,845 1,509,734
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings L fERAEERIREE (b)
are repayable:
Within one year —ERN 48,469 40,350
Within a period of more than one year but not —E#BREARE
exceeding two years - 112,084
Within a period of more than two years but not WERBIEBRE
exceeding five years 993,376 906,300
1,041,845 1,058,734
The carrying amounts of bank loans that contain BTERNRAEETSREKX
a repayable on demand clause (shown under BEFN (BRERE
current liabilities) but repayable: &8fET)  BREE:
Within one year —ER 432,000 451,000
1,473,845 1,509,734
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B ERBEET—FRA
under current liabilities HEANEEE (480,469) (491,350)
993,376 1,018,384
notes: MizE:
(@)  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of approximately (3 ZEERABEARARERERAEL 280800 (ZE-NE &
HK$2,808,000 (2019: HK$8,598,000) bears variable interest at an effective interest rate of 1.44% 18,508,0007) ZHBSERIHFIRNE » BERARATE144%(Z
(2019: 3.89%) per annum, while the remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. T—E 1 3.89%)  BREBRIARE o
(b)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. (b) BRRGEER BEMAEEEH B R5R o
(© As at 31 December 2020, HK$ denominated bank loans of approximately HK$1,423,000,000  (c) RIEZEE+ZA=+—H' UBKIHEZRTEREE
(2019: HK$1,357,300,000) and Renminbi (“RMB") denominated bank loans of approximately 1,423,000,000 75 (ZE—h% : 81,357,300000 75) RAAEEFIEZ
HK$35,682,000 (2019: HK$134,100,000) are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at SRATERRBNE35,682,00078 (ZB—ALE: HKE134,100,00078) HBIAMN
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus a margin of 0.90% to 1.25% (2019: 0.90% to ERBIREREFESMOIDE1L% (ZE—RE | 09%F 1.25%)
1.25%) per annum and 100% (2019: 100%) of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") prescribed FIZRMIFZSER  RO100% (ZB—1E : 100%) ZFEIARSRTT
interest rate per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, RMB denominated bank loans of REFIZNTRER - RIB-FET°A=+—H ARKHENR
approximately HK$2,377,000 (2019: Nil) are fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest at 4.75% TEROAEEL37007T (ZE-NE : B) AEENEEHR > £7)
per annum. The effective interest rates ranged from 1.25% to 4.75% (2019: 3.33% to 4.75%) per EHLT% BEEFENFEE1NELTH(ZF—NE: 3IB%E
annum. Details of assets pledged are set out in note 32. 475%) o BIEMEEFFRN ML
28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. EMHTEIR
Liabilities
&ff
2020 2019
k- 3 —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Derivatives not under hedge accounting: FHAEHZTETIR !
Cross currency swap contract BEEFIRIXEREL 1,808 7,480
Currency forward contracts RHRSME S - 361
1,808 7,841
Analysed for reporting purpose as: AREMDEA
Current Vi 1,808 7,065
Non-current R - 776
1,808 7,841
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
CROSS CURRENCY SWAP CONTRACT
The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to
manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its
operations in Japan with principal amount of JPY305,000,000 at
fixed currency exchange rate of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) to HK$
at 0.07 and due in 2021. Under this swap, the Group would
receive interest monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44%
per annum based on the principal amount of approximately
HK$21,320,000 and pay interest monthly at fixed rate at 1.19%
per annum based on the principal amount of |PY305,000,000.

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to
manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on its
operations in Japan with principal amount of |PY2,749,848,740
at fixed currency exchange rate of |JPY to HK$ at 0.07 and due
in 2020. Under this swap, the Group would receive interest
monthly at a floating rate of HIBOR plus 1.44% per annum
based on the principal amount of approximately
HK$192,539,000 and pay interest monthly at fixed rate at
[.19% per annum based on the principal amount of
JPY2,749,848,740.

CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS

The Group entered into several currency forward contracts
to manage its exposure to currency exchange fluctuation on
its operations in Japan.

Euy Zell Maturity

im o S R R MY 5

28. EMTTETIT A ()

TXEBFEEIHAL
AEEZERIXNGEFNEEHREL > K
BEHTHAEBNIIERKRRAR > &
H #5305,000,000 H B » 2 #8 T B E B
LA007° W22 EEIH - RIBER
HHE4  AEEFZB WBIREBEAE
#9785 21,320,000 TU B BIRITRIERE
N 1.44% FEFEHENFE > REFEZM
R #% 25 & 305,000,000 H B W & F Fl X
1.19% EFFEHENFIE o

REFEBITETRXEEFNXIZENRSE
4 REBEHEHXAEBHNINERIRER
% 0 £¥87/42,749,848,740 HE > RIB T
[E] 7 BE % % 0.07 > I 22020 F EIHF » 1R
BEEERSY > AEEFZB WEIR
BARS B 192,539,000 T E B IRIT
B2 1.44% FFRXRAENFE > &
BEZ(FIRIEAS$2,749,848,740 HELLE
EFZE1.19% FEFEABNF R o

BHASMES A
AEETIHERRAIESHRERH
£ B A EFFRIIMNE TR o

Contract rate

B B 58 SHESR
HK$31,704,000 JPY450,335,000 March 2019 to March 2020 0.0704 HK$
131,704,000 H 7%450,335,000 —E-NF=ZBE-E"Z=H

Details of the fair value measurements of cross currency swap
contract and currency forward contracts are set out in note
37c.

HREAEARXXYEBHNREHREGOREH
SEESNZATFEEFETEHNHIEE
37ceo



29. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

29. IRERIE
MEIGEMBRARMS » ETIEL
MEEENRBEBEIKH - UWTAMIE
ERER B A 2 IR IEMIBAE ER O A -

2020 2019
ZECTE ZZ-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 20,608 27,472
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE (260,726) (256,875)
(240,118) (229,403)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) W TALREBREIFEFERUTEEERE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the R T EIRERIEEE (BE) UREE
current and prior years. & o
Difference Revaluation
of accounting  of investment Dividend
and tax properties withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
BHEARE Eft{EHE
EZER ZBRENE RS FENR MIERSE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&—HB—H 35,244 217,830 16,124 (37,247) 231,951
Charge (credit) to profitor loss 88k Gt A) 3,273 - (5,603) 4,319 1,989
Currency realignment xR - (4,221) (316) = (4,537)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE+ZB=+—H 38,517 213,609 10,205 (32,928) 229,403
Charge (credit) to profitor loss  PIEzERFI0R GTA) 5,984 11,664 (10,563) 3,582 10,667
Currency realignment XA - (310) 358 - 48
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZEF+"B=+—H 44,501 224,963 - (29,346) 240,118

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$879,593,000 (2019:
HK$824,960,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$179,001,000 (2019: HK$191,234,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$700,592,000 (2019: HK$633,726,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses at 3| December 2020 are tax losses
of approximately HK$3,832,000 (2019: HK$4,637,000) that
will expire within 5 years from the year of originating. Other

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RPRESHF ZEBHBLOBE
879,593,000t ( = T — AL F: B ¥
824,960,000 75) Z KB A IEES IR B E
WEH R A o & H 4948 179,001,000
TT(ZE—HhEF : B¥191,2340007T) B
RAFEIERIEE E - HRNEATEAIE
FoamFRIR - HERAY # 15 700,592,000 7T
(ZE— NI B633,726,0007T) Z
HEBILRBRAREREEE - KT
TTEFE+TH=1+—H > XHERRIE
EETEEELEFERLFERNIHENM
TERS 18497815 3,832,000 ¢ (Z B —H 4!
71 4,637,0007T) ° HtIRIBEIEITAER
PREFGEEHE T —FE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$11,983,000 (2019: HK$8,165,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

im o S R R MY 5

29. IRERIE ()
RIBFPREEEMERZEZ BZEZENF
—HB—HBiE > REKNE RS BB
HIkZKEEBMTENR - BRNAER
RESEFIBEIERER 2R > MARM
BHREETEAGNA RiERER > &
HRRGEMERRMPEHRBLATR
Baf 2z R EE B 11,983,0007T (=
T—HE : AE8,1650007T) fEH IR
TEHE o

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. Bg%
Number of
shares HK$'000
R EE BETr
Issued and fully paid: BETREERSE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and RIE—h&E—HB—H»“ZE—h&
31 December 2020 +ZRA=+t—BRZZEZZHF
+ZBA=1+—H
Ordinary shares of no par BEEZEER 378,583,440 381,535

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002,
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees, and expired on 24 April 2012. Under
the 2002 Scheme, the Company could grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at
HK$10 per option. Additionally, the Company could, from
time to time, grant share options to outside eligible third

parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time. The number of shares in respect of which options could
be granted to any individual was not permitted to exceed 1%

of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

31. RRIpEAREET S
ERERER ST ZFMAZ+HH
BRZREBERRMARMBESTE(TZE
ZTEFE)) TEENRANESE
ERGERES  ZFEERZIE—Z
FHAZ+MBAE® - RE_SZ_F
58 ARB I MESERES (BFEEAA
AREMBATZHITES) LA
UEMEEAE 0B BEATRKRMD °
tEsh » A AB A RERKRE HEEE
HNERERSERIINRE=FEFLHRM
HAME o

EARESEARTRRSBEMAET > RIE
ST FEE AR 2 R EE
FREBHAATREMARREEZETRM
Z 10% > M A{ERIE B A 1% H HARE 2 Bg
HNBEAFBHARTNEMREE
TRHBZ1%-



31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price was to be determined by the directors of
the Company, and would not be less than the higher of the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant,
the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing

price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and
the 2002 Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is
effective for a period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme

since its adoption.

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities

made available to the Group.

31. RRipEARESTE (48)
RRpEARERTINIR H B EAESt R E R ME(
RE{THE  THEEHRFABDEFERE
ERAMBEREABRROIRIELBRZEE
REZFZH B AERS B ZKRHF
MRHERREE R ZRHDBHEZR
S

T T B LR E R
HifE - —_EE"_FHENR _ZT—_F
OB —_+MmHEm ©

RER_S——_FRANHBEBRZZE
RER —EMRMBEESS (S
—ZFet ) BEARMERRM - —
- FHEZERE ST T F5E
ZIERABRMER c —BE—_FHEEN
HAZ 104F o

T — T F T B E R LRI IR I IR
HERE o

32. EEE
RIBEIR > TIHBEEBIEFEFIRIT
WEREEERF—ARIBTRHE

2020 2019
. S “2-NE
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT
Leasehold land and buildings HE L RIEF 68,982 58,842
Investment properties BREME 4,882,210 4,844,001
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BEfKIE
2020 2019
ZECTH ZZ-hE
HK$'000 HK$000
BB BETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BEABRIGEHFHRR LEEZ
in the consolidated financial statements BARH%
in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment/ —W%  BERSE
investment properties BB 61,409 147,673
— Others — Hfth 20,479 19,023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSOR
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next

one to eight years.

The Group as lessor had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

im o S R R MY 5

34, EETHL K
EEEALEAA
FrEYEEE R EAR—F )\ EMNFELY -

FEBEAHBABEUTRKKEE
X HEARTA -

2020 2019

ZECZE “Z-nE

HK$'000 HK$000

BETT BETT

Within one year —FR 280,204 304,153
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZZLEN (BEFEERE) 389,184 515,865
Over five years LER 10,454 22,027
679,842 842,045

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a
defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF

Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective
schemes and are charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees contribute
5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme while the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement

benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

35. BAEFE
FEBATBZAGERESERT —ER
EMRETE > WAERRT 58 T -

AEBRBEBEEE ZEARAURE
EERMZMHR > R EGASIRERIN -
BETFEHEEAREAURETE
# > RAEBEZEEDHERE - RiRHE
BmEstd > BETAREBRASMHMRS%
ReEREst 8 A > MAEETFREER
BT ABHI5% R5aRE st B o

LS s AEBERABERIZBBATZ
ETREREABREZERKREFE 2K
B -ZEMBARARAENEETES
EEmBAREF GBI MFH HRR > LENEE
BER - AEEHZFRAEBANEEZ
ME—BETEHEE R -



36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 27, net of bank
deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of

new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

36. BEXEMEIR
FEBBHEAETER  URFREE
EE TS BERIEERGECSEAEL
g ARRNERHRAREZEERT
B> SRRHEREKEH > EEEZE
RERIRE A FWEAE -

FERZBEAEBHEE (BEMEE 27
WEZEW > NRRITERKRRE) &R
EEFERAREQERREGEL (BF
ERTREREIRRFHRE) HEMX

EABDEZREMRABELER - (FR1R
ANZ—8kn EREEREAMAERBIL
EEZHEBARRE REBEFZEH &
ERREBZMARE « BITHMRURE
THEERNEOREERES SN TEHA
EREBEARGEE -

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. #ftT A
37A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS J7A. TR T Ao 4E
2020 2019
k-t 23 —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT
Financial assets EHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEHABR 20,598 18,097
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEESAHM2EREZEEZTA 468,547 543,952
Financial assets at amortised cost LUBSER A A BRI EREE 2,063,841 2,133,479
Financial liabilities ERIBE
Amortised cost bS] 1,966,965 2,045,649
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR 1,808 7,841
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Details of the Group’s major financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity risk, and credit risk
and impairment assessment. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

()  Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate

fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end
of the reporting period that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currency of the relevant entities are

im o S R R MY 5

37. M I A (&)
378. MBAKREEBRREER

ZETMIAZFRNEERAMERR
E-RARFEsRIABEMZAREED
SRR (R R FRERREER
%)~ RBEZEAR - EERERKEE
fit o BRI AR EZF AR ZBERES!
WT e EEEHZFRARETEERE
1 DRFRENRFANE RS ERE
Jits

HIER

() EEER
AREERENREEMNERTT B
LUESEERDTE o

REREMR > ZEBLERAERINES
BLUMNIEBZEREEREBRER &
EEEQBERGHRREEDT

as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =1
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZE-%E —Z-NE k- ek 32 —Z-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Group &0
HK$ against RMB BELARE 9,130 186 - -
United States dollars (“US$") En R
against HK$ 271,925 231,697 - -
RMB against HK$ AREREEK 691,884 330,108 - -
Intra-group balances EFARERELR
HK$ against RMB BEEARE 110,159 103,494 1,245,069 1,174,258

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arises.

Z< &£ [ B A0 I 8 S BE ¥R ELER o AT
EEEEERMENINERR > 7EE
BERERZEHPEEINER KR o



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

() Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1%
(2019: %) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and 10%
(2019: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. The
respective percentages are the sensitivity rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and also intra-group balances
denominated in foreign currencies and adjusts their translation
at the year end for the respective percentages change in the

exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit or equity where HK$ weaken 1% (2019: 1%) against
US$ and HK$ weaken 10% (2019: 10%) against RMB. For a 1%
(2019: %) strengthening of the HK$ against US$ and HK$
strengthening 10% (2019: 10%) against RMB, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit or equity, and the

balances below would be negative.

37. M I A (&)
378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

iz EE (8)
() EEmEEE)
BRED

TRHFHLTSEEHBEERETER LFH
BRTFEI1% (ZE—NE 1% UKRBER
ARBER FAKRTEI0%(ZE—NEF !
10%) NENRLE - RIEE D LEHEERE
MEEEEASERFFIANSRKEL
EORRTEEEBHEXESEREN
#HEIRNEEH T - RE DT EIEN
SNEEHER R B EBIER RIUINET
ENEBRARFRGER  THMEXEH
B 7 LR FRFE -

TRAEHRTBERETEREI%(Z
E—NFE 1% REAREEZEI0%(Z
T—NE10%) Rmf s ESEme &
BERETAHBEI*(CE—AEFE 19K
TARBAHEIN(ZFE—NF10%)
B BHEf R g EREEERAR
W2 M rIGEHREEa% -

2020 2019
ZEIZE —Z-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit or loss = F
HK$ against RMB BEIARE 94,003 89,393
US$ against HK$ ETREE 1,652 1,464
RMB against HK$ ARIER B 57,772 27,565
Other comprehensive income Hitvzmia
US$ against HK$ ETREE 741 563

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

REEEENER  SREDNHEAR
HYSNEE R B M R B AR > B2 F 48K
209 E BRI A e BREE P9 R R B9 LR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

in market interest rates. The Group currently does not have

an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management

monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate fixed bank deposits, borrowings and lease
liabilities (see notes 23, 27 and 25 for details). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate bank balances and borrowings (see notes 23 and
27 for details). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly attributable to fluctuation of HIBOR and prevailing
interest rates offered by the PBOC. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rates of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed
in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2019: 50
basis points) fluctuation is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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37. M I A (&)
378. FMA#5EIE E IR B IR KREE (5)

iz AR (48)

(i)  FIFREE
HRERENEREAESMTAZREKR
EmEREHSANEEESMEEZ AR o
7 £ [B B A I F ZE IR EUR o AR
CEETERMSNAXER  TEE
EEEREZEHEPEEMNEARIRE

FEBME S EHHRITER » BRRME
EaRARATENRAR GHERME
23227%25) - ZEETHEFBIRITHE
MBREREAZRERENEEAR - 1B
RMIsE23/%27) - ZEENREEREBF =X
RiEFERERRNERBRITAERE A
FIRITREHRE RBAPEARRITIRM
MIRITEXRNKE - FEBHBRAR
FERANEES > UEFE2RLVATEE
MERER - AEBERTHEEmARH
MERER > FHEHNSHERABES
EpREE—E o

BREDH

TXHHERESRDREESEBRGTE
RIFTETEERSARAZHFRE
BEE - MEDTHRIRNEBEHARR
AN EMIATEFANRESE - A
BHFTEERASERMREREAL
SOREFEMMFEN(ZZT—NF 508
F)  AREEBHAKRESIETENE
BENEBHIT(E

2020 2019

—E_EE —Z-hE
Change in basis points Change in basis points
£ o
450 50 450 50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs000 HKS000
AT AT BT BT
Profit or loss (net of tax) aM S (BRIR%) 1,734 (1,734) 2,254 (2,254)
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. ERAPEBF AR o

REEEENER > SUKESHHEAR
RO R E BRIt R R AR R FR&K
R BRI Az BRE R AR Y R o

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL and
FVTOCI, and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group also invested in certain listed equity
securities and unquoted equity securities for long term
strategic purposes which had been designated as FVTOCI. The
management will closely monitor the price movement of the
securities and regularly review the performance and asset

allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments and
perpetual capital securities had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/

lower:

* the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 3|
December 2020 would increase by approximately
HK$1,720,000 (2019: HK$1,511,000) or decrease by
approximately HK$1,720,000 (2019: HK$1,511,000),
respectively, as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities classified as financial assets at
FVTPL; and

* the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would
increase by approximately HK$20,907,000 (2019:
HK$25,227,000) or decrease by approximately
HK$20,907,000 (2019: HK$25,227,000), respectively, as a
result of changes in fair value of listed equity securities

and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.

37. M I A (&)
378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

iz Rk (&)

(i) 1E15 R fE

REEZFBEUATEBES ABARZ
ATEESARMEZERESEZ LT
KAFSMRAFEEFAEMEEK
Mt EZERPEARBS ZRERKER
BRK MR RXZARERUARFEE
STABRHENREAESMS  EEE
RIBERFAEERAFARARNKEASRKE
BILERS o thoh > AEBMITRERET
RSB MNMIE EHRAES » Hig
EABRAFEEAAHEMZEKGE - B
BEEREVERZERSF 2 EBIRES
T EMRBMEES ZRRREEDE °

BREDH
TXHHERESRDRERS BHEAR
HIRBREEERE

ERSBELFTRATEMNEREE, TR
10% (ZZ—HEE : 10%) » 81 :

- XEBBE_Z”-_ZH£+_7AH
=t+—BHLEEENREBEMNIHE
N4 A ¥ 1,720,000 Tt (ZE— 1
£ B 1,511,0007T) IRV A B
1,720000c( ZE — L F . B
1,511,0007T) » REAE A BAUARFE
BEFABSNEREENLHR
TEHZAFEEES ; &

- AEENKREGEREES I ZIEM
#9781 20,907,0007c (ZZE—NF :
7 1£25,227,0007T ) DA B
20,907,000 c( —Z B — L FE: B
25,227,0007T) ° [REE LR AE
FMEATFEES AEMEZEKE
HEPRAIE 485 2 AT EEEES) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance its operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$278,000,000 (2019: HK$510,264,000). Details of the
amounts utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out
in note 27.
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378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)
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TEERERREE > SEBEEER
REEEEXABHNFEERRESE
HEKT ZHEBEEREES IR
Wﬁémzﬁ@m%%°&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ITIEMRZ ERR R MR E T B E

FEBEKBRITERFARBIESZE
#;EI}_ ﬁ\—v—vfﬁ—l_ H + E 2

SEBABERHAMmMSRIERNZIBITER
X8 4 #7815 278,000,000 ¢ (ZFE— M5 :

7B 1£510,264,0007T) - REREHAREEH
EEREEZEFEMNMIEE27 o



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. &M IR (&)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37B. Bi#5E R &2 B R R BUR (4)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & EE (8

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual ZAEEBEMIETTEEHABBERMBERS

maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease AJFIEREIHAHFIIN TR - TRERE

liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the RIAREMEBEARIERBHIENELHE

contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities HRBEM&IET > M &AFIBEHN & RFIZHE

and lease liabilities including interest that will accrue, with KREBFIETH > H2RARSHRE

reference to their respective contractual interest rate, and for FFEYTIHFIZEME o

i
r4
>
z
@
>
=
X
m
b
o
=
3
¥
#
#
b

those variable-rate instruments, by using the appropriate
prevailing market rates at the end of the reporting period as
stated in their contracts.

Within More than Total
Weighted 1year or 1year but undiscounted
average repayable less than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years liabilities amounts
FEER —FBE R
il R ar ik —EREE HEMNEE ERAREE IRE{E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT BT
2020 —E_EF
Non-derivative financial FirEERmaE
liabilities and RHEER
lease liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEERIE - 398,707 94,413 493,120 493,120
Lease liabilities HEEE 3.33 2,866 3,610 6,476 6,197
Bank borrowings (note) RITER (M) 1.54 526,955 979,991 1,506,946 1,461,059
Amounts due to non- FEfSIERERR R
controlling shareholders
— Interest bearing — iR 1.44 2,808 - 2,808 2,808
— Non-interest bearing —%E - 9,978 - 9,978 9,978
Total pRbE] 941,314 1,078,014 2,019,328 1,973,162
2019 —E-hE
Non-derivative financial fTESRER
liabilities and RiEERME
lease liabilities
Trade and other payables B R HMEMERE - 446,872 89,043 535,915 535,915
Lease liabilities HEEE 3.33 5,121 6,415 11,536 10,988
Bank borrowings (note) SRATIERN (BF3E) 3.46 508,570 1,135,100 1,643,670 1,491,400 2;;’
Amounts due to non- FE(TIERRRR AR =
controlling shareholders &
— Interest bearing —3te 3.89 8,598 - 8,598 8598 &
— Non-interest bearing — %8 - 9,736 - 9,736 9,736 z
Total 4z 978,897 1,230,558 2,209,455 2,056,637 °
note:  The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject to change if st - Liﬁﬁkiif}iiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@lﬂZﬁE  RIRFBRIEZ BHRG
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the BEBREHRETZ AR DB ERRIFLEY -

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “within | year or repayable” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$432,000,000 (2019: HK$451,000,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will be
repaid within one year after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and bank
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with

its financial assets.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

im o S R R MY 5

37. M I A (&)
378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

BB AR (8)

EREIBASNP > HEETERERN
IRITERBEIE ERERK—FANEE]
R RIZEZEF+ZA=+—H"
ZERMTEFRNKRBDREABE
432,0000007c( = & — h F: B
451,000,0007T) ° EERIEBBFERR >
EEMRABRITAKRATETEENERE
ERIUBEE - ZARESHEE > ZFE
IRITERBRBREPRE—ERNRES
FipEATE Z AR BT HAAEE -

(S & E B R R E T

ERERREESEENXZHFENE
AREBMGEEBRENMBRENAE
e AEENERARMOETZERREN
B2 MEMBURURIBITER - K&
B E A E AR m EMEE AR
i URBEHESMEERRNEER

B o
B 5 RRAR

ABLVERNEERE  ~EEEER
EEKEREEEEEEREREESR
%o RIEMERHEFA > AEEER
REEEFT D RS > LEHEEBERT A/
EEHEZENEEEREAMRE - TRH
REEKRF D EMETE—R - NITHEHAM
EREFRARNEEGHEHNRE
T8 - WS AEERBEAEMEEERE
BINETREN G > BEZERERN
R BIEEET(E - St > 2T
EFARTERNEERBREARRE



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 36% (2019:

30%) and 73% (2019: 73%) of the total trade receivables was

due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest

customers respectively within the trading and manufacturing

business segment.

Other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess the
credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses |12m ECL
to assess the loss allowance of other receivables since these
receivables are neither past due nor with fixed repayment
terms, and there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is not
significant.

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits)

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group assessed
I2Zm ECL for bank balances by reference to information
relating to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external credit

rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

37. M I A (&)
378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

S8R R ET (G (4)

B SRR (8)
rEBEPEERE  LTTEREES
REBEBEIBY > BRASERERE
FRAREFNEZBUERFAREED 5
236% (ZF—HF :30%) R73% (==
—HE 1 73%) ©

H1thEUL AR R
FEBEEEE RS MTEHF L
FEER BHRZEFRUERREE A
TEEEEMFENR > BEERKRBEMN
sofBIE ARG > AEEEA 1218
B R E B R 18 LT H A R IR AR R AV
EIEEE Rt ZRABREFTRATE
EEEERRILEREK

IR1TFL (EIFIRITERI L)

R HF 75 B EEREEFREIEER
SEEMRNIRTT MBHE - RBITE
MNEEREAER - ~EEZ2Z HEINE
SR RIEBEMEVERERTRER
MENBRRMIBRGENIRRBRNGE
B ERREREMEEHBEHNIRITE
BRI TS ©
BREERBRETREABGEEIRNE
FIRITEVRBERSI > AEFELEEH
EREMEXREERR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

37. EMTIA (&)

378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

SE R R ETE (4)
FEBNASEERRTREEUATS

8.

Trade receivables

Other financial
assets/other items

LR Hit E BRI HithEREE HtAR
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
R HFANEVERE  BXEREMEHTIE EHRIEERE — 1ERBHESHE
TEESHE
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
not credit-impaired
ERRE EEARERBHREER EHRIEERE — NERBHESHE
TEESHE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed internally  not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
or external resources
(2 EERRBEEEARIINTERRUNEIARIERBEN 2HRBEEHE — RHBHEEHE —
TEESHE TEESHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
R BTEEMREERENER EHRIEERE — EHRIEERE —
{EEHE (EEHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
4 %ﬁ%ﬁAE%E%M%H%W%E’E$$EM%EﬁW@ EERRMH EERRMH
SRk



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. &M IR (&)

37B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37B. Bi#5E R &2 B R R BUR (4)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S5 EFR R iR ETE (4])

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TXRFIIXAEBREHEEDHNEER

Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: [ > B TERA{E BEE51ERVETMH -

i
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b

2020 2019
External - k- - Z3-hE
Notes credit rating Internal rating  12-m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
M SMEBEETA PERER AR 12{8R 2 MR EAS A HRm{E BREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB TR BT

Financial assets at amortised cost

MRS ARNEREE
Trade receivables 21 N/A (note 2) Lifetime ECL 8,409 6,185
B 3R AEH (Mizx2) (provision matrix)
2HRREEFE (BER)
N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL 22,254 30,663 16,917 23,102
AER 1R S EHEEHE
Other receivables 21 N/A (note 1) 12-m ECL 45,462 45,462 57,232 57,232
Ht AR @R (E1) 2B EIEEHE
Bank balances 23  AaltoAa3 N/A 12-m ECL 110,492 38,209
SRATHERR Aa1 EAa3 TiEm REREHREERER
Alto A3 N/A 12-m ECL 570,015 774,346
MEM TiEm REREHREERER
BaaltoBaa3 N/A 12-m ECL 1,306,712 1,987,219 1,240,142 2,052,697
BaalEBaa3  FiEM AR ERIEEHE
notes: (i
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information to 1. HABEERREENS  AEAREARERTGEEERESE
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. MR E—EABLF
Not past due/No fixed repayment terms
ERHEE R
2020 2019
- et 5 ZT-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Other receivables HhrEURER R 45,462 57,232

N
[
w

EYHEXRTHEBES

=5 = |

HETEHLE



N
0207 14Od3Y IVNANNY | @3LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl ‘g

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37.

37B.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

37. M I A (&)
378. HHEREEBFEREE (8)

s EELI’“ELJE‘ZTEEG (%)

notes:  (Continued) Mzt (

2. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in accordance with HKFRS 2. HREFEBRRME » RESEMBREENEIS  F5BRABMHIE
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding FiEt B2 HRMEEERNERER  REARGRERAEER
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on those balances BNEBEAN  AEEEARGERERUASERIRIENZE
by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal credit rating. GERRIEEER
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating for its fEAREENGEERREEZ -7 AEAAERARERNESR
customers. The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade T o TREMENE AR EERRNER » ZEEZRUERR
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit- DREZBEREESRE (TEEERE) AN EEERELTME 1
impaired). Debtors with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of CERCEREt_ACt-HRBEARGEEERRERAEABE
HK$22,254,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$16,917,000) was assessed individually. 20,254,0007% (ZB—NE © #%16,917,00070) BIERS ABE T
Gross carrying amount BRE(E

Trade receivables
B 5 R
2020 2019
- - 3 —Z-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
bidich BETT
Internal credit rating REMEE TR
Low risk EER 6,356 3,723
Doubtful (2] 2,053 2,462
8,409 6,185
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the EHEREBEREB AR BB ERNBEERMENEAR
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available URBETEBLRATENTRE MR ENBE - PENHE
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure BEERER  URFREMIETER ANBEMERGUESR
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 37C. #RTAATEEA =

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

following table gives information about how the fair values of

these financial assets are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

FEEFIETHMEBEEREHBEURE

SHARNQFEESE - TRIZEER

EMEEZATEEEAXNER (AR
= BMEESERFEANEAZE) -

2020
—ECEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—4RA EZHRA ERR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR BETR
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATFEEFABGEZEMEE
Listed equity securities IhRAES 20,598 - - 20,598
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRATEEARM2EE
ZHEHTE
Listed equity securities IhRAES 161,548 - - 161,548
Unlisted equity securities JE LR AES - - 259,482 259,482
Perpetual capital securities BIRIAEAES - 47,517 - 47,517
Total ek 182,146 47,517 259,482 489,145
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEEFABRZERMEE
Derivative financial instruments ERTETR - 1,808 - 1,808




37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. EMTIA (&)
31C. EMIAATEENE (B8)

—E-hE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
FE—RR BRI FZRA 4azE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFABEZEMEE
Listed equity securities EhRARES 18,097 - - 18,097
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATREFAR2EKE
ZHERTH
Listed equity securities EhRAES 228,229 - - 228,229
Unlisted equity securities JE EThRRAEE - - 291,681 291,681
Perpetual capital securities EIREE AR - 24,042 - 24,042
Total b 246,326 24,042 291,681 562,049
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATFEEFARSEZERMEAE
Derivative financial instruments SRTETER - 7,841 - 7,841

There were no transfers between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock
exchanges.

The fair values of perpetual capital securities are determined
based on indicative prices provided by the dealers and brokers.
In addition, the Group makes comparison of the indicative
prices with the prices obtained from pricing services providers
to substantiate the indicative prices of these securities. The
key inputs used in the valuation models are the interest rate
data, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.
The objective of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value
estimation that reflects the price of the financial instrument at
the reporting date, which would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined
with reference to market values of underlying assets, which
mainly comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong
held by the investees and take into account the discount for
lack of marketability. The valuation of the properties was
principally arrived at using the comparison method, in which
property is valued on the assumption that the property can be
sold with the benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based
on prices realised on actual sales of comparable properties is
made for similar properties in the similar location.

FR B — B_REZRNZEHE
LTS o

EHRAESFHSEERARZPAFSI
MR ARTIZEABEE QA FERE -

BEAAHHERENKABRESFH
AT EERBEHEERELAPTRHE
BETRMEEREE - s AEEBER
MERATEERFEEDF LESH
BERMULEER > UL XABREFHIIE
THERERTRE - AEEANEE
WMASHBFRYE > ZHBEEREH
REFAIUEHASE - HEEANBERE
ENARREMTAETRSAHEFHS
BHEENURATEERSERNATEE
8o

EEFLHTREESHNATFEERESS
HRBEENTIZEE  TECEMRRE
ABRFANEEREMENHIRERE
REBHERZHIGEMEL TN - Y%
HETEZERLEREL  BRZIMERS
HEEFNMEHNYEMLE - LERER
HEEAR L EERUNYEEERUN
UEBRNERHEERME °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of cross currency swap contract and currency
forward contracts are measured by the present value of future
cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and foreign
exchange rates between JPY and HK$, which were observable
at the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets

im o S R R MY 5

37. M I A (&)
37C. EM T RAAFEESE ()

RXEBEREORERINESONQ
FEE > ERERENZNMBTIAEE
BE 13 B B9 8 A B9 W i HR AR TR B R RG IR
RRRERRAER > HREERTHIR
BREHARBRGEN -

EABZEEZRAEERARGEMBR
RALEHERASARNEMEREER
TRBEZIREEEZEQATEERES -

ERMEES =R ATEERRE

Equity instruments

at FVTOCI

BATEERA

Htt2mEm

Z2EETR

HK$'000

BT

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—B—B&H 306,289
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REMZEKE AR 226518 (14,608)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=+—H&H 291,681
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REMZEKE NS 226518 (32,199)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIZBZEF+"A=+—H&ER 259,482

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of
approximately HK$32,199,000 (2019: HK$14,608,000) related
to unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of
the reporting period.

A small percentage, 1.7% (2019: 2.0%), of total assets of the
Group, is based on estimates and recorded as financial assets
with Level 3 fair value measurements. Whilst such valuations
are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one or
more of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions would not have a big impact on the Group’s

financial positions.

Hha m s A e iE4E 1 32,199,000 7T
NEEBE(ZZE—HNLF: BENBE
14,608,0007T) » BN EHAMEE B
ENRATEESFARMEEAWT ZIE
EHEETEAR -

ERERBEENBNLES > 1.7% (ZF
— N 1 2.0%) > THIRIBAEEE =R 5!
REMMBEKRAR o ILEER G RRE
EHR EE—EXAZARKEBEES
BRAENAERSKE > HEFATHAE
EENMBRTERERTE ©



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level | inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers or other service
providers to perform the valuations. The management works
closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The respective
management team reports the findings to the Board of
Directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various financial assets and
liabilities is disclosed above.

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

37. &R I A (&)
3C. ERMTAXATFEENE (8)

ATEEHBNTEERE
EREERAN AAEEENATR

FEBMGFEENERNAFEERRF
BEURZTGSEREE - EXS—R5EH
ABHATR > xEBERBIGTEN
BE(LEMEMARF HEEETHE -
EEERGEMNZEYGEFE BIEEDN
fEERMMNEARR - HEEEBRKE
HRAARNESEREEEMNEREN
ATEERBNVAEERILERRR -

AREESEEEMBENATEERN
EERMMBAZRKBE SR ESUREE -

38. MEEHELENRRALN
TRFRTHSEBREEZHEENER
216> BRRTMIFRTEE - MEE
HEENEREERMERTRE > WARK
WEERE > RROEATEERNGS
RERBROPETHRERME o

Lease Dividend Interest
Borrowings liabilities payable payable Total
&= HEAR FEfTiRE FERFIS g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2019 R-_E-h&—F—H 867,818 10,937 - 496 879,251
Financing cash flows BMERER 651,074 (5,018) (265,008) (44,855) 336,193
Finance costs RS RN - 410 - 44,693 45,103
New leases entered/terminated  ¥ifEE%:] 4RIk - 4,665 - - 4,665
Dividends recognised as BHERADRZES
distribution - - 265,008 - 265,008
Currency realignment PR (9,158) (6) - (4 (9,168)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 1,509,734 10,988 - 330 1,521,052
Financing cash flows BERET (42,406)  (5,223) (214,050)  (41,150) (302,829)
Finance costs BT RS - 296 - 41,554 41,850
Leases terminated AEXIE - (263) - - (263)
Dividends recognised as BHERADRZES
distribution - - 214,050 - 214,050
Currency realignment ERA% 6,517 399 - 1 6,927
At 31 December 2020 WZEZZ&E+"A=+—H 1,473,845 6,197 - 745 1,480,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

39. ZRFRMBIRRRKRGFE

2020 2019
ZECEE ZE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT

Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties REME 2,230,000 2,320,000
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 532,672 545,120
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,058 4,717
Investments in subsidiaries MBARZKRE 550,575 527,942
Investments in securities EHRE 76,577 58,800
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEL I A B BR AR 4,955,334 5,208,259
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 20,608 27,472
8,366,824 8,692,310

Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale FHEME 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EURERRR 3,355 4,375
Investments in securities EHRE 20,598 18,097
Bank balances and cash RITERKRAE 995,054 667,961
1,021,815 693,241
Current liabilities hEEE

Trade and other payables B3 REMEMIRER 8,437 12,070
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,091 3,439
Derivative financial instruments SRITETR 1,808 7,065
Borrowings — due within one year B — R—EREH 432,000 451,000
443,336 473,574
Net current assets mEEETEE 578,479 219,667
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERTEER 8,945,303 8,911,977

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables HthFEAH R 52,668 52,732
Lease liabilities HEaRE = 1,353
Borrowings — due after one year T — R—E %5 991,000 906,300
Derivative financial instruments SRTETR = 776
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries HBATZREER 119,887 107,323
1,163,555 1,068,484
7,781,748 7,843,493

Capital and reserves B RikiE
Share capital [z 381,535 381,535
Reserves it 7,400,213 7,461,958
7,781,748 7,843,493

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on || March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

MR. LIU LIT CHI

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
1% BEEBEERTHAH

MBBRREN_E_—F=A+—8%
EFgHERERERT TATIAL

RER=E !

MR. CHENG YUK WO
WERME

CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

BRZEELE



39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. ZATIMBRARKRES (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
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MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES TATREZES
Property Investment
revaluation revaluation Accumulated
reserve reserve profits Total
MESGHE REEHEHE REEf 45t
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-h&E—FB—H 448 (31,568) 7,655,833 7,624,713
Profit for the year KEE G - - 106,280 106,280
Fair value losses on investments BATBESAHEMZERREZ
in equity instruments at FVTOCT BETAZ ATEESE = (4,027) - (4,027)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEEZRA () WaiEiE
income for the year - (4,027) 106,280 102,253
Dividends recognised as distribution ERRARZKE - - (265,008) (265,008)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H 448 (35,595) 7,497,105 7,461,958
Profit for the year KEE G - - 143,205 143,205
Fair value losses on investments BATFEESARMEEREZ
in equity instruments at FVTOCI G TAZ ATEESE = (4,300) = (4,300)
Total comprehensive (expense) AEERAE (KH) e
income for the year - (4,300) 143,205 138,905
Dividends recognised as distribution ERRADTRZRE = = (200,650) (200,650)
At 31 December 2020 WZE-B5+-F=1—H 448 (39,895) 7,439,660 7,400,213
40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 40. BBk ALTIRESRIE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) BABALRS
2020 2019
k- el 2 3 ZE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Leases/expenses paid and payable to directors B REGFERAZEMEAT
of the Company or its affiliates EZNER M
Repayment of lease liabilities/rental expenses BEREAE AT = 525
Architecture and other consultancy service fee BEMEMADREE = 672

The Group had no other material significant transactions with  Zx& 17 ARG A LTI E RIS ©
related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

during the year were as follows:

40. BBk A THESIE (8)
(B) XEEEASME

TR AEFTEEEASZHMIOT ¢

2020 2019

ZECEE ZZ-hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Short-term benefits 5 ERRER 45,623 46,340
Post-employment benefits BEIRHEF 3,370 3,488
48,993 49,828

The emoluments of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to

the performance of individuals and market trends.

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

EERFBITHABZFHMDBHFEMNE
BEREARERTGEZERE

41. T EMBLE
R_E_EF+-_BA=Z=+—HKZZE
—NWE+ZA=+—H > xRBZFE
MEBATERWT -

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EARIIE BRITEERS/ SAFRERRTREEE/
WEAREE Wi Rt HES &2 TEEE
Directly Indirectly
B G
2020 2019 2020 2019
“EC8F “FZ-AF ZECRE “EFNE
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Property investment
) #1%100,0007T NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - - Investment holding
HEBRAR & 95007 RARR
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
EREXERAR BB 751t52,000,000 75 MERE
Bright Ocean Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100 - Food and beverage
&8 #810,0007% 'E
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Money lending
AIXMBERAR &8 751151,000,000 75 BmER
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Provision of nominees
services
BI% (K1) BRAT &A BT RMHAEARS
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
REMERRAR ) AHE2007T MERE



41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. XEMBATE (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B3] BRTLERS, SATFEERTRSEE
WEAR&HE R B HRES HmEsZ A TEEE
Directly Indirectly
i 3}
2020 2019 2020 2019
Z2I%E —Z-hE IZBITE C"ThF
% % % %
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
& B0 MERE
Fancy Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100 Retail sales
&8 10,0007 TEHE
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Property investment
BARERERAR EH BT MERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Property investment
SERERRAT &8 BT MERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Property investment
EREEBRAT EH BT MERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
EEERERAT &8 BT REER
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 9 90  Investment holding
ERARAR & BIE1007T REER
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
REERERAT &8 B0z REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
ERBRAT EH BT K&K
Joyce King Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
KHEERAT &8 BT REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
BEERAT EH BEE2007T MERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited &k #710,000,000 70 KREER
BRIEEXFRAT
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited &# #872,000,000 7T MERE
BRIEXGERERAT
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Property management
Management and Agency Limited o #11,000,000 70 WEER
BRIEYEEERREERAT
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100  Property investment
&8 BT MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41. XEMBATE (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
I BETZERS, FATFHERTRIEE/
WEAR &R Wi Rt e b3l EL:E1
Directly Indirectly
Hig [}
2020 2019 2020 2019
- _T-NE B _T-NE
% % % %
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Hotel operation and
Management Limited &% BT management
BEEERERE
One Eight One Lobby Cafe Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Food and beverage
&A 10,0007 &M
Queen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - - Investment holding
Investment Limited &8 61,540 7T RERR
BRI ERRAR
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100  Property management
Company Limited
ERNEEERRAR &% #110,0007T MEEE
Royal Best Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
EERBRRAT EH BT REER
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Property investment
BIERERAR &% BT MERR
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60  Investment holding
ERRBERRAT EH A0z REER
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
EHERERAR &% BT REER
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
HEERERRAT &H BT REER
Top New Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - %0 90  Investment holding
HERERRAR &% A1007T REER
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
&H A0z REER
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
BRERAF &% BT REER
Trend Able Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
EBRRBRRAT &H BT REER
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
R EERAF &% BT REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
RAEBERRAT EH BT REER
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 = - Property investment
RREDERAR &% 712,000,000 7T ES



ATe
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 41. T EMBAR (&) g
Place of Issued %
incorporation or ordinary bl
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ g
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities |
sEM RIS BRTEERS/ SAFREERITRIEE =
WBARERE M mih HfEs AEEZ L TERH *
Directly Indirectly -
Ei#% & P
2020 2019 2020 2019
“¥°¥F “EF-nE ZEC®RE —ETE
% % % %
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited HE 7 1£500,000,000 7 MEER
HlEEEREMEERERAR
Foshan Top New Property (i) PRC HK$612,500,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited HE 7 1612,500,000 7T MEER
BUTHEEMEREBRAT
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100  Property investment
Consultancy Limited HE #18,500,000 70 WERE
BENmEREERAERAT
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100  Property management
Management Company Limited HE 7511,000,0007 WEERE
BN RAYEEERERAT
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i)  PRC RMB65,370,000 - - 51.54 51,54 Manufacturing of
Company Limited HE AEH# magnetic materials
65,370,000 75
BRUSHHEEMEERAR SUSHEMEATRL
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i) PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100  Property investment
Property Development HE 34,600,000 7T MERE
Company Limited
LESRBREEMERZER
NG
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
HIERBERRAT Hong Kong (ES REER
BERYHE/EE
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong 100578 REER
EEELHE/BE
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - - Share investment
Hong Kong 1,000%7% RipRE
ERELHE/BE o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in ZEER A > HAEFEEISEEE K =
B
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or HZ RKEFWBATZECHINLE o
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries 3o #®HA > SREEEMKBEATE =
»
ol

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of ¥l > BIEIREARTTE

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the #f#E[i B /A 7 = 7E A~ F KR (T(ERETS
end of the year. Mt o

HETELTE-& - |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x & Bf %5 ¥k & Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZZE-T&F+-F=+—HILEE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

41. XEMBATE (&)
RAEREMKR > sRFEHBEHMEEE
EMESFABEANMBLAR - ZFHE
ABRAREHEREREE - LFHE
AR EEXZHHRMIIWOT

Number of subsidiaries

WEARHE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2020 2019
TBEH TEERME == —T-NE
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
BECERERE FE
Investment holding Hong Kong 11 14
REER &2
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
WERE &2
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 13 18
EEREY &8/ HE
notes: Yt
(i) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC. (i) FHENRRRPERIZNERELE o

(ii) The company is sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(iii) At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests.

(i) ZERARRPERILZFHEELERT
(i)  RERSHR AEMEERAELFERRRESNF2EMEL
go

ol
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23/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

E-mail: Info@Ichi.com.hk

‘Website: www.Ichi.com.hk

Stock Code: 00194
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